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ASBESTOS SCHOOL HAZARD ABATEMENT

TUESDAY, JUNE 19, 1990

House oF REPRESENTATIVES,
CoMMITTEE ON ENERGY AND COMMERCE,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION
AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS,
Washington, DC.

The subcommittec met, pursuant to notice, at 1:13 p.m., in room
2322, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Thomas A. Luken
(chairman) presiding.

Mr. LuxkeN. Let's move ahead. 1 apologize for starting a little late
today, but there were other things on the calendar for the commit-
tee this morning.

Today the subcommittee convenes to consider legislation to reau-
thorize the Asbestos School Hazard Abatement Act of 1989, or
ASHAA. The subcommittee will consider testimony from two scien-
tific experts on the relative risks of exposure to asbestos. The main
purpose of ASHAA, however, is to provide financial asgistance to
needy school districts in the form o” losns and grants for asbestos-
related activities. These include inspecting for asbestos-containing
materials, preparing mauagernent plans, abating asbestos, and re-
placing asbestos with other maten'af

Another asbestos law, the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response
Act, or AHERA, requires the schools to inspect for asbestos aund to
develop and implement asbestos management plans. Asbestos
abatement can range from inspection and maintenance to complete
removal, depending upon factors such as condition and location of
the asbestos. Appropriate action should be determined on a case-by-
case basis.

The current ASHAA authorization expires this September. If it
is not reauthorized, no Federal assistance will be available to many
public and privece schools for abatement, nor will any funds be
available to continue the information assistance program currently
provided by EPA.

According to EPA, as of October 1989, 94 percent of all school
districts had completed the asbestos management plans required by
AHERA. This means that 94 percent of the schools should have ac-
tually begun abatement work, many of which wouid be entitled to
receive loans or grants under ASHAA. The latest data from EPA
indicates that the amount of money requested through ASHAA has
increased, but the majority of rchools are unable to get the finan-
cial assistance they need to manage asbestos. In the 1990 applica-
tion cycle, local educational authorities requested almost $406 mil-
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lion for abatement activities but only $44 million, or 11 percent,
was made available.

H.R. 3677 extends the authorization for the loan and grant pro-
gram through 1995 and increases the maximum amount that could
be appropriaied to $250 million per year. As we will hear today in
iestimony before the subcommittee, there is a dire need for con-
tinuing to provide Federal assistance to our schools for abating as-
bestos. Scarce money that otherwise would be spent on education
will be diverted to pay for asbestos abatement. Already, private
schools have closed because they could not pay for federally man-
dated abatement projects, and 1 sucpect there are public schools
who have either closed or are in danger of closing. Those that have
not been forced to close have had to cut costs in other critical areas
of education.

Aside from the funding issue, we will hear testimony from two
medical experts. While Dr. Gee and Dr. Levin are generally viewed
as representing opposite sides of the debate in asbestos, it seems to
me that they sharc much in common, and what they share in
common is applicable to this legislation. Both agree, as we all must
agree, that high levels of asbestos exposure are worse than low
level exposure or none. Both are concerned about exposure to
workers removing asbestos. Both seem to agree that .emoval of
asbestos is not always the best answer and that undisturbed or
undamaged asbestos may be best left alone.

The bill before us today, H.R. 3677, was introduced by our former
colleague, Mr. Florio, and more than 60 other original cosponsors.
The bill includes important improvements to the ASHAA program
and doubles the amount authorized to clean up asbestos in our
schools. Since it was introduced, it has gathered additional cospon-
sors and it now has more than 80.

That concludes my preliminary statement. I am pleased to call
upon the gentleman from Kansas, the ranking minority member of
the subcommittee, Mr. Whittaker, for any preliminary statement
that he may have.

[Testimony resumes on p. 21.]

[The text of H.R. 3677 follrws:]




101sT CONGRESS
18T SESSION . ° 3677

To resuthorize the Asbestos School Hazard Abatement Act of 1984,

IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

NOVEMBER 18, 1989

Mr. FLow1o (for himsel, Mr. THOMAS A. LUKEN, Mr. EckarT, Mr. RiNaLbpo,
Mr. S8cHEUER, Mr. MARKEY, M. CoLLINs, Mr. SikorsKI, Mr. RICHARD.
soN, Mr. Bruck, Mr. BaTes, Mr. Tgaxier, Mr. ACKE3IMAN, Mr
AuCoin, Mr. BatemaNn, Mr. BoenLest, Mr# Bosco, Mrs, Buxkg, Mr.
Brown o California, Mr. Coreman of Texas, Mr. DeFazio, Mr. Drr-
LuMs, Mr. DukmiN, Mr. Dwyeg of New dersev, Mr. Dymarry., Mr.
Evans, Mr. FasceuL, Mr. Favntgoy, Mr. Fazio, Mr. FoorLigsrra, Mr
FRANK, Mr. FrosT, Mr. GriDENSON, Mr. Gonzarrz, Mr. (Gjorpon, Mr
Haves of Louisians, Mr. HerTeL, Mr. HoauraNp, Mr. KANTENMEIER,
Mr. KiLbee, Mr. LaFavce, Ms. Long, Mr. MeEwen, Mr. MeNuLry, Mr.
MArTIN of New York, Mr. Minrer of Washington, Mrs. MogsLLa, Mr.
Moga18ON of Connecticut, Mr. Mrazkk, Mr. NELSOX of Florida, Mr. OBEr-
RTAR, Mr. OwNs of New York, Ms. Prrost, Mr. Ranant, Mr. Rivoe, Mr,
RoB, Mr. Sagranivs, Mr. SAvAGE, Ms. SLAUGHTER of New York, Mr.
SMmit of Florids, Mr. Stacorrs, Mr. SToKER, Mr. Torres, Mrs, Un-
SOELD, Mr. VENTo, Mr. Wise, and Mr. Worrs) introduced the following
bill; which was referred to the Committee on Energy uud Commerce

A BILL

To reauthorize the Asbestos School Hazard Abatement Act of
1984,

1 Be it enacted by the Sennte and House of Representa-

2 tives of the United States of America in Congress assembled,

~e



1 SECTION 1, SHORT TITLE.

2 This Act may be cited as the "*Asbestos School Hazard
3 Abatement Reauthorization Act of 1989".
4 SEC. 2. FINDINGS AND PURPOSES,
5 (2) FinpiNas.—Congress finds the following:
6 (1) Exposure to asbestos fibers has been found to
7 cause various cancers and other severe or fatal dis-
8 ea;es, such as asbestosis,
9 (2) Children are particularly susceptible to the ad-
10 verse health effects of inhaling asbestos fibers.
11 (3) Asbestos which is friable can result in the re-
12 loase of asbestos fibers into the air, presenting a health
13 hazard.
14 {(4) The Environmental Protection Agency has es-
15 timated that more than 44,000 school buildings contain

16 friable asbestos, cxposing mnore than 15,004,000 school

17 children and 1,500,000 school employees to unwar-
18 ranted health hazards.

19 (5) All elementary and secondary schools are re-
20 quired by the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response
21 Act to inspect for asbestos, develop an asbestos man-
22 agement plen, and implement such plan.

23 (6) The Environmental Protection Agency has es-
24 timated it will cost loeal education agencies more than
25 $3,000,000,000 to comply with the Asbestos Hazard
26 Emergency Response Act.

Q L)




3

1 (7) Without a continuing program of information
2 assistance, technical and scientific assistence, training,
3 and financial support, many local cducational agencies
4 will be unable to carry out sufficient response actions
5 to prevent the release of asbestos fibers into the air.
6 (8) Without the provisions of sufficient financial
7 suppurt, the cost to local educational agencies of imple-
8 menting asbestos response actions may have an ad-
9 verse impact in their educational mission.

10 (9) The effective regulation of interstate com-
11 merce for the protection of human health and the envi-
12 ronment requires the continuation of programs to miti-
13 gate hazards of asbestos fibers and materials emitting
14 such fibers.

15 (b) Purroses.—The purposes of this ¢t are the

16 following:

17 (1) To direct the Knvironmental Prot=ction
18 Agency to maintain & program to assist local schools in
19 carrying out their responsibilities under the Asbestos
20 Hazard Emergency Response Act.

21 (2) To provide continuing scientific and technical
22 assistance to State and local agencies to enable them
23 to identify and abate asbestos health hazards.

24 (3) To provide financial assistance to State and

25 local agencies for training of persons involved with in-
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1 spections and abatement of asbestos, for conducting
2 necessary reinspections of school buildings, and for the
3 actual abatement of asbestos threats to the health and
4 safety of school children or employees.
5 4) To assure that no employee of a locul educa-
6 tional agency suffers any disciplinary action as a result
7 of calling attention to potential asbestos hazards which
8 may exist in schools.
9 SEC. 3. AMENDMENTS TO ASBESTOS SCHOOL HAZARD ABATE.
10 MENT ACT OF 1984,
11 Except as otherwise specifically provided, whenever in
12 this Act a section or other provision is amended or repesled,
13 such amendment or repeal shall be considered to be made to
14 that section or other provision of the Asbestos School Hazard
15 Abatement Act of 1984 (20 U.S.C. 4011 et seq.).
18 SEC. 4. ASBESTOS HAZARDS ABATEMENT PROGRAM.
17 Subsection (b) of section 503 is amended—
18 (1) in paragraph (2), by inserting “educationsl”

19 after “local”’;

20 (2) in paragraph (2), by inserting *‘, including
21 parent and employee organizations,”’ after ‘“‘institu-
22 tions’’; and

23 (3) by amending paragraph (3) to read as follows:
24 “(5) not later than 45 days after the apprepriation

25 of funds each year to carry out the asbestos hazards

7 1)




5
1 abatement program under this title, the development
2 and distribution to all local educational agencies of an
3 application yorm; and’:.
4 SEC. 5. STATE RECORDS AND PRIORITY LISTS.
5 (8) MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS.—Subsection (a) of
6 section 504 is amended —
7 (1) by striking out ‘“Not later than” and all that
8 follows through “maintaining records on—"' and insert-
9 ing in lieu thereof “The Governor of each State shall
10 maintain records on—"";
11 (2) in paragraph (2), by inserting “and other re-
12 sponse actions” after “abatement activities'’;
13 (3) by inserting “and” after the semicolon at the
14 end of paragraph (2); and
15 (4) in paragraph (3), by striking out “‘subpara-
16 graph (B)” and inserting in lieu thereof “paragranh
17 ().
18 (b) DELETION OF DEPARTMENT OF EpucATION REF-

19 ERENCES.—Subsection (b)(1) of section 504 is amended—

20 (1) by striking out “Not later than six months
21 after the date of the enactment of this title and annual-
22 ly thereafter,” and inserting in lieu thereof “Each
23 year, in accordance with procedures established by the
24 Administrator,”;
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(2) in subparagraphs (A) and (B), by striking out
“snd the Secretary of the Department of Education”
both places it appears;

(3) in subparagraph (A), by inserting “and” after
the semicolon at the end of such subparagraph; and

(4) by striking out subparagraph (C).
(c) DETERMINATION OF ADEQUACY OF RESOURCES.—

Subsection (bX4) of section 504 is amended—

¢ W =2 R Ur e O D -

(1) by redesignating subparagraph (¥) as subpara-
10 graph (G); and

11 (2) by inserting after subparagraph (E) the follow-
12 ing new subparagraph:

13 “(F) Any additional costs to the local educa-
14 tional agency of meeting the special needs of dis-
15 advantaged students.”.

16 (d) CONFORMING AMENDMENT.—Section 504 1s further

17 amended by striking out subsection (c).
18 SEC. 6. FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE,
19 (8) APPLICATION APPROVAL DEADLINE.— Subsection

20 (b) of section 505 is amended—

21 (1) in paragraph (2), by striking out “‘applications
22 shall be submitted,” and inserting in lieu thereof “the
23 Governor shall submit applications,”;

24 (2) in paragraph (2), by adding at the end the fol-

25 lowing: “The Administrator shall approve or disap-
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13

:
prove applications for financial assistance no later than
April 30 of each year.": and
(3) by striking out paragraph (3).

(b) RANKING APPLICATIONS,—ubsection (e}(2)B)(v)
of section 505 is amended by strikirz out “‘is cost-effective
compared to other techniques including management of mate-
rial containing asbestos” and inserting in lieu thereof “uses
the least burdensome methods which protect human healil
and the environment'’.

(c) DELETION oF REFERENCE TO DEPARTMENT OF
EpucaTion REPORT.—Subsection (cX3) of such section is
amended by striking out “shall consider—" and all that fol-
lows through the end of the paragraph and inserting in licu
thereof the following: “'shall consider the financial resources
available to the applicant as certified by the Governor pursu-
snt to section 504(bX4)."".

(d) AppiTiONAL LiMITATION.—Subsection (d) of such
section is amended to read as follows:

“(d) LIMITATION.—In no event shall financial assist-
ance be provided under this title to an applicant if—

“(1) the Administrator determines that such appli-
cant has resources adequate to support an appropriate

asbestos materials abatement program; or
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“(2). the applicant is not in compliance with title
I of the Toxic Substances Control Act (15 US.C.
2641 et seq.).”.

(e) REQUIREMENT TO DEprosIT FUNDS INTO ASBES-
t08 TrusT FUND.—Subsection (f) of such section is amend-
ed in paragraph (3) by striking out “for deposit in the general
fund’’ ana inserting in lieu thereof the following: “for deposit
in the 3bestos Trust Fund established by section 5 of the
Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act (Public Law 99-
519; 20 U.8.C. 4022)".

() AppiTIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR APPLICATION
ArprovaL.—Subsection (g) of such section is amended—

(1) in paragraph (1), by striking out “‘within the
five-year period beginning on the effective date of this
title” and inserting in lieu thereof “in accordance with
such procedures as may be developed by the Adminis-
trator’’;

(2) in paragraph (2)(B), by amending clauses (i)
and (i1) to read as follows:

“() the local educational sgency has pre-
pared and is implementing an asbestos manage-
ment plan, as required under title 11 of the Toxic
Substances Control Act (15 U.S.C. 2641 et seq.);

and
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“(ii) all activities to be conducted with the fi-
nancial assistance will be performed by individuals
trained and accredited in conformance with title
I1 of the Toxic Substances Control Act (15
U.8.C. 2641 et seq.) and regulations promulgated
under that title;”; and
(3) by striking out paragraph (4).

SEC. 7. ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS,

Section 506 is amended—

(1) by redesignating subsection (c) as subsection

(d); and

(2) by striking out subsection (b) and inserting in
lieu thereof the following:

“(b) PrROCEDUBES.—The Administrator also shall es-
tablish procedures to be used by local educational agencics,
in programs for which financial assistance is made available
under section 505, for—

““(1) abating asbestos materials in school buildings;

“(2) replacing the asbestos materials removed

from school buildings with other appropriate building
materials; and

““(3) restoring such school buildiugs to conditions

. comparable to those existing before asbestos contain-

ment or removal activities were undertaken.
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“(c) RevaTiONSHIP T0 OTHER Laws.—Nothing con-

tained in this title shall be construed, interpreted, or applied
to diminish in any way the level of protection required under
any other State or Federal worker protection or other appli-
cable laws.”.

SEC. 8. ANNUAL REPORT.

{a) REPOoRT DEADLINE.—The first sentence of section
507 is amended to read as follows: “During each calendar
year until 1999, the Administrator shall prepare and submit,
not later than June 1 of each year, to the Committee on
Environment and Public Works of the Senate and to the
Committee on Energy and Commerce of the House of Repre-
sentatives & report on the loan and grant program authorized
by section 505 of this title.”.

(b) ConTENTS OF REPORT.—Paragraph (6) of such sec-
tion is amended by inserting before the period the following:
“and the amount of resources needed by such schools, cate-
gorized by State, to abate a!l remaining asbestos hazards”.
SEC. 9. RECOVERY OF COSTS.

Paragraph (2) of section 508(a) is amended by inserting
after “‘repay to the United States,” the following: by deposit
in the Asbestos Trust Furd established by section 5 of the
Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act (20 U.S.C.
4022),”.
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SEC. 10. DEFINITIONS.

Section 511 is amended—

‘

(1) in paragraph (8), by inserting *, vibration,”
after ““damage from water”’; and

(2) by adding at the end the following new para-
graph:

*“(9) The term ‘response action’ hag the meaning
given such term by section 202{11) of the Toxic Sub-
stances Control 4et (15 U1.8.C. 2642(11).".

SEC. 11. AUTHORIZATION.

(8) AUTHORIZATION.—Paragraph (1) of section 512(a)
is amerded to read as follows: ““(1) There are hereby author-
ized to be appropriated for the asbectos abatement program
not more thae $250,000,000 for each of fiscal years 1991,
1992, 1993, 1984, and 1995.”.

(b) SpeciFic PrOGRAMS.—Subsection (b) of section
512 is amended by striking out paragraph (2) and inserting in
lieu thereof the following:

“(2) Of those sums sppropriated for the implementation
of this title, not more than 5 percent may be reserved during
each fiscal year for the administration of this title and for
programs including (but not limited to) the following:

“(A) The establishment of training centers for
contractors, engineers, school employees, parents, and
other personnel to provide instructivn, in accordance

with title 11 of the Toxic Substances Control Act (15
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1 U.S.C. 2641 et seq.), on asbestos assessment and
2 abatement.

3 “(B) The development and dissemination of abate-
4 ment guidance documents to assist in evaluation of po-
5 tential hazards and the determination of proper abate-
6 ment programs.

7 “(C) The development of rules and regulations re-
8 garding inspection, reporting, and recordkeeping.

9 *(D) The development of a comprehensive testing
10 and technical assistance program.
11 “(3) Of those sums appropriated for any fiscal year for

-

12 the implementation of this title, the Administrator may use
13 not more than 5 percent to provide grants to States for the

14 following purposes:

15 “(A) Assisting local educational agencies in per-
16 forming the periodic reinspections and training activi-
17 ties required under title IT of the Toxic Substances
18 Control Act (15 U.S.C. 2641 et seq.).

19 ‘“(B) Establishing and maintaining programs to
20 aceredit personnel performing asbestos inspections and
21 response sctions.”.

s
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1 SEC. 12. CONFORMING AMENDMENTS TO ASBESTOS TRUST

2 FUND.

3 (8) AMOUNTS TBANSFERRED TO TrRUST FuNnp.—Sec-

4 tion 5(bX1) of the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act

5 of 1986 (Public Law 99-519) is amended—

8 (1) in subparsgraph (A), by striking out “as in

7 effect on the date of the enactment of this Act, and”

8 and inserting in lieu thereof a comma;

9 (2) in subparagraph (B), by striking out the period
10 at the end and inserting in lieu thereof **, and’’; and
11 (3) by adding at the end the following new sub-
12 paragraph:

13 *(C) amounts received as proceeds from any judg-
14 ment recovered in any suit brought pursuant to section
15 508(aX1) of the Asbestos School Hazard Abatement
16 Act of 1984 (20 U.8.C. 4017(aX1)).”

17 (b) ExPENDITURES FROM TRUST FuND.—Section 5(d)
18 of such Act is amended by striking out “‘as in effect on the
19 date of the enactment of this Act’’.

20 SEC. 13. TECHNICAL AMENDMENTS.

21 (8) SecTION HEADINGS.-—~(1) Section 501 is amended

22 by striking out “Src. 501.” and inserting the following sec-
23 tion heading:

fee
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“SEC. 501. SHORT TITLE.".

(2) Section 502 is amended by siriking out the section
heading and “8Ec. 502."" and inserting in liev of the section
heading the following:

“SEC, 502, FINDINGS AND PURPOSES.".

(3) Section 503 is amended by striking out the section
heading and “Sgc. 503.”" and inserting in lieu of the section
heading the following:

“SEC. 503. ASBESTOS HAZARD ABATEMENT PROGRAM.”.

(4) Section 504 is amended by striking out the section
heading and “SEc. 504."” and inserting in licu of the section
heading the following:

“SEC. 504. STATE RECORDS AND PRIORITY LISTS.”.

(5) Section 505 is amended by striking out the section
h~ading and “Sec. 505."” and inserting in lieu of the seetion
heading the following:

“SEC. 505. FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE.”.

(6) Section 506 is amended by striking out "*Src. 506.”
and inserting the following section heading:
“SEC. 506. ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS.".

(7) Section 507 is amended by striking out “*Sec. 507.”
and inserting the following section heading:

“SEC. 507. ANNUAL REPORT.”.
(8) Section 508 is amended by striking out “Sec. 508"

and inserting the following section heading:

(v')’ '
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“SEC. 508. RECOVERY OF COSTS."”.

(9) Section 509 is amended by striking out “Sgc. 509.”
and inserting the following section heading:
“SEC. 509. EMPLOYEE PROTECTION.".

(10} Section 510 is amended by striking out “Sgc.
510.” and inserting the following section hesding:
“SEC. 510. AFFECT ON RIGHTS UNDER OTHER LAWS.”

(11) Section 511 is amended by striking out “Skc.
511.” and inserting the following section heading:
“SEC. 511. DEFINITIONS.”,

(12) Section 512 is amended by striking out “Skc.
512.” and inserting the following section heading:
“SEC. 512. AUTHORIZATION.".

(b) Sussecrion HrapiNgs.—(1) Section 502(a) is
amended by inserting “FINpINGS.—"' after “(a)”".

(2) Section 502(b) is amended by inserting “Pus-
POSE.—"' after “‘(b)”.

(3) Bection 503(s) is amended by striking out *(1)” and
inserting in lieu thereof “ABATEMENT PROGEAM.—"".

(4)  Section 503() is amended by inserting
“DyTies.—" after “(b)”.

(5) Section 504(8) is amended by inserting
“RECORDS.—"’ after “(a)"”.

(6) Section 504(b) is amended—

(A) by inserting “PRIORITY List.—" after “(b)"":
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1 (B) by inserting ‘‘activities and other response ac-
2. tions” after “‘abatement’ each place it appears in sub-
3 paragraphs (A) and (B) of paragraph (1);
4 (C) in paragraph (1)(B), by striking out *‘section
5 503(b)3) and”’; and
6 (D) in paragraph (4)(C), by inserting a comma
1 after ‘‘per capita income’’.
8 (7) Section 505 is amended—
9 (A) in subsection (a), by inserting “ASSISTANCE
10 ProGRAM.—"" after “(a)”;
11 (B) in subsection (b), by inserting “APPLICATION
12 SuBMissION.—" after “(b)"";
13 (C) in subsection (c), by inserting "REviEW OF
14 APPLICATION.—" after “(c)"”;
15 (I» in subsection (e), by inserting “AMOUNT OF
16 LoAN 08 GRANT.—" after “(e)";
17 (E) in subsection (f), by inserting “LOAN AGREE-
18 MENT.—"" after *(f)”’; and
19 (F) in subsection (g), by inserting **APPLICATION
20 REQUIREMENTS.— " after ‘()"
21 (6) Section 506(a) is amended by inserting “"ReGULA-

22 TIONs.—" sfter “'(a)”.
23 (7) Section 506(d) (as redesignated by section 7) is

24 amended—

I

£ A
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17
(A) by inserting “OTHRR AUTHORITY.—

1

after

2 “(d)”; and

3 (B) by inserting a comma after “standards” the

4 first place it appears.

5 (8) Section 508(a) is amended by inserting **LoAN CoN-

6 DpITION.—" after “(a)”.

7 (9) Section 508(b) is amended by inserting “ExvrpI-

8 TIOUS RECOVERY.—" after *“(b)"".

9 (c) MisCELLANROUS TECHNICAL AMENDMENTS.—(1)
10 Section 505(b) is amended in paragraph (1) by striking out
11 the comma after “educationsl agency”’.

12 (2) Section 505(c) is amended——

13 (A) in paragraph (2), by inserting “and’’ after the
14 semicolon at the end of subparagraph (A); and

15 (B) in paragraph (2), by inserting a comma after
16 “confined space” in subparagraph (B)ii) and after
17 “techniques” in subparagraph (BXiv).

18 (3) Section 505(e) is amended by striking out ‘‘per
19 centumm” both places it appears and inserting in lieu thereof
20 “‘percent”.

21 " (4) Section 505(g) is amended—

22 (A) by redesignating the subparagraph (B) appear-
23 ing after paragraph (3) as paragraph (4) and conform-
24 ing the margin sccordingly; and
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1 (B) by inserting a comma in paragraph (4) (as so
2 redesignated) after *“section 512(b)1)".

3 (5) Section 508 is amended by striking out “sections”
4 and inserting in lieu thereof *‘section”’.

5 (6) Section 511 is amended—

6 (A) by striking out “For purposes of this title—"
7 and inserting in lieu thereof *‘For purposes of this
8 title:”';

9 (B) by striking out “the” at the beginning of each
10 paragraph and inserting in lieu thereof “The”;
11 (C) by striking out the semicolon at the end of
12 each paragraph and inserting in lieu thereof a period;
18 (D) by striking out the word “each” in paragraph
14 (3); and
15 (E) by inserting ‘“‘secondary” before “school’” 1n
16 paragraph (5).
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Mr. WHiTTAKER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am delighted to be
here today to begin the reauthorization of the Asbestos School
Hazard Abatement Act.

ASHAA embodies our desire to aid needy schools that meet the
requirements of AHERA, the Ashestos Hazard Emergency Re-
sponse Act. This legislation must be reauthorized this year in order
to ensure continued adequate funding of this important program.
ASHAA has so far distributed nearly $250 million in loans and
grants to local educational authorities. We will hear testimony
today indicating that these funds have financed one-third of the
highest priority asbestos response actions. This, in combination
with projects financed at the local level, has significantly reduced
the threat posed by the most serious school asbestos problems.

Given the budgetary realities imposed on all of us by the
Gramm-Rudman budget target, I do believe, however, that it is an
exercise in futility to double this program’s authorization. Appro-

riations without authorizations will do nothing to aid our schools.
n light of these constraints, we need to focus on a more steady
funding of ASHAA’s program. I hope that in today’s hearing we
can discuss the best use of the available dollars. We must ensure
that the projects financed by ASHAA produce the greatest health
benefit for the money that is spent.

I understand we will have testimony from both sides of the con-
troversy surrounding the recent article in Science magazine. I look
forward to hearing the latest thinking on the nature of the threat
posed by asbestos. I hope that the Environmental Protecticn
Agrncy will update us on their continuing efforts in this area. Most
of all, I want to know how we can use the available dollars to clean
up more schools and reduce the risk of disease for more children.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. LUReN. Thank you, Mr. Whittaker.

I mentioned earlier in my opening statement that we are still
working on the bill introduced by Mr. Florio. It has a permanence
and so we're going to consider it, even though Mr. Floric has gone
on to other pastures. But since he has, the other gentleman from
Ohio, Mr. Eckart, has adopted the platform and policies of Mr.
Florio—at least with reference to this legislation, 1 believe. He is
carrying on this great work and we appreciate that. He is here and
we ask him for any opening statement he may have.

I'm not talking about increasing taxes, now.

Mr. Ecxarrt. 1 was about to say, I hope that's not a reference to
redistricting. I didn't know that my district was going to carry me
to New Jersey.

Mr. Chairman, thank you. Iy Republican colleague and the
Chair have articulated a number of my concerns and my hopes. Mfr
ongoing fear is that there are 15 million schoolchildren and 1.5 mil-
lion school employees wox'kin%l in more than 40,000 suspect build-
ings around tgis count. The controversies notwithstanding, I
think we all know that a healthy educational environment is as ap-
propriate and necessary for a child's success as the simple provid-
ing of the education.

This program and its successor on reauthorization I think are de-
signed to try to assist school districts. The extent to which we are
or are not meeting that test, the extent to which government agen-
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cies responsible for implementing it are or are noi meeting that
test, will be the focus of this reauthorization. So I look forward vo
the bearing and ultimately to the markup, to the comments of my
constituents, and certainly an old friend who is here on new mat-
ters from the EPA.

As all of us with children in these circumstances fully appreci-
ate, it is sometimes the quiet and silent things in life that prove to
leave the longest lasting impressions. School environments that are
}mhealthy is one area in which we pay a very extreme premium
or it.

1 thank my colleagues.

Mr. Lusen. Thank you, Mr. Eckart.

And, unob'rusively walking into the room is the gentleman from
Maryland, Mr. McMillen. We are just completing opening state-
ments on this important issue, and it is your turn if you have any
statement. ,

Mr. McMimiLeN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 1 appreciate the
chance to say a few words.

I want to voice my support for this bhill, H.R. 8677, and I'm
plea=- . that we will have a chance to listen to the distinguished
=, -.nesses figuring out enhanced ways to reduce the health threat
posed to some 15 million children exposed to asbestos in the class-
room.

I think it is particularly disconcerting to me to realize that we
are only able to accommodate about 11 percent of the requests for
assistance received in the 1990 cycle, so the magnitude of need is
very important. I certainly support an increased authorization for
this program and want to make sure they're allocated in an effi-
cient and unbiased manner. So I am pleased that this bill requires
a reevaluaticn of the application, incﬁxding the financial and need
criteria used in determining eligibility. I am pleased to support this
legislation.

Mr. LukeN. I thank the gentleman from Maryland.

We'll now get into the meat of the batting order and call up the
EPA, Ms. Linda Fisher. That's just an old baseball saying, you
know. We could cal’ you the “cleanup” batter. You wouldn’t object
to that, would you?

Ms. FisHER. No, sir.

Mr. LukEN. Without objection, the statement of Ms. Fisher is in-
troduced into the record. You may proceed in any way you think
will be helpful.

STATEMENT OF LINDA J. FISHER, ASSISTANT ADMINISTRATOR
FOR PESTICIDES AND TOXIC SUBSTANCES, ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION AGENCY

Ms. Fister. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I appreciate the opportu-
nity to testify before your subcommittee today, and I would like to
introduce to the panel Mr. Michael Stahl, wf‘;o is the Division Di-
rector that runs the asbestos abatement program. He will be assist-
ing me in answering questions of the subcommittee.

1 welcome this opportunity to clarify the Agency’s policy to
reduce asbestos exposure in the Nation’s schools and to set the
record straight on a number of recent studies and reports regard-

)
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ing asbestus. Allow me first to address some of the specific concerns
that &x may have regarding how EPA has conducted the asbestos
insc

Is program.
In 1986, Co passed the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Re-
sponse Act, which directed EPA to issue regulations re-

gardin:iepublic and private elementary and secondary schools to in-
spect their buildings, to develop asbestos management plans, and to
submit those plans to States, and then to proceed to implement ap-
propriate response action. That response action can include such
things as in-place management, repair, encapsulation or removal.
Schools are required in carrying out their authorities to use accred-
ited personnel.

ERA also directed EPA to issue a model accreditation plan
for training and accreuiting inspectors, planners, and abatement
contractors and workers, and to promulgate final regulations for
asbestos inspection and management. The Agency completed all of
its requirements in the timeframes given them under the statute.
Tuday, at least 94 percent of the Nation’s schools have completed
their insp ~tion and maintenance plans. Therefore, after more
than 3 years of hard work by EPA, the States and the schools, we
have in place a frame work for managing asbestos in schools.

In 1987, EPA issued its model plan for training and accreditation
of asbestos inspectors, planners and abatement contractors and
workers. The model plan specified criteria for initial training, ex-
amination, and included a continuing education requirement.
AHER., required States to adopt contractor accreditation plans
that were at least as stringent as those called for by EPA. Asbestos
management personnel can gain accreditation either by meeting
the State requirements or by completing an EPA approved training
course and passing an exam. We have published a model curricu-
lum for these courses in order to promote national uniformity and

hi%};&uality.

has also financed and implemented several projects in addi-
tion to the model plan that were designed to develop and enhance
State programs. e Agency, using the National Conference of
State Legislatures, developed model legislation to assist them in de-
veioping certification programs that would be based on fees to helfy
States fund their operations. We have also provided about $5 mil-
lion to States to support their asbestos management training activi-
ties

These efforts have paid off. We estimate today that we have ap-
proximateily 100,000 people who are accredited under AHERA for
asbestos-related work. Forty-seven States have either an AHERA
accreditation program or a training and certification program
which we hope to upgrade to meet the AHERA levels.

Forty-two of those 47 States have extended their requirements to
cover all abatement work in both public and commercial buildine
as well as in schools. Additionally, we have 587 training provid
and offer over 1,100 EPA-approved courses.

EPA has begun a major evaluation of all aspects of the AHERA
program. The foal is to answer several questions that have been
asked frequently, such as, are the inspections and the response ac-
tions being properly conducted in the schools; have the manage-
ment plans proved to be useful and accurate in their information:
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have the maintenance and custodial workers received adequate
training to protect themselves and others; and has EPA effectively
notified schools of all of its AHERA requirements? We hope to see
the results of this evaluation in a few months.

I would like now to discuss the school loan and grant mfam,
which was established in 1984. As you know, ASHAA established a
program within EPA to provide financial assistance to public and
nonprofit schools to help them conduct their asbestos projects.
Under the provisions of ASHAA, EPA provides financial assistance
to the local education agencies which meet two criteria—one, the
have serious asbestos hazards, and two, they have demonstrated fi-
nancial need.

In May of this year, we announced our 1990 awards. Since the
p{ggram began in 1985, including the 1990 awards, we have distrib-
uted $245 million ASHAA loans and grants to fund over 2,400 indi-
vidual abatement projects. This investment of Federal funds has
addressed a significant portion of the most severe asbestos prob-
lems in the most needy schools.

This is the final year of the ASHAA program and legislation
before this committee proposes to reauthorize it. While the admin-
istration does not oppose the reauthorization at this time, we are
concerned that it may not be the best use of scarce Federal re-
sources for a problem which we have considered to be largely a
State and local responsibility.

Having dxscusseé the issues relating to our administration of the
school asbestos program, let me take a minute to turn to another
topic; that is, the controversy over the risks associated with expo-
sure to asbestos in buildings.

Much of the recent debate surrounds the level of danger posed by
various types of ashestos fibers. Some news reports have seemed to
indicate that one fiber can kill. Other sources, such as the January
19 article in Science magazine, have appeared to suggest that the
most common forms of asbestos are actually safe to humans.

This controversy has obvious implications for any Federal poli-
cies concerning asbestos. 1 appreciate the opportunity to clarify
EPA’s c¢urrent policies and requirements for asbestos control in
schools und in public and commercial buildings.

First of all, EPA believes that, although asbestos is hazardous,
human risk of asbestos disease depends upon exposure. Asbestos is
known to cause cancer and other disease if the fibers are inhaled
into the lung and remain there. This knowledge is based on studies
involving human exposure, particularly at very high levels. Howev-
er, the mere presence of a hazardous substance such as asbestos
that might be in a ceiling no more implies disease than the poten-
tial for poison in a medicine cahinet implies poisoning. Asbestos
fibers must be released from the material in which they are con-
tained, and an individual must breathe those fibers in order to
incur any chance of disease.

Point No. 2. Prevailing asbestos levels in buildings seem to be
very low. Accordingly, the health risk to building occupants also
appears to be very low.

n 1987, an EPA study found that the air levels in a segment of
Federal buildings with management programs were so low as to be
virtually indistinguishable from levels outside these buildings.
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While these data are not conclusive, and we are seeking more in-
formation thro:ﬁh a major research effort, the present evidence
suggests that building occupants face only a very slight risk.

Point No. 3. Removal is often not a building owner’s best course
of action to reduce asbestos exposure. Although we believe that
most asbestos removals that have currently been taken have been
conducted properly, asbestos removal practices, by their very
design, disturb the material and can significantly elevate levels of
the fiber in the air. Un'ess all safi are properly applied and
strictly adhered to, exposure in buildings can rise perhaps to levels
where we know disease can occur just because a removal has oc-
curred. Consequently, an ill-conceived or tmrl conducted removal
project can actually increase risk rather ecrease or eliminate
it.

Point No. 4. EPA only requires asbestos removal in order to pre-
vent significant public exposure to asbestos during buildin%‘ renova-
tion or demolition. We do not require removal as part of the asbes-
tos in schools program. Prior to a major renovation or demolition,
asbestos materials that are likely to be disturbed or damaged, such
that significant amounts of asbestos could be released, must be re-
moved using approved practices under EPA's NESHAP program.
Asbestos removal before we swing wrecking balls into buildings is
necessary in those cases to protect public health. However, this
cannot be said of an arbitrary asbestos removal project which actu-
ally could increase health risks unless performed properly. That is
why EPA has not mandated as part of its school program asbestos
removal beyond this one NESHAP requirement.

Fact No. 5. EPA does recommend in-place management when-
ever asbestos is discovered. A proactive. in-place management pro-
gram will usually control fiber release, particularly when the mate-
rials are not significantly damaged and unlikely to be disturbed.
In-place management does not mean ‘“do nothing.” It involves
training, awareness, and notification, as well as special control pro-
cedures and 1pex'iodic surveillance. Taken together, these measures
can effectively minimize asbestos risks in most situations without
the cost and the disruption of a removal.

I hope that I have addressed the issues of interest to this subcom-
mittee, and I would be pleased to answer any questions that you
might have concerning our asbestos program.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

[The prepared statement of Ms. Fisher follows:]

PRIPARKD STATEMENT OF LINDA J. FisHER, ASSISTANT ADMINISTRATOR FOR PESTICIDES
AND Toxic SussTANCES, .S, ENVIRONMENTAL PROTRECTION AGENCY

Mr. Chairman and distinguished members of this subcommittee, I am Linda
Fisher, Assistant Administrator for the Office of Pesticides and Toxic Substances
[OPTS] of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. 1 very much welcome the op-
portunity to clarify the Agency's policies to reduce asbestos exposure in the Nation
schools. I would also like to set the record straight with regard to a number of
recent studies and reports which have received a lot of media attention.

Allow me to first address some of the specific concerns you have regarding the
EPA asbestos in schools program.

Implementation of AHERA

As you know, on October 22, 1986, President Reagan signed the Asbestos Hazard
Emergency Response Act [AHERA], under which the EPA is directed to issue regu-
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lations that require public and private elementary and secondary schools to inspect

their buildings for as , develop asbestos management plans and submit them to
their State, and to implement appropriate nse actions such as in-place manage-
ment, repair, encapsufation or removal. also required schools to use accred-

ited personnel to mxs out these inspection ma.na?‘ement activities.
established very ambitious deadlines for EPA and the schools to imple-
ment this program. EPA was required to issue by April 1987 a Model Accreditation
Plan for training and accrediting inspectors, planners, and abatement contractors
and workers. EPA was also required to promulgate final regulations for asbestos in-
glgfcﬁan and management by October 1987. The Agency met both these deadlines.
e

naticn’s schools also faced a difficult deadline of r 1988 for completi:g
ins ons and submitting management plans to States. Congress later amend
A to give schools the option of extending this deadline to May 1988. EPA’s

analysis indicates that at least 94 percent of the nation’s schools now have complet-
ed their inspections and management plans. Thus, after more than 3 years of hard
work by EPA, States, and the schocls, a framework for managing asbestos risks in
schools is notv in place.

Accreditation of Asbestos Personnel

As mentioned above, EPA was directed to issue under AHERA a model accreditu-
tion plan to provide training and accreditation for persons who inspect, manage and
abate asbestos in schools. The training and accrediting of sufficient numbers of in-
spectors and planners to meet the demands being placed on school districts by the
AHERA requirements posed a major challenge for us. The competence of these ac-
credited persons, and the quality of the work they perform in our schools is an ongo-
ing concern for EPA. EPA has substantially increased the number of competent as-
bestos professionals. In fact, we believe that EPA's university training centers, and
a couple of leading labor training programs alone have accredited nearly 60,000 in-
dividuals. In all, we estimate 100,000 or more AHERA-accredited persons are avail-
able nationally for asbestos-related work today.

The model plan specified criteria necessaRxX for initial training, examination and
continuing education required under AHERA for accreditation of persons in all ns-
bestos management disciplines, including insg%ctom, management planners, abate-
ment supervisors and abatement workers. ese persons can be accredited by
States, which are required under AHERA to adopt contractor accreditation plans at
least as stringent as the EPA mode! plan by July 1989 or by completing an EPA.
approved training course and passing an examination.

e developed a system to insure the fast, efficient, and competent review of pro-
posad accreditation courses submitted to EPA by private training organizations. As
of February 1390 a total of 587 training providers are offering 1,113 EPA-approved
training courses for accreditation, including 487 asbestos worker courses, and 373
courses for contractors and supervisors. EPA has promoted national consistency by
publishing model course curricula for AHERA contractor, inspector and manage-
ment planner training, while model materials for abatement workers and custodial
workers will be available this summer.

EPA has financed and implemented several projects in addition to the Model Plan
that were designed to develop and enhance State accreditation programs: EPA
through the National Conference of State Legislatures [NCSL), provided the States
with model legislation to assist them in developing contractor certification programs
and fee-based funding options to support these programs; since 1985, EPA has
awarded $2.5 million in grants to 39 States for the purpose of establishing abate-
ment contrector and worker certification programs; in 1987, the Agency approved

nts totalling more than $1 million for 17 States to help them develop
inspector and management planner accreditation programs; and in 1990, EPA has
recently distributed an additional $1.5 aillion for State activities, which included
accreditation programs as of our effort to enhance State asbestos gmgrams.

Today, due in part to EPA seed funding and technical assistance, 20 States now
have accreditstion grograms that meet ERA standards for abatement contrac-
tors and workers who conduct school projects. In addition, another 27 States have
some type of licensing or certification program for asbestos abatement which can
upgrade to AHERA levels. Of these 47 States, 42 have extended their asbestos train-
ing and certification requirements to cover abatement work in public and commer-
cial buildings as well as schools. This is a dramatic improvement from 1985, when
only four States had any contractor certification program at all. Now only three
States have no certification program at all.

Several other training and accreditation efforts should be noted. First, EPA has
provided funding to the National Asbestos Council [NAC], the nation’s largest inter-
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disciplinary asbestos professional organization, to develop standard national exami-
nations for AHERA asccreditation dmcx}:lmes and promote reciprocity among States.
In addition, in 1989 and 1990, EPA will provide a total of $1.9 million to joint labor-
management trust funds to increase a.s%estm worker training. Also, the Asbestos
National Emission Standard for Hazardous Air Pollutants [NESHAP], which re-
quires asbestos removal to protect puslic health during major building renovations
and demolitions, is being revised this summer to include new training for the onsite
work supervisor. Finn:g, EPA, under the Toxic Substances Control Act A, ex-
tends the protections afforded by the U.S. Occuiational Safety and Health Adminis-
tratilon [OQHA] to private sector asbestos workers to State and local government
employees.

Evaluation of AHERA

As the AHERA program has progressed, EPA has begun to evaluate the effective-
ness of the inspection and management regulations and the accreditation programs
we have established. A major evaluation of the AHERA program is underway, and
we should begin to receive results from some portion of the evaluation in the next 6
to 12 months.

Five studies will comprise the AHERA evaluation. The first study will include site
visits and reinspections. The objective ol this study is to ascertain whether or not
inspections mandated by AHERA are being done properly and whether material is
properly assessed.

The second study will measure the quality of the management plans in providing
useful, accurate, and detailed information. Management plans will be compared to
the original AHERA inspection reports. An analysis of the options in the plans for
managing the asbestos will be done to see if they are specific enough to provide real
guidance to the Local Education Agencies [I.LEA’s]. Between 200 to 400 schools will
be completely reinspected and their management plans will be reviewed for accura-
cy and completeness.

The third study includee site visits to determine whether maintenance and custo-
dial personnel have received training, and also examines the operation and mainte-
nance plan and determines whether it is being implemented.

The fourth study deals with the effectiveness of noti‘ication for AHERA require-
ments. This study seeks to identify the people who were notified, the medium
through which the notification was accomplished, and the response of the people
who were notified.

The fifth study is a series of onsite visits designed to evaluate resnponse actions.
This study seeks to determine what response actions have been or are being done
and whether or not they are completed in a professional manne:.

Asbestos Loan and Grant Program

1 would like now to discuss the school loan and grant program established under
the Asbestos School Hazard Abatement Act [ASHAA] of 1984.

As you know, ASHAA established a program within EPA to provide financial as-
sistance to public and nonprofit private schools to help them conduct asbestos abate-
ment projects. Under the provisions of ASHAA, EPA is to provide financial assist-
apcmlce t;;d LEA’s which have both serious asbestos hazards and a demonstrated finan-

need,

Since its inception in 1985, EPA has distributed a total of $245 million in ASHAA
funds, for 2,400 abatement projects. Public schools have been awarded $281.6 mil-
lior Private schools have received $31.6 million. As a result of the abatement
projects conducted using ASHAA funding, ure of students and scheol employ-
ees to asbestos will be reduced by an estimated 19.4 million hours each week.

Resnrdlggsthe 1990 award cycle, $48,443,000 was distributed to 120 LEA’s. EPA
reviewed applications submitted by public schoo! districts and private schools
from 46 States. Those applications contain 3,352 separate abatement projects, in
1,856 schools. Our review of theee projects included approximately 100 field i
tions by EPA Regional personnel to verify project descriptions and hazard data. The
awards to the 129 LEA’s will fund 206 projects in 168 schools, further reducing as-
bestos exposure wo students and school emp! og{e:a by 2 million heurs per week.

Including the 1990 awards distributed in May, a total of $245 million in Federal
fundln%'hhas been provided for asbestos sbatement in local schools over the past 5
years, This investment of Faderal funds has addresed a significant portion of the
rost severe ashestos hazards in the most needy schoe's. While we do not oppose re-
authorization at this time, we sre concerned that this may not be tho best use of
scarce resources for a problem which is eseentially a State and local responsibility.
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Risk, Exposure, and Abatement Issues

Now that I have discussed issues relating to EPA’s administration of AHERA and
ASHAA, let me turn to another topic.

Regrettably, EPA's asbestos policies have recently been the subject of several er-
roneous news reports and at least two seemingly contradictory exposure studies
which have confused, rather than enlightened, the public.

For example, a national television news report on asbestos in floor tile last No-
vember suggested that dangerous fiber levels were generated through routine floor
stripping operations to remove wax from tile. This news report promoted a “one
fiber can kill” image in the public’s mind of an asbestos material that rarely if ever
releases fibers under normal conditions. On the other hand, an article on as

ublished on January 19 in Science magazine, followed by various editorials, has
n interpreted to suggest that the most common form of asbestos fibers in build-
i are "safe’” and do not warrant our attention or concern.
rankly, 1 appreciate this chance to clarify the ncy’s current policies and re-
quirements for asbestos contro] in schools and public and commercial buildings. I
would like to provide that clarification in the form of five facts.

FACT ONE: Although asbestos is hazardous, human risk of asbestos disease depends
upon exposure.

Asbestos is known to cause cancer and other disease if fibers are inhaled into the
lung and remain there. This conclusion is based upon studies involving human expo-
sure, particularly exposure at high levels. While evidence is better for some types of
asbestos, there is no clear proof that other (tiypes are not as potent. EPA, based on
careful evaluation of available scientific evidence, has adopted a prudent approach
in its regulations of assuming that all fibers are equally potent. ile, as the Sci-
ence article indicated, exposure to chrysotile or common white asbestos may be less
likely to cause some asbestos-related diseases, various scientific organizations, in-
cluding 1tlhe National Academy of Sciences, support EPA’s more prudent regulatory
approach.

&ith respect to the socalled ““one fiber can kill” image, the present scientific evi-
dence will not allow us to state unequivocally that there is a level of exposure below
which there is a zero risk, but the risk in fact could be negligible or even zero.

However, the mere presence of a hazardous substance, such as asbestos on an au-
ditorium ceiling, no more implies disease than a potential poison in a medicine cabi-
net or under a kitchen sink implies poisoning. Asbestos fibers must be released from
the material in which they are contained, and an individual must breathe those
fibers in order to incur any chance of disease.

While scientists have been unable to agree on a level of asbestos exposure at
which we, as public policy makers, can confidently say, “there i8 no risk,” this does
not mean that all or any exposure is inherently rous. To the contrary, almost
every day we are ex to some prevailing level of asbestos fibers in buildi or
experience some ambient level in the outdoor air. And, based upon available data,
very few among us, given existing controls, have contracted or wall ever contract an
asbestos-related disease at these low prevailing levels.

FACT TWO: Prevailing asbestos levels in buildings—the levels that you and 1 face
as office workers or occupants—seem to be very low, based upon available data.
Accordinglfr, the health risk to building occupants—you and me—aiso appears
to be very low.

Indeed, a 1987 EPA study found that air levels in a segment of Federal buildings
with management programs were so low as to be virtuslly indistinguishable from
levels outside these buildings. While these data are not conclusive and we are se<k-
ing more information through a major research effort, the present evidence suggests
that building occupants face only a very slight risk. Severe health problems attrib-
uted to asbestos exposure have generally been experienced by workers in industries
such as shipbuilding, where they were constantly exposed to very high fiber levels
ix): tl‘me air, often without any of the worker protection now afforded to them under
the law.

FACT THREE: Removal is often not a building owner's best course of action to
reduce asbestos exposure. In fact, an improper removal can create a dangerous
situation where none previously existed. It is important for everyone to under-
stand thut AHERA regulations do not requirement removal of asbestos.

Although we believe most asbestos removals are being conducted properly, asbes-
tos removal practices by their very design disturb the material and significantiy ele-
vate air levels, which must be carefully contained during the removal project.

Unless all safeguards are properly applied and strictly adhered to, exposure in the
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building can rise, perhaps to levels where we know disease can occur. Consequently,
an ill-conceived or poorly conducted removal preject can actually increase rather
than eliminate risk.

FACT FOUR: EPA only requires asbestos removal in order to prevent significant
public exposure to asbestos during building renovation or demolition.

Prior to a major renovation or demolition, asbestos material that is likely to be
disturbed or damaged to the extent that significant amounts of asbestos would be
released, must be removed using approved practices under EPA’s asbestos
NESHAP. Demolishing a building filled with asbestos, for example, would like!
result in significantly increased exposure and could create an imminent hazard.
Clearly, asbestos removal before the wrecking ball swings into action is appropriate
to protect public health. However, this cannot be said of arbitrary asbestos removal
projects, which, as noted above, can actually increase health risk unless properldy
performed. This, in part, is why EPA has no mandated asbestos removal from build-
ings beyond the NESHAP requirement, which has the effect of gradually and ra-
tionally taking all remaining asbestos building materials out of the inventory.

FACT Flr\efcl;}: EPA does recommend in-place management whenever asbestos is dis-
covered.

Instead of removal, a proactive in-place management program, which includes
training, awareness, special contro] procedures and periedic surveillance, will usual-
ly control fiber release, particularly when the materials are not significantly dam-
aged and not likely to be disturbed. In’:piace management, of course, does not mean
“do nothing.” When a building owner finds asbestos in his facility and ignores it, he
can’t establish and enforce procedures to ensure that the asbestos is not disturbed.
He can't ensure that fiber levels do not rise. An in-place management program does
not have to be extraordinarily expensive. Management costs will depend upon the
amount, condition and location of the material.

As ] am sure you are aware, maintenance and service workers in these buildings,
in the course of their daily activities, may disturb materials and can elevate asbes-
tos fiber levels, especially for themselves, if they are not proﬁgirly trained and pro-
tected. For these persons, risk may be significantly higher. This is a primary con-
cern of EPA and other Federal, State and local agencies which regulate asbestos,
and the Agency is currently reviewing recent studies regarding asbestos exposure of
maintenance and service workers. An active in-place management program will
reduce any unnecessary exposure to these workers and others.

To summarize the facts, as we now know them: While asbestos is clearly hazard-
ous, its risk to human health depends on the degree of exposure; asbestos air levels
in buildings, and corresponding risk to occupants, appears to be very low, given
available data; asbestos removal, while necessary to protect public health during
renovation or demolition, is not otherwise required by EPA and is often not the
buildiﬁgwner's best abatement choice; and EPA’s asbestos program for schools and
its guidance for other building owners, which is founded on in-place management, is
designea to keen these low prevalent fiber levels low, through recognition and man-
agement.

We agree with Dr. Arthur Upton, former director of the National Cancer Institute
and head of New York University's Institute of Environmental Medicine, who, in a
letter to the New England Journal of Medicine, advocates cautien in dealing with
asbestos until better information is available. Dr. Upton maintains that “abandon-
ment of asbestos inspection and abatement is not justified” by the current data.

Further, we are presently attempting to increase the knowledge base on asbesios
on several fronts, which include a public dialéxgue, and & major research p’;ﬁmm.

Through the public dialogue process . . . EPA has sponsored a poli i e
wmong groups which have a major interest in the asbestos policy negarz.ng public
and commercial buildings. These groups include building owners, realtors, mortgage
bankers, insurers, building workers unions, public health interests, asbestos contrac-
tors and consultants, asbestos manufacturers, and representatives of Federal, State
and local organizations which have responsibility for the development and imple-
mentation of asbestos policies.

The policy dialogue is now in its final stages, and EPA expects the dialogue par-
ticipants to gresent the Agency with a set of general recommendations about what
they think should be done to address the issue of asbestos in public and commercial
buildings. The dialogue participants have discussed at length accreditation, training,
and improper removal issues. EPA has made a public commitment to consider thor-
oughly any recommendations offered by the dialofgue participants and to decide, as
soon as possible, whether to carry out any or all of the recommendations.

37-486 ~ 91 ~ 2
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Through the Health Effects Institute Research . . . Finallgbasbesms regsearch ini-
tinted by the Health Effects Institute [HEI] in Boston with EPA, Congressional and
private sector support will include comprehensive monitoring studies to better char-
acterize asbestos exposure in buildings. HEI's initial literature review will also ex-
amine current research which deals with fiber potency.

At EPA, we are particularly concerned about potential “peak exposures”—those
which might occur in buildings when material is disturbed or accidentally damaged.
Such disturbance can elevate levels not only for workers, but perhaps also for build-
ing occupants who might ordinarily not experience high levels. “Peak’ levels have
been known to reach&e range of occupationsl exposure for maintenance and serv-
ice personnel. HEI's research should be very helpful in increasing our knowledge on
the frequency, duration and intensity of these "peaks”.

I hope this addresses the issues of interest to the subcommittee regarding EPA’s
asbestos programs, and sets the record straight on the Agency's policies and recom-
mendations mlaﬁnﬁmtco“;sbesws management in the nation’s schools. 1 appreciate
the opgortnnity to di these igsues. I will be happy to answer any questions that
the subcommittee may have.

Mr. Luken. Well, do you think we should reauthorize ASHAA?

Ms. FisuER. Mr. Chairman, carefully constructed words from the
administration is that we do not :(fpose it at this time. Given the
demands of a lot of schools placed on them by the AHERA pro-
gram, my sense is that they are strongly in need of these funds.

Mr. LukeN. That’s an improvement. Certainly the whole thing is
an improvement over previous administrations. I'm not sure that’s
going to get the job done, but it's an improvement. It may not be
good enough, but it's better.

I believe you said that for occupants in buildings the risk is low
for asbestos, for contacting disease or being injured; is that right?
You said that for occupants, the risk is low.

Ms. Fisuer. The risk of exposure to normal building occupants,
such as you and I in this building or in our offices and homes, is
generally thought to be very low. At those low levels——

Mr. Luken. I didn't think you said normal building occupants,
but that'’s what you meant, right, regardless of what you said?
W}l::tl'l? you said the risk was low, you were referring to the risk of
w

Ms. Fisugr. Exposure to levels of asbestos that would cause them
risk. We're trying to distinguish the exposures that you and I
living or working in buildings might be exgsed to as compared to
what perhaps service employees or people that work in and around
asbestos and might get much higher and more elevated levels of ex-
posure through their work.

Mr. Luken. All right. Then those who are in maintenance, if
there is asbestos in the building, then they very well might be ex-
posed by the nature of their work, by frequently being in contact
with the areas where the asbestos is likely to be; isn'v that right?

Ms. Fisugr. They could be——-

Mr. LUREN. I mean where it is. I shouldn’t say likely to be, but
where it is. Maintenance dpeople. '

Ms. Fisuer. They could be exposed to higher levels that general
building occupants, that’s correct.

Mr. Luxken. Dangerous levels?

Ms. Fisuxxr. It depends on the building and it depends on what
t of asbestos mxgﬁx‘ t be in the building, and whether or not
they're trained to work in and around asbestos.

r. LUKEN. Then isn’t it a little dangerous to say—not danger-
ous, but isn’t it inaccurate to say that as needn’t be removed?
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18 there always a danger to certain people when the asbestos is
there, for certain occupations?

Ms. FisHER. One of the important components of the school pro-
gram is that when inspection has been done of a building, that
they notify the employees where the asbestos is. That is so the
service employees, as you suggest, might be able to protect them-
selves as they are working in and around asbestos. I mean, it
doesn’t mean necessarily-—

Mr. LugeN. We're not suggesting that janitors are going to wear
some of those spacesuits, are we?

Ms. Fisaer. Well, they wouldn’t have to do that, but they might
want to be careful of actions they take that might increase the dis-
ruption or disturbance of asbestos.

. LUKEN. But they just might not know what those actions
are. They might just be careless.

Ms. Fisugr. Well, under AHERA——

Mr. LugeN. We wouldn’t want to penalize them with some of the
penalties that are incumbent upon asbestos exposure just for being
negligent, would we?

Ms. Fisser. Under the schools program——

Mr. LukeN. Incidentally, I admit that right now I'm trying to be
rovocative, and I don’t necessarily adhere slavishly to everything
'm suggesting—although none of it is inaccurate. But we are deal-

ing with a lethal subject, a potentially lethal subject.

. FisHER. There are ways that asbestos workers, people that
work in and around asbestos, can protect themselves short of re-
quiring removal.

Mr. LUkeN. But there are, but we're not talking about—and I've
been ~ them, and I'm sure you have, too, and I've been to these
build s where they bring the teams in and they're all dressed up
in the asbestos suits to protect themselves against the asbestos.
They 1 ok like asbestos suits, whatever they are. They look like
men from Mars, They’ve got all that fancy equipment and every-
thing. But that doesn’t apply to the ordinary, normal school, where
we've got a janitor or two around who don't have all that equip-
ment and don’t have all that instruction, and they’re doing a thou-
sand other things. They’re not just doing one job.

Ms. FisHER. Schools are, under AHERA, required to have train-
ing for their maintenance workers. Part of the training is to edu-
cate them as to where the asbestos might be located and how not to
disturb it. So when I talk about training, it is not——

Mr. LukeN. I know. You said that before. That’s the reason I re-
sponded with what I just said. I don’t think we're getting anywhere
on this particular point. You can have all the training programs
and all the manuals and whatever, but if you've got a school build-
ing where there's a couple of maintenance people, maybe one, and
each one of those has a thousand things to do, and they don’t have
all the fancy equipment and so on, what good are those rules and
what good are those manuals? That person isn’t going to have all
of that at his or her fingertips at the time they are operating in
the areas where the conditions for exposure are present.

I think those rules, if I may finish and elaborate a little, are fine
when we're talking about contractors who have all the equipment,
who go in specifically for the purpose of abating. But I don’t think
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they are really, in fact, going to protect maintenance workers who
are not geing to be constantly mindful of those instructions that
they've had for some time,

FisHER. Hopefulliy they would change the behavior of some of
the maintenance people. 1 don’t think we should recommend the
wholesale removal of all asbestos anywhere because we're worried
that some of the maintenance employees won’t follow proper train-

m%dr. LukeN. We might disagree on that point.

Ms. Fisuer. There are risks associated with the actual removal
that might pose even ter risks to the maintenance employees
as well as to the schoolchildren and everyone else in the building.
What I would hope is that we could improve our training and edu-
cation programs for all the people that are working in buildin
that have asbestos in them and preserve the need to remove only
in those situations where the asbestos is in a condition that it does
need to be taken out.

Mr. LukeN. Okay. Well, we could continue this. I find it a very
interesting discussion, but other members will have questions, also.

Just let me turn to the issue of—do you think that schools, many
of them, feel compelled to remove the asbestos today?

Ms. Fiseer. Mr. Chairman, we are very worried that there has
been a lot of misunderstanding or miscommunication of what EPA
re%iuires. In talking with various school districts——

r. Luxen. That might mean the answer is “yes’?

Ms. Fisaer. The answer is “yes”.

Mr. LuxeN. Go ahead. I like the explanation, but I just wanted to
make sure that-——

Ms. Fisuxxr. No, we are very concerned.

Mr. Luken. Go ahead with the explanation. I'm sorry.

Ms. Fisuer. When I read Science magazine, which is a very pres-
tigious journal, and it falsely states EPA’s position concerning re-
movals, that tells me we have a problem.

The Agency has met with a lot of individuals from different
school districts, different school associations, and they have misin-
terpreted it. I have met with several members of the House and
Senate who have said to me, quite frankly, they believe EPA man-
dates removal of asbestos in schools. So, absolutely, you are correct.
We have a communication problem which we are trying to come to
grips with, because the program and the law and our regulations

0 not require removal.

Mr. LuxeN. One final question. If you're a school administrator
and you're looking at this issue, you say should I remove it, and
then you get the advice, well, it's not necessarg to remove it, that it
can be entombed—that’s a word of art, isn’t it’

Ms, Encapsulation.

Mr. LugeN. Encapsulated or entombed. Entombed is used in
some other areas. But to describe the same process of wrapping it
ug‘,) protecting people from it, in place. That's what we're talking
about, encapsulation, right?

Ms. Fisuer. That's correct.

Mr. Luken. But that encapsulation is n-~cessarily a temporary
covering, isn’t it, a temporary protection? There is the inevitability
that somewhere down the line, if the scheol building lasts long
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enough, that encapsulation will deteriorate and the vulnerability
will occur, right?

Ms. Fisuer. That’s correct. You can manage asbestos in place
today, but several years down the road you may end up having to
remove it.

Mr. Luken. So if you're making that decision, you might be in-
clined toward removal for that reason?

Ms. FisuERr. I would hope not. T would hope that the balance of
the concern about unnecessary exposure, as well as expensive re-
moval, would lead people to a more proactive, in-piace manage-
ment and include in that a periodic inspection so that you would be
able to track the condition of the asbestos. I don’t think the argu-
ment that “because I may some day have to remove I will go ahead
and remove it now’’ is a good one.

Mr. Luken. T suspect other members of the panel are going to
question you on your response that makes the economic argument,
so I will desist at this point and call upon the gentleman from
Kansas for any questions he may have at this time.

Mr. WrHrrrAkER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Ms. Fisher, I really have only one question which I don’t think
has been covered. Sometimes we hear a great deal about the theory
that one fiber can kill. Yet we’ve never really required cleanup to
that level.

What is the background range of asbestos fibers and what do we
breathe in everyday, outdoor air?

Ms. Fisuer. Congressman Whittaker, we don’t have information
as to what is the common outdoor level. That might vary in given
locations of the country. We have, as part of the research effort
that we have commissioned with the Health Effects Institute to
look at, one of the issues they're going to focus on is what are back-
ground levels, ambient levels, and is there a way we can identiffy
what, if any, risk is posed by exposure at that level. But we don't
have & number that would give you kind of an across-the-board
background.

Mr. Warrraker. All right. Thank you.

Mr. Luken. I thank the gentleman.

The gentleman from Ohio, Mr. Eckart, is recognized.

Mr. T. Ms. Fisher, I'm not quite sure what the testimony
reflects, but if not many people can explain what your position is,
either that means we don’t know your position or we don’t under-
stand your position.

With that caveat, let me just simply suggest that we probably
are better served, if in fact we disagree, if people understand what
we're disagreeing about.

Ms. FisHERr. Are you talking about the legislation, or to remove
or not to remove?

Mr. Eckarr. The question of to remove or not to remove; that is
the question.

We need to get that resolved, 1 suppose, to some greater degree,
at least to clarify EPA’s views.

Now, as to the matter before us, it is not sufficient to say “‘we do
not oppose”. I do not oppose my son becoming a millionaire. The
qﬁxgstxon is whether or not I or he can do anything to influence
that outcome in life. You need to figure out what you're going to do
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to influence the outcome of this bill, which I suspect has some sig-
nificant interest to the EPA. So we're going to work on this bill
with you or without you. You had best :gre out what you're going
to do with it, either in the context of inistering it or influenc-
ing its outcome.

I bave a couple of concerns. One is focusing on the whole per
capita income question. Having been in the State legislature for 6
years, 1 understand fully that there are vagaries in the ability of
school districts to do a wide variety of things. Some States have no
income tax; some States have a peculiar basis of funding education
with property taxes or excise taxes.

To what extent is per capita income, based on which you either
make a cut or don’t make a cut to be eligible for a program, a real-
istic assessment of a school district’s ability to pay for a removal or
encapsulation program?

Ms. FisHer. A couple of points. First of all, right now we do use
the per capita income basis. We use that coming out of a broad dis-
cussion that we had with a variety of interested groups in how best
to set the financial need test. We took a lot of comment from
school associations, from PTA’s and others, that are concerned
about how we were going to allocate these funds. On the basis of
that, we decided that the most equitable way to deal with the
public schools was to use the per capita.

We have had about 4 to 5 years of experience with that. My
sense is that there’s growing concern that maybe this is no longer
the best way, that there are several schools where the per capita
income does not fit, particularly those schools that are in high cost-
of-living areas. So the per capita income may be high, taking them
over the trigger, but it doesn’t reflect necessarily whether or not
they really are more needy than some that meet the per capita
test.

In response to concerns—and we get hundreds of letters from
members of Congress and from school districts—we have made the
decision to revisit the financial needs formula. Again, we will go
out and get comment from the interested people, from the school
associations and others, so that we come up with criteria that
people feel more equitably distributes limited funds.

Another thought we have had—and we will also put to this
group—is whether we should have an exceptions policy, so that you
might use the per capita income generally across the board but set
aside a certain category of money for people who are discriminated
because that doesn't accurately reflect their needs because of spe-
cial circumstances. So we are doing kind of an in-house review of
those issues and some time this summer we're going to begin a
public dialogue to get some more input to face the question of
whether or not we need to change that test.

The problem is, there is limited funds and there is high need,
andtggw best to allocate it, so that people feel they were fairly
treated.

Mr. Eckarr. I understand that you have to make some cuts here.
The question ig, is the test that you use to impose those cuts fair. If
you can draw bright lines that people understand, then you elimi-
nate some significant level of controversy, too.
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The ad..inistration has not requested fundin%é‘or the implemen-
tation of this bill in this current budget that's before us. In fact, I
think the President proposed the elimination of the program. How
did the administration get to that point and what was EPA’s posi-
tion in the calculations that went into that budget determination?

Ms. FisHer. I think, since the beginning of the program, this year
included, the administration felt that the funding for asbestos in-
spections and maintenance plan was largely a State and local
matter and needed to be funded by the State and local govern-
ments; therefore, the administration has not sought it.

I don’t believe—and I would have to check. I know we did not
request it as we went through the budget process this year, and I
would have to check on the years prior to that. The question is now
before us, as we begin to look to tge 1992 budget cycle, whether we
will seek it or not.

Mr. Eckart. 1 anticipate, in conclusion, Mr. Chairman, that
we're going to move this bill, as I said before. Ms. Fisher, I think
1};ou know at least how this gentleman proceeds. 1 just need to

now where you're coming from. If you're with me, I want to make
sure your interests are well represented, and if you're not, I will
advise you that the hearings are being held in rooms other than
where we are actually going to meet.

I suspect that the public interest in this bill is sufficient to war-
rant that the Congress proceed. I certainly would hope, at least as
this panel has most recently experienced, that the administration
does not find itself in a position of not cooperating with us and
then thrusting a last minute veto threat for us over a peculiar pro-
vision about which we found little comment during the legislative
process and forcing a needless showdown. That is not in your inter-
ests and it certainly isn’t in ours.

. With that, Mr. Chairman, 1 would yield back the balance of my
ime.

Mr. LukeN. I thank the §entleman.

Did you have a response’

Ms. Fisurr. Yes. First of all, on the technical aspects of the bill,
we would like an opportunity to work with you. It is a step, from
my perspective, that we have moved the administration from op-
posing this to not opposing it, running all the risks that ambiguity
entails. I felt it was better to be in the position we are now than to
be very clear about op{)osing it.

Mr. EckArT. And I'll be happy when you take that next step.

Mr. LuxkeN. The division of government that we have, or the sep-
aration of powers, is broadening into more and more segments. I'm
glad to hear you speaking of the administration in the third
person.

But maybe we’ll have to have a fourth person.

The gentleman from Maryland is recognized.

Mr. McMiLLEN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I was curious, in looking through your testimony, as to your com-
ment on other buildings by schools, particularly Federal buildings.
Obviously, some research has been done in this regard. What
would be the EPA’s position on authorizing funding for sim.lar
ki’?f‘i? of activities in Federal buildings, a model program, if you
will?

h
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Ms. Fisuer. Congressman McMillen, a couple of years ago the
Agency undertook a survey not only of Federal buildings but of
public and commercial buildings and submitted a report on asbes-
tos in those buildings to Congress. At that time, in February 1988,
we suggested that the Agency would report back to Congress in 3
years, which is this coming February, about how to deal with
glugligl éx.nd commercial buildings I would include in that the Feder-

uildings.

We deferred principally because the schools program, which was
the focus of most concern, was just getting up and running. We we
worried that we didn’t have enough accredited people to do the in-
spection work or the other contract work involved with the asbes-
tos program and suggested that the Congress and the Agency defer
considering expanding the program: until we, first of all, had devel-
oped a good pool of people to do the work, and second, had an op-
portunity to evaluate its strengths and weaknesses before we
moved into a larger segment of buildings. So I would anticipate
later, in about 9 months, the Agency will be coming back up to the
Congress with some ideas about what are the next steps, given
what we know, to expand the program to other buildings.

Mr. McMiLLeN. In your own testimony you indicated the 1988
and 1987 studies, that the data was basically inconclusive and that
no major research effort has been undertaken. As you indicated,
tba}:’g} supposed to be sent to the Congress ia February, is that
right?

Ms. FisHER. There’s a couple of activities. One is the research
effort. The first part of that is a literature review that the Health
Effects Institute is doing. We should have that by early next year,
early 1991. So that will be available to the Congress as well as to
the Agency.

Second, we suggested that EPA, taking this information into ac-
count, report back the Congress with some recommendations about
how to deal with other buildings.

Mr. McMiLLEN. Extending your logic a litt!» bit with regards to
the administration’s lack of support of funding for this effort be-
cause, in their view, it's the province of State and local govern-
ment, clearly, if Federal buildings are involved here, and if the
data that comes back that is conclusive with regard to risk levels
and so forth, you might conclude that the administration’s argu-
ment against funding might not be so relevant; would you agree
with that?

Ms. Fisuer. Well, if we decide that we need to undertake inspec-
tion and management plans in Federal buildings, it would make
sense that they be paid for by the Federal Government. I think
GSA actually does have some work underway on asbestos that is
being paid for by the I'ederal Government. I can provide what
they're doing and in what buildings, if you would like.

Mr. McMiLLeN. That would be helpful. As someone who repre-
sents a lot of Federal workers, obviously I have a deep and abiding
concern about the safety of those workers and look forward to get-
ting some conclusive data. But hopefully, as that conclusive data
comes back, if it indicates a certain risk, the administration would
step forward and do something about it.

P
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Ms. Fisuxr. Let us look into what programs GSA has underwa:
already. I don't think they have waited for the EPA effort witf‘;
resrect to all buildings. They have moved ahead, I think. I can pro-
vide that to you.

Mr. McMmnuieN. Thank you.

{Testimony resumes on p. 104.]

[The following material was supplied:]
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FOREWORD
The growing concern over Jow-level asbestos exposures for public building occupants and
maintenance staffs has prompted many facility owners and managers to develop and
implement comprehensive asbestos-related Operations and Maintenance (O&M) programs
in buildings with identified asbestos-containing materials (ACM) in order to alleviate or, if
possible, eliminate such concern.  The development of these O&M programs, although
simple in terms of the ultimate goal, often involves diverse disciplines working together in
a coordinated manner, different types and conditions of asbestos-containing material,

bu'! fing conditions which may frequently change, and exact recordkeeping procedures; all
of which must be addressed to ensure a successful program.

The U.S. General Services Administration, through its Facility Asbestos Control Managers,
the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, and the Asbestos Program of the Georgia Tech
Research Institute, has developed a Documentation Package, designed to facilitate a
sta ... iized approach toimplementing O&M plans in GSA buildings where ACM has been
ide. ufi 4, Tarough standardized, yet comprehensive, implementation it is the aim of thie
Doc...entation Package to provide the means for properly and effectively handling any
O&M situations; ultimately helping tc ensure protection of human health and the
environment. :

The objectives of this Documentation Package are fourfold:

. Provide comprehensive recordkeeping forms which can be incorporated into
curtent GSA O&M programs without major modifications to existing
programs.

. Provide "user friendly” recordkeeping forms which are more likely to be
completed as a part of the O&M program, hence hclping 1o ensure better
O&M practices.

. Allow the GSA Facility Ashestos Control Manager (FACM) greater control
over all aspects of the O&M program by establishing a chain-of-command
through which all forms come to the FACM.

. Incorporate all the essential elements of the O&M program into a practical,
workable program to provide for effective asbestos control in GSA facilities.

The recordkeeping forms included in this Documentation Package were developed on the
basis of applicable asbestos regulations of the U.S, Environmental Protection Agency and
Occupational Safety and Health Administration, the General Services Administration’s
Handbook, Safety and Enovironmental Management Program, PBS P 5900.2C, chapter 4,
current GSA O&M programs, and a U.S. EPA report "GSA/EPA Pilot Asbestos Program.”
Revisions made to the draft forms of this document were based on comments received form
GSA Assistant Regional Administrators, Public Buildings Service. The helpfil comments
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received served 1o streamline the Package, end to incorporate more practical, in-feld
information,

Primary contributors to this document include the following individuals:

. Mr. Robert D. Schmitter, MS - Environmental Scientist; Georgia Tech
Research Institute, Atlania, Georgia.

. Mr. Mark L. Demyanck, MS, CIH, CSP - Manager, Asbestos Programs;
Geargia Tech Research Instiiute, Atlanta, Georgia.

. Mr. David Mayer, MS - Manager, Training Programs Office; Georgia Tech
Rescarch Institute, Atlanta, Georgis.

- Dr. Thomas Tillman - Environmental Policy Specialist; U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency - Headquarters, Washington, D.C.

- Dr. Warren Friedman, CIH - Senior Industrial Hygienist; U.S. General
Services Administration - Central Office, Washington, D.C.
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The Facility Survey
Building Inspection Report

The primary focus of the building inspection process is to identify the materials within a
building which do or are likely 10 contain asbestos. Asbestos-cor‘aining materials can be
classified in three categories: (1) surfacing materials which include material on walls,
ceilings and structural members, (2) thermal system insulation which encompasses tank,
boiler, pipe, and vesse] insulation used for temperature or condensation control, and (3)
miscellaneous materials which include primarily floor and ceiling tiles.

The Facility Asbestos Control Manager (FACM) or a designated alternate should become
familiar with the inspection report and the important terms used within it. One of the more
important terms is "homogeneous areas," defined as areas within a building which are
uniform in color, texture, construction/application date, and general appearance. Another
important term is "functional space” which can be defined as an area in which 8 particular
activity takes place, or which is used for a specified purpcse. For example, an auditorium
is a particular functional sp.ace. The FACM should be aware that a functional space can

include more than one homogeneous area, and a homogencous area can be found in more
than one functional space.

Each building inspection report should include:

. The location and description of all known or suspected asbestos-containing
materials,

«  The delineation of all functional spaces and homogeneous areas.

«  An assessment of the condition of all known or suspected asbestos-containing
materials.

+  An evaluation of the potential for future disturbance or damage to known or
suspected asbestos-containing materials.

The assessmeat criteria for asbestos-containing material will be important in determining
what sort of action may need to be taken to protect human health and the environment.
For surfacing and miscellaneous asbestos-containing material EPA defines major or
significantly damaged material as having one or more of the following characteristics:

»  The surface crumbling or blistering over at lcast one tenth of the surface if the
damage is evenly distributed (one quarter if the damage is localized).

«  One tenth (one quarter, if Jocalized) of the material banging from the surface,
deteriorated, or showing adhesive failure.
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is evenly distributed (one quarter if the damage is localized).

Damaged surfacing or miscellancous material has been defined by EPA as material with a
surface crumbled, blistered, water-stained, gouged, marred or otherwise abraded over less
thmonetenthonhcmfaceifthedamngeisevenlydinn’buted(onequaner if the damage
is localized), -

Surfacing or miscellaneous material assessed as being in good condition is material with no
visible damage or deterioration, or showing only very limited damage or deterioration.

The criteria for assessing the condition of thermal gystem insulation (TS!) is similar to that
of surfacing and miscellaneous materials. Major or significantly damaged TSI is material
with missing jackets on at least one tenth of the piping or equipment and/or has crushed
or heavily gouged or punctured insulation on at least one tenth of pipes, runs/risers, boiler,
tanks, ducts, etc, if the damage is evenly distributed (one quarter if the damage is
localized),

Damaged TS! is defined by EPA as material with a few water stains or less than one tenth
of missing insulation jacketing, and/or crushed insulation or water stains, gouges, punctures,
Or mars on up to one tenth of the insulation if the damage is evenly distributed {or up to
one quarter if the damage is localized). TSI in good condition is material with no visible
damage, or deterioration, or showing only very limited dainage or deterioration

A copy of the building inspection report should be included in the asbestos files for the
building. By having the inspection record available for quick reference, the FACM will be
able 10 more effectively implement an asbestos operations and maintenance program,
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Sugpested Freauency of Air Monitoring And Inspection

This form is designed to provide the Facility Asbestos Control Manager (FACM) with
guidance for air monitoring and inspections of surfacing asbestos~containing materials
{ACM) by suggesting a minimum frequency for these operations. This suggested frequency
will depend primarily on the condition of the material (whether undamaged or damaged),
and the potential for damage. It is important to note that these are suggested minimums,

and that these are guidelines established by and for professionals. Local conditions may
lead to increases in these frequencies.

Scveral important considerations should be noted here in regard to the use of this form,
Undamaged material can be categorized as either nonfriable or friable, and damage
potential is addressed for each. A workable definition for undamaged ACM is simply
material with no visible damage or deterioration. For material which shows damage or
major damage, the material is assumed to be friable, regardless of its original state,
Damaged ACM has been defined by the U.S. EPA a5 material which has deteriorated or
sustained physical injury reculting in weakened internal structure or cohesion of the material,
or which has delaminated to such a condition that its bond to a substrate is inadequate.
Major damage has been defined to be severely or extensively damaged ACM. Although
these definitions may be somewhat subjective, it is important that they be applied as
consistently as possible.

Another consideration in establishing frequencics for air monitoring and inspection is the
potential for damage. Conditions which might indicate a low potential for damage are if
the ACM is in an area where routine activities could but are unlikely to disturb the ACM,
or if there are indications that the materia! could become damaged by changes in building
use, changes in operations and maintenance practices, or changes in occupancy. A higher
potential for damage could be indicated by ACM being in an area where routine activities
are more likely 1o disturb the material, or where the ACM is subjected to factors such as
accessibility, vibration, air erosion, ete.

Because of the usually infrequent nature of air sampling, many situations in which asbestos
fibers are emitted may never be detected. As a result, air monitoring should never be used
in place of physical and visual inspection in the determination of asbestos management or
abatement decisions. However, when used in conjunction with frequent inspections of ACM,
air monitoring and bulk sampling combined may provide a better working too! for ACM
assessment than either alone. As mentioned above, local conditions may dictate air
monitoring and inspection frequencies, but it is essential that a consistent pattern be
developed angd utilized.
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Suggested minimum frequency of air monitoring and inspection from
conditions of sprayed-on or troweled-on undamaged surfacing ACM

Materia! Condition

No Damage

Nenfrisble Friable

Potential Polential
for for

Damage Damage

Low High Low High

Alr Monitoring A A . A A
inspection A S -] Q
A = Annuslly
S = Samiannually
Q = Quarterly

- G G G M am e MR M A Y Gy M Wy e Em A R e e D SR Y W G ST em e

Note: immadiate abstement shall be performad, using smergency
procursmant methods if necessary, when asbestos-containing

materials which are damaged or subject {o damage are
sheountensd.

5

A
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Initia} Assessment Form for Asbestos-Contalning Materials

This series of forns will be used for the initial assessment of the condition of surfacing,
thermal system insulation, and miscellancous materials which have been identified as
ashestos-containing A physical assessment of the ashestos-containing material (ACM)
consists of evaluating the condition of the identified or suspected material, as well as
evaluating the potential for future disturbance. From this physical assessment, the Facility
Asbestos Control Manager (FACM) along with other individuals trained in asbestos work
will be ablz 10 make a hazard assessment of the ACM, indicating the overall hazard
potential for duilding occupants.

Assessment should be made by qualified and trained safety and health professionals who are
familiar with building construction systems and asbestos bazards. From this initiel
assessment, the FACM can evaluate his/ber options and institute the appropriate response
actions. One of the following assessment forms should be completed for each homogeneous
area within the building. Because these are detailed and extensive forms, they will only be
used for the initial assessment of ACM. Subsequent reassessments should be recorded on
Asbestos-Containing Material Reinspection Forms which follow the initial assessment forms.

The assessment process itself will begin with a thorough review of the building's initial
inspection report in order for the assessor to become familiar with the types and locations
of ACM. For each form, the building name and address, GSA building number, area, and
date of assessment should be recorded. For each category of ACM, the descriptive type of
material should be indicated as well as the total amount of that category of ACM n the
area. In addition, the amount of damaged ACM should be indicated.

The condition of the ACM at the time of assessment should be indicated by degree of
physical damage or deterioration, water damage or deterioration,and friability. Additionally,
the potential for future damage, disturbance, or ercsion should be recorded based on factors
of accessibility, activity within the area, possible changes in bullding use, vibration within the
area, of location within an air plesum. These sssessment factors are used to evaluate any
changes found during reassessment, and it is important to stay consistent,

A beneficial element of an assessor’s equipment list would be 8 camera or videotape
recorder. The use of such equipment would provide a visual record of the condition of the
material, and will provide s more detailed accounting of material condition. By comparing
visual and written records, the FACM may be able t0 more accurately determine any

changes the ACM may undergo.

The assessor should sign and date the form upon completion, and the FACM should sign
the form indicating he/she has been notified of the results of the assessment.
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Surfeciag Asbesise-Containing Maserial ~
Asosssmeent ¥orm
Beitdng " asa midg. Mo
Arva: Date of A -t
Location of Swiacag ACM: ____ Criing . Wal ____ Othwr (specily)

(Note: A scparsie ascssmicol form will be completed for each type of surfacing ACM )

Type of Sarfacing ACM: —— Firzprooking - Thermal Tsolation

JR—— Ouhor (specify)

Type of Ceiling Coacrete 3-coat Master Ceiling
(if applicable)
Suspended Metal Lath Cooerete Joisis/Beams

Suspesded Layis Paocls

T

Tie [

Meta! Dock Corrugated Steel
Steel Beam or Bar Jouds Other (spocafy).
Ceiling Shape:  ______ Flat — Dosme Folded Plate
(4 applicable)
e Barral —— Other (speaify),
Type of Conted Walll Smootd Concrete — Thermal lasulation
(i applcable)
R Masonry — Wall or Ceilwag Board
— Ot (spexify),
Total Amonst of Malesiak, Ceiling Hayght:_
Estimatad Thickaoss: Is Thickerss Usilorm: __ Yas __ Ne
I mo, give range of thick
Asdestos Kacem?____ Type:, Percaniage: Asbestos Assumad?
Amonnt of Damaged Maicriat__
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Deacrigtion of Contings __ Moo ——— Gemoley /Comanikion
e Coacate-Lis
Coating Debris 0a Floor /Puraitere/Waork Swiscas: — Y No

ummwumhmwmm' Yeu Ne
Tyve of Lighing: Serface Mowmted Smpended Roccased
Type of HeatingCooling Swscm:
What is above the room Deing cvalustad
Curreat Condition of ACM:
Physical Damage/Deterioration:  ___ Major _____ Misor o Nome
Waier Damage/Deterioration: Major Misor . Nome
Potestial for Future Dasage, Disturbanee, or Erosion:
Acceuidilicy: e High ______ Moderais — Low
Activiiy & Movement Mgk _____ Moderse _____ low
Chiange in Bulding Use: o Schodiod___ Possible . Nomg
Al Ficavm: —~—— Yoo No
Fristdicy: —He _____ low
Ascust of ACM Exposod: Grostcr Thea 0%
K% o Lot
Not Esposed
G
Asbangor, Dute Roport Compleded:
Signed_ Duc;
(Paciidy Asdestos Comtrol Manager)

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:
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Therma) Sysiem lasulation (TSH
Asessment Form

B " O8A By Ne:
A, Dete of A
Hamagroowws A N » Na
(Now. A speini Torm +ll be sompicsad v tech fype of TH ACK).
Type of Pige and Boikes Lasuiatins (ACK}
Dvet Snsvistion —— Duit Weappeng Troawes Deand
Builer Laggeg —_— Tand tavioiwes o Jmats (Nax
Pige Jasvintion: —_— Wotr Pys — Sicam Pyps
Are Areustt Vades Ponges Oxder
Tt Ameuat ACM: Lonsar Tom Square Tem
Ars of Demaged ACM. . Renear Poot Square Pags
Asbesict Kaown? e e — Poromegr __ __ Astoncs Assvmed?
Lacsison Specriler . At landier Room p— 7 T )
Meshoanal Rooms AP
e Emcicsed Space O
—— . Carngn e Perphersi HVAC
e OVNE {RPOOEYL v
Contuicon of AN
Prexel Damags Duternovins: __ Nakw e Nhimor | Nowe
Waier Demage/Dwtencewtion.  ____ Najor e M | Nem
Priabey of Damaged Aren Higs e Low
Pensssial for Purers Domage, Disturdancw, or Ervsies:
Acsemalvility: —— N » Low
Arshiry & Movamenr — N » Lew
Changs in Duuiiding Une: Schesuied P e Newe
Videndben ——— N M Low
Al Piesen: Yu e, N
O
Date Ragort Comp
Dues,
(Taciety Acbanien Comeral Moanager)

O

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:
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Aiosslionsoms Asheshes-Cosdabeing Maturisl Ascmameat Form

Boddes. - ONA N My
A= Sutn of
Homeg A Mn: Ponmiusd fipuss N,
(Noan: A saparete ssmat Ao will ¢ svangiuind far sk e of ssslimesss ACM)
Type of ACR Founr T s Coliing TRy
‘tﬁ:rm?: — i ' e Rening R
o Esesion femsh . Nhingw
— Cngiteset —, e
Adbasamn ot Piging Welkring
p— O
Paiass & Catingy
Totst Amowns ACE Linsus Poue Squons Sont
Ars of Domageé ACNE Limaar Poet Squerc fost .
Adapice Knoen? Tes, Pescvangs
Locwiion O Noachamiant A Leddy
Conicvence Rovss Hotuny e Culvreoln
— gt R
. Ouleey (ayeeity)
Conditicn of ACK:
Payoal Damage Doteriormtion:  ______ Majur — Misw ___ Nex
Water Domage/Dteriarsain Mg o Mmas _____ Nem
Prubitity of Dosaged Aswa: i e Row
Fusensial for Purers Domage, Distavbuncs, o Proskan
Assmalbiicy: ———. TR Lew
Activizy & Wb Mg ) —_— L
Changs 18 Rudiing Lie: R U] — . N
Vivathe — Mg Low
Alr Pasess: — Ym —_— e
-
A Dute Fugue Complotnd:
Sgeed, D,
[Ty Asbovens Contvat Maasager)
10
i)
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Asbesfos-Containing Matedal Reinspeciion Form

As part of the Operations and Maintenance (O&M) program, periodic reinspection of all
known or suspected asbestos-containing material (ACM) should be conducted. The main
objectives of reinspection are to identify areas where O&M programs may need to be
strengthened, and to determine areas where allernate control of response actions are
necessary, Another use of reinspection is in the design of construction (renovation or
demolition) projects which may affect ACM, in order 10 determine what asbestos controls,
if any, are required in the work..

The building name and address, GSA building number, and area being inspected should all
be recorded. The date of reinspection, date of original inspection, and the date of last
inspection (if different from original inspection) should be indicated. In order to assist
anyone who may be unfamiliar with the ACM located within a particular area, some general
background information such as type of ACM, a brief description of some of the physical
characteristics of the ACM, and the approximate amount of material should be indicated.

The reinspection process itself will look for changes in material condition, with the presence
of ACM debris on floors, surfaces, e1c. as an indicator of this change. In addition, key factors
which may influence a change in ACM condition and which should always be evaluated
during any inspection include: changes in physical damage, resulting from maintenance
activity or vandalism; water damage from roof or pipe leaks; changes in surface area exposed
possibly through missing or broken ceiling tiles or deteriorated pipe lagging; changes in
accessibility resulting, possibly, from additions of equipment which may bring someone close
10 the ACM; changes in activity in the area; change in building or area use such as converting
a former storage area into a small office; a change in friability which may result {from changes
in any of the preceding conditions, or any change in vibration in the area, for example,
through the addition of larger operating equipment,

An important item in the reinspection will be the determination, if possible, of the extent of
damage or change affecting the ACM. By providing an ongoing tally of area or percentage
of affected ACM, the inspector and Facility Asbestos Control Manager (FACM) can evaluate
an O&M program'’s effectiveness or ineffectiveness.

In the event extensive new damage or deterioration of ACM is discovered, remedial action
should be taken following the Criteria for Corrective Action Plans, as well as other GSA,
EPA, and OSHA requirements and guidance. In such a situation, the FACM or inspector
may wish to conduct an inspection of the material using an initial inspection form which
provides more detailed information about the material's condition and potential for damage.

During the design of construction projects whizh may affect ACM, the building inspection
summary, mechanical and architectural drawings, and other asbestos-related data are
examined. Afiected sites are reinspected 10 svaluate known ACM, desermine whether
suspect materials which have not been sampl: ! contain asbestos, and obtain accurate and
precise estimates of the amounts, types, coritions and Jocations of ACM which will be
affected by the work. As a result, accurats. project specifications, drawings and schedules
can be developed.

The form should be signed by the inspector, the next scheduled reinspection should be
stated, and the FACM should also sign and date the form.



51

ARESIOS-CONTAIMING MATERIAL EXINEFRCTION FORM

= OfA Bing. No:_
Afam_ "
A Duee of Ratanp
Nannge A Ny, L Ry Mg
Sem of Oopgent Dute of Lavt Fendnporsh

Cvageey o Atuses-Chsmining Mstaind po— pu—

Any AL Dot w0 Pooa/ S /T Yo
Sass B¢ Lan Acaneca/Resmmanest, Has Thars Beca Ay Chungn b
Poyeasl Domagn

Woror Domage:

Lagvand Servas Aronc

Acmaniaiy t AR

!
|

Annay & Ans

Bnaing,/Aren v

Nadiliy

it itevi
FEFEFFEFEE
4
4

Ymae = Ams

L]

Agprusuns) Amumm of ACM . Ga. ame or pae——gr

(Poiny Adesers Oasost Mwnoger)
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Data Form for Bulk Samples )

This form will be used 1o record all bulk samples collected from a particular area either
initially during an inspection to determine the presence of ashestos-containing material
(ACM), or any time suspect material is found and a bulk sample is collected. Each building
should receive its own data form, and sample location should be given in detail. A
functiona! space is a distinct area within & building which can be identified by a distinct
building occupant population (ladies room, for example) or activity (conference room, for
example). A homogencous area is an area in which the asbestos-containing material
appears similar in terms of material color, texture, and date of application. When collecting
bulk sampies, it is important to keep in mind that homogeneous materials may make up
more than one functional space. Additionally, by identifying homogencous areas which may
run throughout & building (i.e., chilled water supply lines, surfacing material) it may be
possible 10 better track and control material within the facility. A unique sample number
should be used for each samplt collected, possibly including a unique letter which designates
and identifies that paniicular area.

To augment recordkeeping, as well as for future reference, a diagram or floor plan should
be used to indicate where bulk samples have been collected. The sampling area diagram
should include an identification number of the homogeneous area or functional space, &
brief description of the sampling area, area dimensions, the name and telephone number
of the FACM, the name of the inspector, and the date of the inspection.  The floor plans
should show the areas or materials for which the presence of asbestos is assumed (areas
with materials homogeneous with materials sampled or known through observation 1o
contdin asbestos), in addition to the areas or materials specifically known (0 contain
asbestos. By keeping these additional records, time and effort may be saved if questions
arise over the extent of asbestos-containing material and some retracing of steps becomes

Decessary.

Type of material will include surfacing, thermal system insulation, and miscellanecus
material. Any unusual qualities to the material shou!d be noted on the form (L.c., condition,
color, texture, eic.). Asbestos type and percent can only be recorded after laboratory
analysis, and it is important that the Facility Asbestos Control Manager (FACM) complete
these sections after receiving the laboratory report.

This log should be updated following the collection of additional samples, if they are

necessary. Becuuse this Jog will be beneficial in determining control actions, it should be
readily available for outside asbestos contractors (o use.

14



DATA FORM FOR SULX SAMPME
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Data Form for Alr Samples

This form can be used to log and track any type of air sample collected during an operations
and maintenance activity, such as pipe repair, electrical installation, or a fiber episode
cleanup.

The building name and address, and GSA building number should be recorded for cach form.
The table itself is divided 10 facilitate easy data enty and review. Each sample collected
should be given a unique number, and the date the sample was collected and the location
should be recorded. An indication as to the type of sample, whether personal, area
(collected in or around the workspace) or some other type of sample such as clearance
samples, should be indicated. If a personal sample is collected, whether the sample is an
8-hour time weighted average (TWA) or a 30-minute TWA excursion limit sample should be
indicated. Any personal sample collected sheuld include as part of the data form the name,
social security number and company or organization of the individual.

It is important that & detailed description of the activity being sampled be included, This
may aid the Facility Asbestos Control Manager (FACM) in determining if proper work
practices are being used, and whether any operations and maintenance (O&M) activity
conducted in-house may be more suitable for outside contractors. When the air monitoring
is being performed in response 10 a fiber refease episode, a Fiber Release Episode Report,
as well as this air sampling data form, should be completed.

Pertinent sampling information such as start and stop times for the sampling period, and
pump flow rate should be recorded 1o help insure consistency in sampling. The method of
analysis should be indicated (whether NIOSH 7400, OSHA Reference Method, transmission
electron microscopy, or other method) and the fiber concentration should be reported also,
Additional comments can include the type of respiratory protection worn by individuals, or
agy unusual circumstances whict could affect the sampling results.

Finally, the sampling technician should sign and date the form, and provide his/her company
Or organization name.

16
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Bullding Inspection Summary Sheet

The Building Inspection Summary Shest will serve as a quick reference source when
determining the characteristics of asbestos-containing material (ACM) within a particular
area. The sheet s organized by building area rather than homogeneous area or functional

space, since most of the ACM locations will be referred to by ares. Both homogeneous area
and functional space will be recorded on the form for cross-reference purposes.

Other information included on the summary sheet is designed 1o provide a synopsis of the
ACM and its condition. The material is classified by category, type and percent asbestos,
amount of ACM and whether or not it is friable, and finally by important assessment criteria.

This summary shest is not intended to replace the information collected for the original
inspection report. However, the Facility Asbestos Control Manager (FACM) and other
personnel may be able to use this sheet to maintain tighter control over Operations and
Maintenance (O&M) activities, help in the decision 10 accept work contro! applications, and
provide information helpful for planning reinspections.

This form can be completed either by the building inspector as part of his/her inspection
duties, or by the FACM or building staff following the submission of inspection report data.

18
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Casagary of ACMN: rorvare Susfacing e Tharmal Syvicn Lnsulntion — MipeNanecus

TypsolAdamer: _____Chwois  ____ Anceite —Oer_____
Amount of ACM:

Priable: Yo —reea, Ne

Matacial Asesamont: NoDumgs . Demeged Ocher

Reason for Damage:,

Homogensows ArsaNov Fesctional Space N
Catepory of ACM: e Serfacing reremanee THErMA! Systesn [vulation
Type of Asdeston: e Chryst il e AmCtit0 —_—Other
Percent Ashestos:
Asmoust of ACM:

Y e N0
NoDemags . Demaged Oxhar,

Matorial Assoenveent:
Rosson for Dassage:,

Romopeseoms A No Fonctional Sgsce No_____
Catagory of ACM: e Sunfincing . Thocmal Systom fusulstion e MnceEanccue

Trve of Adestos: —Cels  _____ Amceise ——Other__
Pocotnt Ashostos: ———

Amount of ACM:

Frishie: Y e N

Matovial Assttament: NoDemags __  Dumaged Ocher

Roascs for Demage:
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Release of Information

Tenant/Emplovee/Building Occupant Notification Furm

A key 10 insuring successful management of & building’s asbestos-containing material is
communication among building occupants, tenants, and employees. All should be kept
informed of asbestos-related activities which may affect them.

Tenant agencies should be notified of the presence of asbestos-containing materials, the
implementation of an Operations and Maintenance (O&M) program, the carrying-out of
various aspects of the O&M program, and any plans for abatement. The Facility Asbestos
Control Manager (FACM) is responsible for ensuring that tenant agencies are notified,
through their lizisons (such as their safety officers or local office heads), of asbestos
conditions, air monitoring results, and abatement or alterations in their space, The tenant
agencies are then responsible for notifying their employees or union representatives of this
information. The date of notification should be recorded on this form, as well as the method
of noiification, This potification may take the form of a letter, posted notice, newsletter,
public meeting, awareness seminar, or possibly a combination of these, as appropriate. The
method of notification will depend on the effectiveness of previous forms of communication,
the condition or seriousness of an operation, and may vary among facilities.

Two important criteria .. notification are: (1) what 10 inctude in any notification, and {2)
who will notify the tenants or occupants. Any educational effort undertaken to notify
affected personnel should include:

asbestos is present in the building

the type and location of asbestos-containing materials (ACM)

the potential health effects associated with asbestos exposure in buildings
plans to deal with the situation

instructions fo avoid disturbing the ACM (e.g., do not hang plants, do not
remove or lift ceiling tile)

procedures to report any disturbances or damage 10 ACM

. additional sources of information.

" o o o »

év.«\
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The possibility exists that not all aspects of the O&M program will run continuousiy without
prgb!ems,andtthACMmusxben&dywdulwithuimdoninwhichmisnkesmumd
building occupants become angry. In such instances it may be prudent to obtain the services
of a qualified professional, such as an asbestos consultant, safety manager, qualified industrial
hygienist, etc, to conduct awareness seminars or immediately address concerns when
something unexpected occurs, in order to take effective action and reduce possible fears
among building occupants.

In some instances, the determinaticu of what not to include in notifications may be equally
as important as what is included. False or misleading statements must be avoided in all forms
of information dissemination. Wording which may be interpreted by an audience as
reflecting an uncasing attitude or which may secm ambiguous or Dol completely forthright
should also be avoided. The FACM in consultation with asbestos technical professionals will
peed to evaluate oa a case-by-case basis whether any information released may be more
harmfu! to building public relations.

Credibility is what the FACM is seeking in a public relations effort. Information flow should
begin before the inspection process 1o establish credibility and be reinforced by timely
updates as further information bécomnes available for distribution. Presenting the logic and
rationale ahead of any decision point may encourage cooperation.

Attached is a sample informationa! letter 10 tenants and building occupants.
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e Moanst agiacios 35 1 Saciey
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Artach List of tenant agencies sotifiod
Altch documentaiion thal tesani agency recsived notification (optiomal).

EMPLOVEES/OCCUPANTS

Novficason of 3t ey employess of § of ACM
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ACM sdakmeni plans
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Sampie Informationsl Lester to Tenants/Occupants
General Services Administration
George Washington Federal Building
100 Main Street
Washington, DC 20000

MEMORANDUM FOR  Building Tenant Agencies/Occupants

FROM: Charles Smith 22
Facility Asbestos Control Manager

SURJECT: Notification of the Presence of Asbestos-Containing Material
Within the George Washington Federal Building (GSA#
PC12342Z)

As communicated to building tenant agencies and occupants in a meriorandum dated June
12, 1989, during scheduled renovation of the second floor cafeteria within the George
Washington Federal Building, asbestos-containing material was identified in spray-applied
fireproofing on the ceiling deck. After extensive discussion with the GSA Regional Office,
as well as reputable experts in the field of asbestos detection and cont:ol, the entire facility
was inspected for the presence of asbestos-containing materials. Results of this initial
building inspection have indicated the presence of asbestos-containing materials in several
areas throughout the building.

Upon receipt of these results, consultation was entered inta with experts in the field of
asbestos detection and control to develop a course of action specifically designed to protect
the health and safety of building occupants. Among the experts assembled to serve on an
Asbestos Advisory Task Force are Dr. L. Johnson, Chief of Pulmonary Service for General
Hospital; Mr. I, Thomas, Esq., of the firm Thomas and Thomas, P.C.; GSA attorneys; and
Ms. D. Stolz, an experienced asbestos and air quality analyst with Better Environmeat, Inc.
These individuals will provide a knowledgeable and experienced panel to answer any
questions you might have,

Upon the recommendation of the Asbestos Advisory Task Force and in keeping with proven
industry standards, an asbestos-related Operations and Maintenance (O&M) program was
immediately established to provide an effective means for dealing with the asbestos
situation. The objectives of the O&M plan are to:

. establish a program of work practices to maintain asbestos~containing
materials in good condition

. ensure the safe dean-up of asbestos fibers previously released

. prevent release of asbestos fibers by minimizing disturbance and damage

. develop an in-house asbestos response team to effectively handle emergency
situations.

24

37-486 - 91 - 3
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Sample Informational Letter to Tenanti/Occupants
{continved)

Through the establishment of a trained in-house asbestos response ieam and use
! . use of
experienced outside asbestos abatement contractors, the asbeztos situation within this fzcility
can be controlled in a manner which will be safe to the health of the building occupanits, Of
course, the help and cooperation of all tenant agencies and occupants will be needed.

In addition to the establishment of the Asbestos Advisory Task Force and the in-house
asbestos response team, this office will implement a policy of providing informational
updatgs on any activity which will involve the intentional disturbance of ssbestos-containing
material during building operations, emergency response 1o asbestos fiber releases, and
precautions and procedures designed to ensure the health and safety of the building

oxcj.x‘z);;;{ns. In addition, information can be gained directly by contacting this office at

In order 10 answer any questions our building occupants may have and 1o help alleviate the
fears associated with asbestos discovery, an open meeting has been scheduled for 2:30 p.m
on Tuesday, August 26 in the Auditorium of this building. Members of the Asbestos
Advisory Task Force will be present to provide further information and answer questions
about your concerns. We strongly urge all building occupants to attend. It is believed that
only by keeping the lines of communication apen between all parties can we effectively and
safely deal with our asbestos situation,

This form is designed to track the outflow of Operations and Maintenance (O&M) program
records to authorized building occupants or tenants. Through & structured and formalized
request procedure the Facility Asbestos Control Manager (FACM) will be better able to
track the amount and type of material and information that is available to the building
population. By being able to provide pertinent information, the FACM will be heiping to
ensure proper notification of building occupants, with the assurarce of reliable and accurate
information.

Persons or tenants requesting records should state specifically the document or documents
wanted and provide a justifiable reason for the request. The request itself will be Jogged,
and afier reviewing the request a determination will be made to grant or deny. The FACM,
who will be responsible for all aspects of his/her building's O&M program, should indicate
final approval of the request. The date of records delivery should aiso be documented in
order to minimize the possibility of losing records in transfer.

All GSA asbestos-related records (except duplicates and certain other excluded items) must
be retained permanently with an Asbestos Records Label on all file folders and record
boxes. The FACM must not permit any records to be lost when building occupants or
tenants request them. Usually this can be ensured by allowing the requestors to view the
records in the GSA office, or by making photocopies which can be horrowed or given ta the
requestors.
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RECORDS REQUEST FORM
BiilSing: GSA Buikfing Nou:_

Requesting Ageacy:,

Coatact Persoss; Date Requested;

Room/Buildisg: Phooe:

Records Requestod:
Arca or Subject:

Coatract Numbt;r:

Description of Records:

Reason {or Request:

.

Request Received By: Date:

Request Granted By, Date;

Request Desied By: Date:
Reason;

Facility Acbestos Control Manager Approval;

(Signature)
Date;__

Date Risords Seat;

27
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The Operations and Maintenance Program

Operalions and Maintepance Proeram Actiyity

An asbestos-related Operations and Maintenance (O&M) program must be developed and
implemented as soon as possible following the identification of asbestos-containing material
(ACM) within a facility, and will remain in effect until ali ashestos-containing material {s
removed from the building. When implementing an O&M program it is important 10 become
familiar with its objectives: clean-up of previously relcased asbestos fibers, preventing future
release by minimizing disturbance, conducting periodic reinspections and recleaning of areas
where asbestos-containing materials are located, and maintaining existing asbestos-containing
material. The asbestos-related O&M program must be integrated into the building's overall
Q&M program.

In establishing an O&M program and performing any O&M activity, building records,
inspection reports, and floor plans should accurately reflect where all identified ACM and
all materials assumed to be ACM are located. The initial building survey should have these
locations marked. In addition, building occupants should be notified of the presence of
ashestos, custodial staff should receive awareness training related to asbestos, and
maintenance personnel whose work may involve coming in contact with asbestos must be
properly trained in working with the material.

This record of all activity associated with a building’s O&M program will be crucial in
successfully dealing with a facility’s asbestos situation. This form should be completed by the
GSA project supervisor and Facility Asbestos Control Manager (FACM) after any O&M
activity is performed, and will help maintain complete and current information gbout
particular areas of a building. Because a building may have many areas of ACM as well as
have these areas undergo, oftentimes, several different O&M activities, it is important that
information be recorded and organized for quick reference, and retained permanently.

In completing this form, building and area identification should be specific, and the date
should be recorded as to when the O&M activity 100k place. Tne purpose of the O&M
activity should be indicated as a minor repair, such as fixing pipe lagging; small scale removal
such as having to remove ACM thermal system insulation in order o repair a pipe leak;
small scale enzapsulation to patch or reinforce an area; abatement of pre-existing ACM
debris if this is a newly discovered s.c« undergoing initial cleaning; a fiber release episode
due to unplanned disturbance or damage of the material; labelling of ACM or a scheduled
periodic recleaning of an area as part of the O&M program.  Note: if & special cleaning
activity is performed, a "Record of Initial/Periodic Special Cleaning” form should be
completed.



65

The type and approximate amount of material involved in any O&M activity should be
noted 1o provide the FACM with accurate accountings of ACM in any given area. The
reason for conducting an O&M activity should be indicated, and could indicatc & common
pattern for a cause of continuous O&M activity and help with establishing preventive
measures for future r.leases of asbestos.

Precautions taken during the O&M activity should be recorded, as should work practices
and personal protective equipment. Trained personnel designated 1o perform O&M work
should have the necessary background in work practices 1o effectively isolate the area of
concern and restrict access 10 the area, and should be familiar with a building's mechanical
sysem in order to immediately shut down or modify the air handling system as needed.
O&M training should also include thorough presentations on the proper work practices, such
as & plan of action which can be followed in & step-by-step manner. For example, how and
when enclosures or containment will be constructed, or what type of cleaning method (wet
wiping. MEPA.vacuuming, steam cleaning, etc.) would be most spplicable for a certain area.
A good idea for a FACM to introduce for any area is a worst-case scenario in which a
response team can immediately act correctly to prevent the further release of asbestos fibers.
The O& M response team should also be familiar with when glovebags can and cannot be
used.

A bref but detailed description of the activity condated should be provided. Itis
important, also, 10 record whether the O&M activity is performed in-house or by an outside
contractor, names of personne! involved, a record of notification to involved tenants or
building occupants, the duration of the work activity, and appropriate references to air
monitofing data.

Finally, once the work is completed according 10 GSA requirements or standards, the GSA
project supenisor and FACM should both sign and date the form.

30
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MAINTENANCE FROGRAM ACTIVITY
GSA Mg No.

Dates of Projact:

RS

Purpose of ORM Activity:

Type of Matcriak . Surfacing
MisceDaacous

Approusaate Amount of Malerisl favobed:

Cause of O&M Activity:

Precavtons Taken:

Worek Practices Used:

GSA Projea/C Nos

Misor Repale

Small Scue

Abate Pre-Exicting ACM Debeis
Fiber Release Episade

Pori~tic Clcasing

—_— Smal Scale Remownl

Deterioration
Delamination
Water Damage

Physical Damage

— Thermal System Imsulation

LF

Vaodalise
Maiislenance Adtivity
Ouber {Specify)

Warning Signs Posted
Air Hasdling Systers Shut Dows; —_—
Accoss 10 Arcs Restricted

Wel Wiping _—
HEPA-Vacyum

Eack s

b
]

Usod:

LI

r
{
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Mudified

Glovebag
Other (Specify)

Steam Clesaing

Respirators;, Type

Protoctive Clothing
Other (Specify)

31
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O&M FROGRAM ACTIVITY
PAGR 2 02

Was Al Mosioriag Conclected?
(Asach sir sampiing hog form)

Were Alfected Tenant Agsucies NotiSied? Yie N
(Astach Occupant Notillcation Ferm)

Srief Description of Actios:

St Diaie Complction Date

Woek Conductad: . In-Howss Outside Co

Name of Coal

Comtact/Phons:

Contractor Pessonne! Javohed:

GSA Project Supervisor:

GSA Persoannl Iavodved: S—

Work Compleisd According 10 GSA Roqeiccacses/Standasds:
Sigaek; Date:

GSA Project Superviece

Facilitics Asdeetos Comtrol Masages

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:
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Record of Initial/Periodic Special Cleanlng

-

The cleanup of any debris of asbestos~containing material (ACM), as well as necessary
periodic recleaning of an area to prevent or minimize the release of asbestos fibers, can be
an essential past of a building's operations and maintenance program. Initial special cleaning
includes cleanup of visible ACM debris and special cleaning of building areas with ACM
prior to any abatement performed in response fo astestos damage. Based on the inspection
report, such as when continued accumulation of asbestos debris occurs, periodic special
cleaning may be required thereafler. Eacii special cleaning, whether the &ctivity is injtial or
periodic, should be recorded on this form, as should the types of items cleaned, and the
methods used to clean them. As part of any O&M training program, persoane! should be
made aware of eflective cleaning methods, and the proper application of these methods. A
standard operating procedure should be developed for a particular method, For example,
carpeting within areas identified as having ACM within them may be cleaned using
HEPA-vacuuming and/or steam cleaning whereas wet methods may be best for hard
borizontal surfaces within the area.

Two very important parts of completing this form, as well as for keeping on top of an
important aspect of the O&M program are (1) whether any visible debris was noticed in the
ared, and (2) whether any change in ACM condition was noticed since a previous cleaning,
The presence of debris will most likely indicate that some change in condition has occurred,
yet it is important to keep in mind that material condition may change without releasing
noticeable debris. Visual inspection of the ACM itself is important. All changes should be
noted and explained further in the comment section.

Upon completion of the special cleaning operation, a note should be made of all personnel
involved in the cleaning, and the form should be signed by the GSA activity supervisor and
the FACM, and the next scheduled special cleaning, if needed, should be indicated.




Record ef Initial/Periodic Special Cleasing
Buidding OSA Duibling No:
Adtven Dwie:
Ass Caaned foicinl Clonning
Prriotic Recianing
e Purnitars —— Fistares
—_— Piooring — Othee
Davipwess Use e HEPA-Vacwwns
—_— Wet-Wipiag
— Sioam Choaing
Any Vieibie Dedrws in Arve Y No

Any Change is ACM Condtition Sines Previows Cleaning _ Yo __ No __ N/A,

Egtent of Ohanye

GSA Activify Supivien

GSA Fervoane! lavohed

Nome of Comtraceor:

Add.

Coniet/Phoes:

Costracir Femonael Jnchat

Nast Schetied Cheaplng

Pocility Avbosscs Comrol Managss
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E .

This form will allow the Facility Asbestos Control Manager (FACM) to track his/her facility's
in-house ssbestos response team, of an outside contractor’s response 1o any fiber release
episode. A fiber release episode is an uncontrolied or unintentional disturbance of asbestos-
containing materials (ACM) resulting in visible emissions of asbestos. Information is
collzcted on the building, area within the building, and location where the fiber release
episode occurred. The person who discovered and reporied the episode and the date of
discovery should also be recorded, as well as & description of the episode, including the type
of material involved, the approximate amount of material relvased, possible causes of the
reiease episode, and the clean-up process.

1t will be essential to record the response of personne! involved in the release episode. All
personnel should be trained to recognize a possible asbestos fiber release episode, and should
respond under developed protocol. The Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act
(AHERA) outlines a certain set of actions which can be helpful in establishing response
protocol. Entry to the arca should be immediately restricted to only those personnel directly
involved in response to the situation. The air handling system within the affected area should
be immediately modified or shut down. The released debris should be thoroughly saturated
using wet methods to minimize the potential for additional fiber release to the sir, and
cleaned immediately using HEPA-vacuuming or steam cleaning techniques. If possible,
on-site personne! should be used to provide a quick response, but the services ot an outside
contractor should be available if the situation requires more involved work. The area from
which the material was released should be repaired, or an alternative response action should
be conducted as necessary. Immediate supervisors and the FACM should be notified of the
release and subsequent corrective action

A record should be kept of the personnel involved in the release clean-up, if only to icdicate
whether or not in-house or outside contractor personnel were used. By evaluating these
response records, better training and/or response procedures can be developed or tailored
1o a sperific situation, If air monitoring is performed during the response to the fiber release
episode, a Data Form for Air Samples should be eompleted. When one or more square or
linear feet of ACM is released, or for any episode expected to result in adverse tenant or
media reaction, the Office of Real Property Management and Safety in Washington, DG
should be notified within two working days. Additionally, a detailed record of the equipment
used, including personal protective equipment, should be noted.

The FACM or a designated alternate should notify the Regional Office of each fiber release
episode. A telephone call, first to the Safety and Eavironmental Management
Branch/Division, or if 00 one can be reached there, the Real Property Management and
Safety Division will be the most effective way for relaying information quickly. Information
provided to the Regiona! Office should include the approximate amount of material relessed
acd the steps taken to clean up the debris. The FACM or designated alternate may want to
follow up this phone call by sending a copy of the Fiber Release Episode Reporr.

Under Superfund regulations, when more than one pound of friable asbestos is rel :ased into
the environment, or if there is 3 threat of such a release, the FACM, or the maasger of an
asbestos-related construction project, must immediately notify the National Resporse Center
at 800-424.8802 (in Washington, DC, 202-426-2675). GSA, or the contractor, is respornsible
for removing the asbestos from the environment or taking other appropriate remedial action
in response o the actual or threatened selease.
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Fiber Relense Eplsode Report
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A potentially serious problem occurs wher. tenant agencies, outside contractors, or
unauthorized personnel perform activities which may disturb asbestos without either them
or the Facility Asbestos Control Manager (TACM) knowing. In an attempt to minimize or
climinate such occurrences, ali personsict who perform work in an area with jdentified
asbestos-containing material (ACM) should be required 10 submit a work control application.

The work control application will include the exact location of the area involved in the work.
This section should include as much detail as possible, especially if this is an area where
more than one type of activity involving different materials may be conducted. Since the
possibility or likelihood exists that the maintenance /renovation work wil' disturb ACM, the
appropriate asbestos onntrel method(s) to be used should be indicated. The approximate
amount of ACM involved or potentially affected should also be included, indicating the
category of material (i.e. surfacing, thermal system insulation, or miscellaneous) and the
linear or square footage. The starting and completion dates should be recorded, and these
dates should be monitored to determine any unusual changes in work practices resulting in
project delays.

Tt should be noted that for a few cases within GSA-operated facilities, special conditions will
exist where national security measures will prevent ceriain operations from being included
in the work control system. Situations such as these will peed to be coordinated and dealt
with according to GSA and federal government protocol.

Asbestos may be disturbed by renovations, repairs, maintenance or other activities. All
personnel involved in the maintenance/renovation work should be identified on this form.
If an outside contractor (telephone repair crew, computer cable company, etc.) is to be used,
the name, address, phone number, and supervisor contact should be includad. Any in-house
personnel should also be listed if their work should require a work control application.

The tcnant agency(ies) affected by this maintenance/renovation work should also be
identified and the contact within each agency included. In the event that an emergency
should arise the name and phonc number of an emergency contact should be kept readily
available,

At the start of the implementation of the work control system, the FACM should ensure that
all contractors or tenant agencies performing alterations or maintenance in the building are
already aware or are made aware of esbestos conditions which may affect their work, and
that appropriate asbestos controls or means of avoiding asbestos disturbance are taken. This
process should continue as mew contractors Or tenant agency crews start to work in the
building.

This form need not replace existing regional GSA asbestos control forms, but is inteaded to
supplement them by making smaller-scale maintesance projects easier to plan for and
control.

The FACM will need to complete the bottom portion of this form, and based on the
information supplied to the FACM and his/her knowledge of the building, a decision will be
made on whether to accept or deny the work conuo! request.
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YYUSA CORINN APPHURIIE JUT § S5IVisHteg teetitenam ey

————

Notes 1o sapplicant: (1) Submit this application as soon as work which may involve asdestos is initiated,
and attach supporting documents, such a8 drawings and reimbursable work suthorization. Include
information known =t the time of application, and discuss revisions with the Facility Asbestos Comrol

Manager a3 the project develops.

(2) Review of the spplication Is based on the asbestos known to GSA; the applicant retains the
responsibllity for controlling asbestos the applicant encounters and immediately reporting to OSA any
unexpected materials suspected of containing asbestos, or unexpected conditions of known

Bidng o LAy Jimer, Ting | G BudegNo: e SIVXX

Addroes: AT LRy Dy, R 20000
Ares of Work: TRAD fr ol CowPUTER Roond
Daics of Work: St _SMar, 76 /990 Complotion __lAn 17, 1990
Description of Work Tavobved: M‘MM
Asbestos Control Method(sy  Proposcd by Applicant Accepicd by Facil. Ash. Control Mgr,
Removal e —
Encapsulation I - e e
Enclosurs e PR
oM S A— S —

Other _— _—————

Type (Category) Asd Approximaie
Amount of Asbestos-Coataning Materiak

Type (fircprooking,
pipe Lpging. ic.) ASD

Protonive aquipm. . (describe):

Work ares:
Comtsactonr/Agency Nume: MB/ (QorATEAS Comtact,_Tagz Ghapy
Addeons: _TRxvsog MT Phowc: 3 - PYEO
Review by Fciicy Asbesics Comtrol Masager:
Accepiad by ' Pre: T, L2 IO Project Number: RO @2
Deaind by Dae: RemscwbheDemial ____
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Record of Abaterest Project

This form is designed to provide a quick reference for the Facility Asbestos Control Manager
(FACM) to track when and where & panticular abatement activity took place. Delincated by
building area, this form could scrve as 3 review cover sheet for all abatement activity for that
particular location. Although by no means a complete and thorough record of any abatement
project in and of jtself, when used in conjunction with other forms in this Documentation
Package, this form will provide the FACM with the means 1o track past abatement projects as
well as plan for future action.

For each abatement project within a specified area of the facility, one form should be completed.
The dates during which the abatement project took place should be indicated. The type of
abatement operation (removal, encapsulation, enclosure, repair, or Operations & Maintenance)
should be noted, and provisioas have been made on the form for inclusion of more than one
operation if this is the case, The material being abated should be recorded, along with the
approximate amount of material. This can be critical since there may be times when only &
portion of a certain material is affected (i.c., for repair or O&M activity). Additionally, changes
should be made, as appropriate, 1o existing floor plans, building records and drawings which
1 Tect each area or system which has been abated. Thorough documentation, including date and
project number of ashestos abatement projects, on applicable forms and drawings will assist the
FACM in the identification of any remaining asbestos-containing material, I is impontant that
these records can be easily reviewed and interpreted by anyone who may have cause to view sueh
documents. A description of the material, such as damaged, small arca affected by pipe leak,
etc., should be given to keip distinguish between successive abatement projects.

Upon completion of the project, the GSA Project Supervisar or Manager should sign the form,
as should the contractor’s Project Supervisor. Finally the FACM should sign the form, indicating
successful project completion according to GSA standards. This step will help keep the FACM
directly involved in the asbestos control program.

To provide maximum benefit in the context of ongoing O&M programs, this form should be
included in an area grouping with other actions within that particular location. Additionally,
when used in conjunction with the Operations and Maintenance Program Activity Form, Work
Control Application for Performing Maintenance /Renovation Work, and the Investigator’s Survey
Checklist, the Record of Abatement Projects Form will a'low for 8 more accurate assessment o)
asbestos-related work within a facility.

41
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Duilding GSA Bidg. No.
Deatos of Project:
GSA Contract No:
Abacment Operatiog: —— Removel Repaie
(Check all that apply)

Escapealation _______ _ CAM

Amonnt
Material Adaioc: —_— Surfacag ACM
————— e Thermal System ACM
——— Miscellascous ACM
Deseription of ACM:

Have appropriste drawiags, (loor plans, building reconds been changed to reflect this abalzment project? __Yes
~——No

Documents changad

GSA Project Supervisor

Signed Date

Nots:  Attack 1 copy of Work Costrol Application for Ferforming Maimienance /Resovation Work, and all applicable
EPA, OSHA aad other sotificatios information.

42
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Response Action Allernatives

COMPARISON OF ALTERNATIVE RESFONSE ACTIONS

ALTERNATIVE ADYANTAGES - DISADVANTAGES
Long Term Use of 1. May be most appropriate 1. Asbestos source remains.
Operations and respouse action until renovation
Maintenance Flan or demolition. 2. Surveillance (O&M Plan) is

required in areas with
Usually lowest initia) costs. identified ar sssumed ACM.
3. Good interim plan until funding | 3. Costs of training, increased
becomes available for removal. labor and equipment and
asbeszos air monitoriag
4.  Allows ashestos removal to ocour surveillance may be
over a pesiod of years, thus significant.
spreading expenditure,
4. Long-term life cycle cost
5. Can be implemented quickly. may be grester than that of
removal.
6. Can usually be done in-house.

5. May not be effective where
contro} of worker /building
oocupant activities is
difficult,

Encapsulation 1. May reduce asbestos fiber releuse | 1. Ashestos source remsins and
from material. may have 10 be removed at
& Iater date. Encapsulation
2. Initial cost typically lower than may increase future removal
removal of enclosure, although cost.
higher than O&M.
} 2 Inappropriste encapsulating
13 Fireproofing ot insulating agent application may causs
material may nof need asbestos material to
replacement, delaminaie from substrate,
or may Rot prevent fiber
4. Quick, temporary cotrective selease.
action for damage 10 insulstion
material on piping and associated | 3. OXM Plan peeds to be kept
mechanical equipment. active; potentual for damage
may still exist.
5. Allows opportunity for
simultaneous nt of 4. All the preparation activities
architectural finishes on surfacing for asbestos removal need 10
ACM. be implemenicd during
encapsulation.

T
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COMPARISON OF ALTERNATIVE RESPONSE ACTIONS

{comt)
ALTERNATIVE ADVANTAGES RISADYANTAGES
Eaclosure Reduces imsmediate exposare. Asbestos sounce remaing and
may have 10 be removed at
Initial cost is typically lower thaa a later date. Enclogure may
mma:&. although higher than increase future removal cost.
. Maintenance to systems
Fireproofing and insulation behind enclosure requires
materials would pot necd the removal of enclosure,
replacement. thereby exposing ACM and
increasing cost.
Quick, temporary commective
action for damage to insulation O&M Plan Rill peeded.
material on piping and associated Potentia! for damage may
sl] exist.
Fibers will likely be released
during construction of
enclosure (or spray
application of encasement)
and will, therefore, generally
require the same
preparation as that of
removal and encapsulation.
Long-term life cycle cost
may be greater than
removal
Removal Eliminates ACM. Replacement material may
be necded.
Eliminates continued need foc
O&M Plan. Ireproper removal may

Life cycle cost may be lowest of
alternatives.

Eliminates application of
OSHA/EPA asbestos worker
protection standerds regulation (if
all ACM is removed).

increase airborne asbestos
fiber concentration above
prevalent levels.

Initia) cost is usually highest
of all methods.

Some oc all building
operatios raty have (o be
shut down temporarily
during removal
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CRITERIA FOR RESPONSE ACTIONS

Considerations: Demmhewhichmicuﬁm(s)pmmbmnnbumm&eenﬁmmm;
‘ mmmmmehmmuﬂmmmmsbmmm~m

080, e1C.
Conditign Responss Action Alternatives
ACM ia good conditiom - Implement asbestos-related Operations and Maintenance (O&M)
Program. .
. Institute preventative measures to eliminate the reasonable likelibood

that the ACM will become damaged, deterionated, of delaminated.

. Abate materials, if preventive measures cannot be edectively
implemented, or if other corrective actions cannot protect bumas
he#ith and environment. Immediately isolate ares and restrics access
1o avoid imminent danger 1o human health and environment.

Pamaged ACM . Immediately implement O%.. -, - »,

. Encapsulation.

. Enclosure.

. Removal,

. Repair,

ACM with major damage - Immediately isolate and restrict access 10 area to only authorized
personnel

. Notify proper officials,

. If ACM debris is loose, air bandling systera may have to be shut down
of modified 1o prevent fiber migration,

. Evaluate options for response actions.
. major damage may limit options to removal,

- decide which options are feasible and can be done successfully
10 protect human health and the environment.
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v
Project Inspection

Binject laspeciion Checkilat -

Construction projects which involve asbestos, including asbestos abatement projects and
renovation projects with some asbestos contrel or abate ment elements, may be managed
by cither the regional Design and Construction (D&C) Division or the field office,

depending oo their scope and complealy.

Projects which may involve asbesios disturbance, even ise small amounts typical of
O&M progeams, should consider asbestos in their design. The project designer should
rely on previous asbestos inspection results when suspect materials at the work site were
sampled, or when similar ("homogeneous®) areas have been assessed, so that ashestos
is assumed to be present at the work site. (Asbestos abatement projects requite new
ashestos inspections as part of the design process.) Where doubt remains about the
presence of condition of ACM st a work sie, a pew inspection and assessment should
be performed as part of the project design process.

Frer when this ashestas element of the design process reveals no asbestos, all parties,
including the project designer, O&M workers and supervisors, the FACM and project
imspectorns, must be alert to analyze any suspicious materials that are encountered during
camiruction

When sah projects are managed by D&C, the Contracting Officer's Representative
{COR) w4 project manager on the D&C staff. The project inspection will then be
performed by the project manager or by a contract construction quality manager (CQM)
on hebalfl of the project manager. It is advisable 10 include the field office manager as
2 Comtracuing fficer's Technical Representative, and to involve the Facility Asbestos
Control Manager (FACM) in review of the design and construction of the project. The
tacility's Plannes /Estimators (P/E’s) should usually be involved in the review of these
projects, because of their extensive knowledge of the facility’s operating system (e.g.,
HVAC, plumbing and electrical systems). Another advantage to the input provided by
the P/E’s is that project inspection checklists can be moditied to reflect the special
design considerations they may have implemented.

Whes such projects are managed by the field office, the COR is usually the field office
manager. The FACM or a designated, asbestos-trained, alternate may serve as the
projes1 inspector, responsidle for insuring that ad work be conducted according to
written specificatioos. The FACM's position of overseeing all aspects of the asbestos
program withis the facility puts him /her in a position whereby adequate supervision can
take piace. It & important also 1o include the facility’s P/E's in the inspection process.
Because the P/E's will have included any special conditions in the project specifications,
their input can be critical when inspecting an abatement project. Additionally, the P/E’s
may be able to handle many problems which may arise, serve as troubleshooters in
special instances, and provide Jogistical support for temporary power considerations and
HVYAC modifications.

Yt L
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The project inspectors will be responsible for monitoring the project and ke ping a checklist
of all aspects of the work. This checklist will serve as a written record of the operations that
100k place inctuding work area preparation, personal protective equipment used, and work
practices employed.

The project will monitor the project closely during all stages. Work area
preparations will include isolating.the work area by establishing negative pressure enclosures
according to the specifications, shutting down or modifying the air handling systems making
sure overpr ssurization does not occur elsewhere in the building, and compliance with
applicad’e EPA, OSHA, and DOT regulations, including EPA and OSHA notification when
required.

It is extremely important that close attention be paid 10 the actual work practices during
batement. The inspectors will have to enter the work acea to monitor work practii.s,
check the iategrity of containment barriers, ensire compliance with worker protection
regulations, and determine compliance with special conditions contained in the
specifications. By making repeated inspections, scheduled and unscheduled, during the
abatement project, the inspectors can detect any changes in work practices, rate potential
problems, and act toward correcting them,

Asbestos-related projects will require a close working relationship among the FACM, field
office manager, project manager and project inspectors. Obviously, the larger or more
complex projects may entail more difficult problems, so anything these team members can
do before the project begins will help to alleviate future mishaps. This will include
cooperation oa specification writing, coordination of project inspections, and performing a
therough visual inspection of the work area prior to clearance sampling,

Abatement projects of a smaller size are usually performed under maintenance contracts
and include mechanical, electrical, and communication maintenance; elevator maintenance;
and carpet installation and removal, among others. Because these projects may involve
workers relatively unskilled in asbestos control procedures, the project may be more difficult
to control. As a result, proper procedures for working with ACM must be explicitly stated
in maintenance contracts, Also, these projects will require closer inspection by the field
office than larger projects, and may not have the proper engineering controls that would be
found on the more elaborate, large projects. It is important that the FACM be awere of
wboiswmkingonmypmjeawilhintbebuﬂdin;andmstworkpuaimbedmely
monitored,

Among the resources available for inspection or consultetion on project design are industrial
bygienists from citber the regional Safety and Environmental Management (S&EM)
Branch/Division staff os contractors 1o the Branch/Division. While most O&M activites
will not require industrial hygiess involvement, some of the most complex or remitive
projects may, as determined by coner’tation beiween the Buildings Manager and the S& EM
Chief /Director.

49
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(Lampacior)
Come PRons:
Sgaet
(Facdiy Ashasics Concrol Manages) Do
Clearance Inspection Checklist

This chacklist can be used in conjunction with the Project Inspection Checklist to document
the work practices from a project’s start t0 its completion. More specifically, the Clearance
Inspection Checklist will be completed after a clearance vicual inspeetion is condu.ted and
following clearance air sampling.

The building, abatement project numbe. date, and location of the work area should be
secorded for each inspection conducted. » scause, in SOmMe cases, more than one clearance
inspection may need o be conducted, the number of the clearance inspection should be
recorded. Additionally, to provide a quick reference to some of the project specifics, the
type of asbestos-containing material (ACM) being abated and an approximate amount of
materisl abated should be indicated.

The inspector will look primarily at two criteria: (1) whether any loose, residual dust
remains on any surfaces within the work area, and (2) whether any gross of incompletely
removed contamination exists within the area. 1f either residual dust of gross contamination
is found, its location snould be noted, and this area should reccive additional attention
during subsequent clearance inspections.

. e results of the clearance inspection will be indicated (pass or fail) with space for
addi.;onal comments such as overall appearance of the work area, of rewsons for failure of
the inspection.

An indication whether clearance sampling was conducted, the date it was conducted, and
results should be inciuded on this form. A more detaited record of the clearance air
sampling process can be gained by referring to the Data Form for Alr Samples.

Finally, the form should be signed and dated by the inspector and his/her afflliation should
be indicated. The Facility Asbestos Conteol Manager will also sign and date the form,
indicating completion of the inspection.
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Baildag: Progect Nou
Addreas: .

Locatios: GSA Bidg. Nou:
Daie aed Time Inapoction Stanted: Completed
Asbestos-Containing Material Being Abated: . Suwiiaciag

Approximate Amoust of Material Adated:
laspection for Residual Dust:

— Thermal Sysicem Insulation

—_— e Miscellsnzoms

Nowe Fouad

5¢ P

Residual duct found on:

floce e dorizostal sufaces
- pipes HVAC equipment
— lighis oiber (specify)
Taspectios for Gross Cont Nose Fousd
Gross com found ow
_— dock e Sructural members
—— PP . Other (specily)
foors
Resuks of Clearance Ingpoction; Fass PRSI ' |
Comments;,
Charnxe of Air Sampling Comductad: Yea No Due
Resulls of Clcarance Air Sampiing Arca Pames: Yes No
Copiss of data sheets aitached.
Arsa [sapested By, Dete __ Tme
Iaspector's Company/Orgasication: o
Sagad_ o Detes . _
(Facility Asbestos Coutrol Maxager)
53
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Waste Disposal Record Form

Waste Disposal Recordd Forxa

This form is to be completed upon the generation of asbestos-containing waste material and
transport 10 the landfill. Information will be collected as tv whether the waste was generated
during wet removal operations, or under dry removal operations which require advance EPA
approval, or as & result of collection of debris. If the material is removed under dry
conditions, a copy of EPA approval forms should be attached. Additinnally, information
should be given regarding the containerization of the waste, whether in labeled €& mil
polyethylene bags, metal or fiberboard drums, or other approved containers.

Upon inu. ation of the waste disposal procedures, a chain of custody should be established.
As each of the disciplines listed on the form (contractor, waste hauler, landfill operator, and
owner) completes his/hes involvement in the chain, the appropriate blank should be checked.
All landfill receipts and forms (including copies of hazardous waste manifests) should be
attached. Due 1o the potential legal liability associated with disposal of asbestos-containing
wastes, all parties involved should acknowledg : their receipt of the disposal records, including
the building owner or owner's represcntative.

The namc.'add:ess. phone number, and 1andfil! confact would be noted on this form,

In following federal requirements concerning disposal notification, ali applicable notifications
of Federal, State, and Local NESHAP officials in the U.S. EPA or an agency delegated by
the EPA to receive this notification should be indicated. The date of notification stould be
secorded, and all verifications of rotifications, as well as copies of the origina' notification,
should be attached.

Although asbestos is not listed by the EPA as a hazardous waste under the Resource
Ccnservation 2and Recovery Act (RCRA), many states with EPA-approved state RCRA plans
have classified asbestos waste as hazardous, requiring stringent hardling and disposal
procedures. The state bazardous waste agency should be contacted in advance of & project
for approved disposal methods, recordkeeping requirements, and a list of facilities accepting
ashestos-containing waste.

Under Superfund regulations, when more than one pound of friable asbestos is released into
the environment, or if there is a threat of such a release, the Facility Asbestos Control
Manager (FACM), or the manager of an asbestos-related construction project, oust
immediatcly notify the National Response Center at §00-424-8802 (in Washington, DG
202-426-2675). GSA, or the contractor, is responsible for removing the asbestos from the
environment or taking other appropriate remedial action in response to the actual or
threatened release.

The form should be signed and dated by the project inspector, the GSA Contract oumber
(if app!’ :able) should be indicated, and the FACM should sign the form.
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WASTE DISPOSAL RECORD FORM
Building: . — GSA Bidg. No.:
Address: GSA Projest No.:
Ares of Work:
WASTE INFORMATION
Wet Removal
~— Dry Removal (EPA Approval Forms Attached)
Containgrization (check all that apoix)
. Labelled 6 mil bags
Meta! drums (labeled) ——. Fiberboard drums (labeled)
— Other (specify)

DISPOSAL NOTIFICATION (Check All That Apply and Provide Coples)

Local NESHAP notification Date:
State NESHAP snotification Date:
Federal EPA notification Date:
Landfili Operator Date:

(——————

—————

PSS

CHAIN OF CUSTODRY (Altach Landflil Receipts/Forms)

Contractor Date Manifest No.:
. Waste hauler Date ____ Manifess No.:
Landfill operatnr Date Manifest No.:
DISPOSAL SITE
Landfill pame:
Mailing address:
Phoae sumber:
Amount of material: _
Form Complsted By Date:
GSA Coatract #
Sigued: Date:
{Fucility Asbestos Control Manager)

57
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Employee Training & Medical Information

Yerification of Employee Tralning "

When woiking around arg wih asbestos-containing material, it is imporiant that workers
be trained in the dangers of asbestos and the proper methods of asbestos control. When
awarding a maintenance contract or directing staff mairtenance workers, it i important that
those workers involved in potentiali,; hazardous situations be trained, and that each Facility
Asbestos Control Manager (FACM) verify this .raining.

When using an in-house staff for she smaller-scale operations, verificution will be easier than
when using outside contractors. For all in-house personnel who receive training regarding
asbestos abatement, operations and inaintenance, or custodial programs, a verification form
should be completed and a copy of a uaining certificate attached. Information on the form
should include the employee name, pesition or title, and organizational unit. The training
course title and training provid r should also be provided. The date and length of course
should be recorded, and whether the course has been granted full approval by the US.
Environmental Protection Ag:ncy, or by an EPA-approved state program. Additionally, the
employee’s name should be entered into the Master List of Training Information. This
Master List should include Social Security number, organizational unit within GSA, title of
training received, completion date, and the name of the training organization.

Maintenance workers should be trained in asbestos-related work practices prior to their
working in a building with asbestos-containing materials (ACM). Custodial workers should
be given asbestos awareness training (including how to avoid disturbing ACM and how to
respond when encountering disturbed ACM) within 30 days after they start work in such
bu..dings. (GSA custodial workers and contract custodial workers are not to clean ep
asbestos debris themselves.) It is recommended that contractors submit verification of
employee training at the time & contract is bid in order to determine qualifications. In the
event this is not feasible, verification of training should be submitted within 30 days of the
awarding of the contract. Additionally, proof of training shoula be submitted o later than
30 days after s new contractor employee begins work within a building containing ACM. By
verifying proper training, the FACM can keep better control of who may work on a project,
and prevent unauthorized or untrained individuals from entering a hazardous area or
performing work improperly.
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Verificalion Of Employse Tralaing
Employse Nae _ .
Social Security #
Position — E—
Employce: Noo-GSA
Tralning Provider __
Address _
Training Course Title

Date of Course

Length of Course (Hours)

Was This Course:  ___ _ Initial Training Update Training

Does Course Have Full Approval of 1.8, Environmental Protection Agency? ___

Does Employee Participate in Respirator Program?  _____ Yes No
Does Employes Participais in Medical Surveillance Program? ___ Yes ____No

Auach 7. s of Centificate Indicating Successfl Completion of Training (including appropriate
examinatio).



MASTER LIST OF TRAINING INFORMATION

SOCIAL COMPLETION TRAINING
EMPLOYEE NAME SECURITY DEPARTMENT TRAINING RECEIVED DATE ORGANIZATION
NUMBER
| w—— —

61

. .

- -
.

68
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Moedical Questionnaires

Asbestos-related operations and maintenance work in GSA buildings is covered by the
OSHA Asbestos Construction Industry Standard. It is GSA practice 1o have employees who
work with asbestos-containing materials in abatement or operations and maintenance obtain
annual medical examinations. This approach is consistent with the OSHA Construction
Industry Asbestos Standard, described below, birt provides greater protection for the workers
by not requiring waiting until the action level is exceeded before starting the exam cycle.

Employees covered under OSHA's Asbestos Standard for the Construction Industry (29
CFR 1926.58) must be enrolled in a medical surveillance program when asbestos exposures
meet or exceed the action level of 0.1 fibers per cubic centimeter of air based on an 8-bour
time weighted average and/or the excursion limit of 1.0 fibers per cubic centimeter of air
based on a 30-minute time weighted average, for 30 or more days per year, or those
employees who wear negative pressure respirators. The medical surveillance program will
include completion of the attached Initial Medical Questionnaire (Part T) upon initial
examination, and completion of the Periodic Medica! Questionnaire (Part IT) on an annual
basis.

While the OSHA standard requires that medical records be retained for the duration of
employment plus 30 years, GSA requires that medical records for GSA employees be
retained permanently with an Asbestos Records Label on all asbestos medical file folders.

The GSA building manager or Facility Asbestos Control Manager should have a master list
of employees in the asbestos medical surveillance program and ensure that employees are
current in their medical examinations.
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From Pederal Register/Vol. 81, No. 113/Priday, June 20, 1338/Rules and Reguiations

s.
.
10.

iL

13
13.

14,

18,

1.

Part
INITIAL MEDICAL QUESTIONNAIRER

Name -

Social Security # ) ’ e e
) 3 3 I 5 s 1 8 ]

CLOCK NUMBER

v 11 "1z % Tis Tis

PRESENT OCCUPATION
PLANT __
ADDRESS

(Zip Code)
TELEPIHONE NUMBER

INTERVIEWER
Date _—
18 17 s 1% 120 21
Date of Birth —
MW OWOW W
Place of Blrth
Sex 1. Male
1, Female
What Is your marital status? 1. Single 4. Separated/
2. Married Divoeced
3. Widowed
Rsce 1. White 4. Hispenle
2. Back $. Indizn
3. Aslan & Other —

What Is the hghest grade completad In school?
(For example, 1% years I completion of high school)

L
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OCCUPATIONAL HISTORY.

Have you ever worked full time 1. Yee 2. No
30 hours per week or mors) for —

§ monils or move?

I7 YESTO 11 /

Have you ever worked fora year 1. ' Yes __ 2, Ne

or more In any dusty job? 3. DoesNot Apply .

Specify job/Industry Total Years Worked

Was dust exposure: 1. Mild 2, Modarate 3. Severe _ ___
Have you ever been exposed o gas oF 1. Yee 3. No

chemical fumes In your work?

Specify job/industry Total Years Worked

Wasexposures 1. Mild __ 2. Moderate ___ 3. Severs

What has deen your usual ocu. Paiien ur Job — the one ,ou have worked at the
longest?

1. Job ocecupation

2. Number of years employed in this occupation
3. Positionfjob title

4. Business, field or industey

{(Record on iines the years in which you have worted in any of these Industries, e.g.,
1960-1969)

Have you aver workeds

»

»ropop

Inamne? . .. .o ce00ccoecreccee

IDAQUAITYY . ¢ ¢ ¢ o ¢ 6 6 0 0 v a0 c oo e o y
INafoun®y? . . ¢ c ¢ 1 o e v e o s 00 v s
IPOtIOFY? « o+ o o v o v o e o e a0 oo oo o
Inacotton, fla, ordenpMIl? . o o ¢ e a0 o0 o -1
WHAABDOSIORY,  « o o o o o0 o b oo a e b .
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PAST MEDICAL HISTORY

A,

YRS
Do you consider yourself 1o be in good heaith?

NO

1£-"NO" siate ;eason

Have youany defectof vislon? . « o ¢ & o o o o

I® "YEA™ state nature of defect

Have you any hel.r!ngdlflc". * 2 0 0 00 s 8 e

If *YES" stats nature of defect

Are y‘cu «wffering from or have you ever sulfered from:

Bpllepsy {or fits, seizures, convulsions?)

Rheumatic fever?

E Y

b

e,  Kidney diseass?
d.  Bladder disease?
[ 5

Diabetes?

f.  Jdsundice?

CHEST COLDS AND CHEST ILLNESSRS

A.

If you get s cold, does 1t ysually 1. Yes 3. No

go to your chest? (Usually means 3.  Don't get colds

mare than 1/2 the time)

Duringthe past Syears, haveyu 1. Yes ____ -2 No ____

had any chest flinesses that have

Lept you off work, indoors at home,

o¢ 1a dad?

1P YRS TO 20A1

Did you produce phiegm with any of

these chest [linesses? 1.  Yes 2. No
. 3.  Does Not Apply

In the last 3 years, how many such Number of llinesses
fiinesses with (Incrensed) phisgm did  No. such llinesses
you have which lasted s wesk or more? .
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DI8 you have any lung troudis before 1.
the age of 187

Have you ever had s of the following?
1A. Attacks of M”th W

1P YES 1O 1A
B, Wasit confirmed by a doetor? 1.
.

C. At what age was your first attack?

Yes

Yoo

Yes

Doesmpp!y

2A. Pncumonia (Include bronchopneumeniz)? 1.

IF YRS TO 2A:
B. Wes it confirmed by a doetor?

C. At what age did you first have it?

JA. Hay Pever? .
B. Was It confirmed by & doctor?
C. At what age did It start?

A. Have you ever had chronle broncditia?
IF YES TO 23A:

B. Do you still have it1?

C. Was it confirmed by a doetor?

D. At what age did it start?

A. Have you ever hed smphysema?
IF YE3 10 24A:

& Do ysu siill have 117

C. Was it coafirnaed by & doctor?

1,
3.

o e

|
|

2. No

L No

Age In Years
Does Not Apply

2. No

NN

Yas

wp—

Yeos .
Does Not Ag, 'y

|

Agein Years
Does Not Apply

Yes 2. No

——

Does Not Apply

|

Age in Years
Does Not Apply

Yes 2. No

|

Yeos 2. Neo
Does Not Apply

Yes 2. No

"Doss Not Apply
Age ia Yeary ——
Does Not Apply —
Yes L No __

b ¢ &L N
Doss Net Am.:...._.._._

Yeos L N ___

Doss Nox Apply
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Ix Al what sge did It start? Age In Yeare
) Does Not Apply
25, A. Have gou ever had asthma? 1. Yes % Ne
1F YES TO 28as )
B Doyou still have it? . 1 Y 1. Ne
o 3. Does Not Apply
C. ¥Was It confirmed by a doctor? 1. Yes 2. No
3. Does Not Apply
D. At what age did it start? Ags In Yaare
Does Not Apply
B If you no longer have it, at what Age Stopped
age did it stop? Does Not Apply

28, Have you ever hads

A.  Any other chest iliness? 1. Yes 2. No
iIf ycs, Please specify

B.  Any chest operations? 1. Yes 2. No
It yes, Please specify

C. Any chest Injurfes? 1.‘ Yes 2. No
If yes, Please specily

2£7. Has a doctor ever to!d you that you 1. Yes 2. No ‘
had heart trouble?
TP YES TO 27As

8. Haveyouever! ’'treatment focrheart 1. Yes 3. No

trouble In the pe. 10 years? 3. Does Not Apply
28. A. Has a doetor every told you that 1. yes % No

you hsd digh Blood pressure?

I? YES TO 18A:

B.  Have you had any trestment for high 1. Yes ___ 3 No
blood pressure (hypertension) in the 3. Does Not Apply
past ten years?

29, When dId you last Rave your chest
=rayed? {Year)

% 1 TN
38,  Whare did you last have your chest x-rayed {if known)?
What was the cutcome?

A
-
~ -
~
R




PAMILY HISTORY -
31, Were either of your natural parents ever 10i3 by a doctor that they had a chronle
Jung condition sech am
' FATHXR NOTHER
5. Yes 3 Ne 3 Doot 1. Yes 2. No 3 Dot
- Know Know
A. Chronle : ’
8ronchitis? — — — —— v
B.  emphysemat _ — — — — —_
C.  Asthma? —_— —_— — — —
D. Lungcancer? _ ——— —_— —_ —_— —_—
FATHER MOTHER
1. Yes 2 No 3. Doa%t 1. Yes 2. No 3. Dont
Know Know
E.  Other chest
conditions? —_— — — —_
' F. s parent currently
alive? — — —_ — —
G.  Please Specify __ Age if Living — Age if Living
— " Age a8 Death —_— Age at Death
— Don't Xnow —_ Don't Know
He  Pleass specify
cause of death
coug
33. A, Doyoususually dave s cough? (Counta 1. Yes 2. No. ____
cough with flrst smoke or on first golng
out of doors. Exciude elearing of throat.)
(1f no, skip to question 33C.) .
5 Doyowwmally coogh mmuchadto$ 1. Yesa____ 2 No __
times a day 4 or more Jays out of the week?
oough at all o getting 1. Yes . No ___

[
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IP YESTO ANY OF ABOVR (32A, B, C, or D), ANSWER THE FOLLOWING, I¥ NO TO

ALL, CHECK DOZS NOT APPLY AND SKIP TO NEXT PAGR.
myw;!nﬂymmcthhum 1. Yes_ _ % No _
days for 3 consecutive months or more 1. Doses Not Apply
during the year?
F. Yorhow m;ny years have you had the cough? . Number of Years
Does Not Apply
3% _A. Do you usually bring up phiegm from your 1. Yes . No

chest? (Count phlegm with the first smoke o¢ on
first going out doors. Bxclude phlsgm

from the nosa. Count swallowed phiegm.)

Qf noy skip to 33C.)

R Do you usually dring up phlegm 1lke this 1. Yes 2. No
as much ag twice a day £ or more dayw
out of the week?

C. Do you usually bring up phiegm st ail on 1. Yes 2. No
getting up or first thing In the morning?

D. Do you usually dring up phlegm at all L. VYes 2, No
during the rest of the day or at night? .

IF YES TO ANY OF THE ABOVE (33A, B, C, OR D), ANSWER THE POLLOWING:
1? NO TO ALL, CHECK DOES NOT APPLY AND SKIP TO 34A.

E. Do you bring up phlegm like this on most 1. Yes 3. No :
days for § consecutive months or more 3. Does Not Apply
during the year?
F.  For bow many years have you had troudle Number of Years
with phiegm? Does Not Apply
EPISODES OF COUGCH AND PHLEGM
34 A, Have you had periods or eplsodes of L. Yes 1. No

{increased®) cough and phiegm lasting
5:;3 wnhor:;:ucuhi:m

or persons usually Bave cough
and/o¢ phiegm)

B IF YESTO MA:
Foe how fong have you had at least 1 such Number of Years —_—
eplsode per year? Doss Not Apply

iy
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37

L1 8

WHEEZING "

A.  Does your ohest ever sound wheesy or
whistling
1. When Dave » cold?
L. from colds?

B,

>3

D,

3. Most daysor )4

IF YESTO 1,9, or 3 in 35As

Yor how many ycars has this been presem?
Have you ever had an attack of wheexlng
that has made you feel short of dreath?

IF YES TO 38A:

How old wers you when you had your first
such attack?

Have you had 2 or more such episodes?

Have you cver required medicine or
treatment for the(sc) attack(x)?

BREATHLESSNESS

If disadled from walking by any conditioa
other than heart or Jung disesse, plense
describe and proceed to question 39A.
Nature of condition(s)

1.

Yoo ___. & No
Y ___. L No
Yoo __ L No

Number of Years
Does Not Apply
Yas 2. No

Age In Years

Does Not Apply

Yes ___ 2 No
Does Not Apply

Yes 2. No
Docs Not Apply

Are you troubled by shortness of breath
when hurrying on the leval or walking
up a siight hiilt

1F YES TO 38A:

Do you have *o walk slower than people
of your age on the Jevel becavee of
bresthlsseness?

Do you evar have to stop for breath whan
walking at your own pace on the leval?

Do you aver have to nop for breath after
walking sbowt 188 yards (or after a few
mioutes) on the level?

Are you too breathisss to leave the house
or dreathiess on dreasing or climbing one
flight of stales?

Yes 2. No

Yeas 2. No

Does Not Apply ___ —

Y 2. N
n:'u'ﬂ’a?mr, °

Yes L. No
Does Not Apply

Y % N
Does Wak Aoply

O——
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40.

c’

TOBACCO SMOEING
Have you sver smoked cigurettes?

{No meacs jass than 20 packs of cigarettes

or 12 ox- of tobacco In a lifetime or
less thas 1 sigarette & day for 1 yesrl)

I¥ YES TO 39%As )
Do you now smoke cigarettes (as of
one month ago)?

How old were you when you first started
regular cigarette smoking?

If you have stopped smoking cigarettes
completely, how old were you when you
stopped? ’

flow many cigarettes do you smoke per
day now?

On the average of the entire time
you smoked, how many cigareties
did you smoke per day?

Do or ¢id you Inhale the clgarette
smoke?

Have you ever smoked s pipe reguiarly?
(Yes means more than 12 oz. of tobacco
In a lifetime.)

1F YES TO 40A:

1. Yes

Age In Years
Does Not Apply

Ape Stopped
Check If still smoking
Does Not Apply

Clgarettes per day
Does Not Apply

Clgarettes per day
Does Not Apply

1.. Does Not Apply
2. Not At All

3. Slightly
4.  Moderately

S, Deeply
1. Yes 1.

P

No

FOR PERSONS WHO HAYE EVER SMOKED A PIPR

1.  How old were you when you started
to smoke s plpa regularly?

3.  If you have stopped amoking & pipe
completely, how old were you when

On the avarage over the entire time you

smoked 8 pipe, how much pipe tobaceo did

you smoke per week?

-,

Age ___

Age Stopped
Check If stil}
smoking pipe
Does Not Apply

os. per week
{a standard pouch
of tobacco contains
1+1/2 ox.)

Does Not Apply

|

|

| H

|

|
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Date

100

How much pipe tobaceo are you smoking now?

Do you or d1d you inhale the pipe smoke?

Have you ever smoked cigars regularty?
{Yes mcuns more than | «igar a week for
a yaw)

1Y YES TO $1As

Oz, per waek
Not currently
smoking s plpe

1. Never smoked
2. Noxatall

3. Slighly

4. Moderately

5. Deeply

T

FOR FERSONS WHO HAVE EVER SMOKED CIGARS

1.  How old were you when you started
smoking cigars rogularly?

2,  If youNhave stopped smoking cigars
completely, how old were you when
stopped?

On the averaga over the entire time you
smoked cigars, how many cigars did you
smoke per week?

How many cigars are y;)u smoking per week
now?

Do you or 4 you Innale the eigar smoke?

Age

Age Stopped
Cheek if stil}
smoking cigars
Does Not Apply

Cigars per week
Does Not Apply

Clgars week
Cheek if not
smoking cigars
currently

1. Never smoked
2. Notatall
3. Rightly
4. Moderataly
§. Desply

1IN { llll
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From Pedersl Register/Vol. $1, No, 119/Friday, June 28, 1958/ Rules and Reguiations
Part 2
. PERIODIC MEDICAL QUESTIONNAIRR

Name - N

L 3 Social Security #

r

3. CLOCK NUMBER

4. PRESENT OCCUPATION
5. PLANT __

.. ADDRESS

(Zip Code)
8. TELEPHONE NUMBER

t 2 INTERVIEWER

19, Date
TN AT T N T IR 7
i1 What Is your marital status? 1. Single 4. Separated/
2. Married Divorced
3. Widowed

OCCUPATIONAL HISTORY

12 A. In the past yesr, did you 5. Yes___ 3 No
worked full timg (38 hours
per weak or more) for § months or

more?
I YRS TO 12As

1% B. In the past year, did you work 1. Yes 2. No

in any dusty job? 3. Does Not Apply
3% G, Wasdust exposures 1. Mila 2. Modarste S Sevare _
1%, D, In the past year, were you 1. Yes g No

saposed to gas or chemical

fumes in your work?
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1%. K Wasexposuwres 1. NIS_— 3. Moderste 3. Severe

15, 7. Inthe past year,
what wuntm' "~ L. Job/oceupation

. 2. Position/job titlef

13, | 4 MSDICAL 11

13. A. Do-you consider yourself to be

in good hoalth? Yes

if NO, state reason

|

13. B In the past year, have you
developeds Yo

Emphysemat
Rheumatic fever?
Kidncy disease?
Bladder diseasa?
Disbates?
Jaundica?
Cancer?

[T
[T

14, CHEST COLDS AND CHEST ILLNESSRS

14, A, [l you get a cold, does 1t usually 1. Yes
0 to your chest? (Usually means 2. Don't get colds
more than 1/2 the time)

15. A.  During the past 3 years, have you L Ya
had any chest {linesses that have 3. Does not Apply
kept you off work, indoors st homse,
or in bed?

1. B IF YESTO 18As

Did you produce phlegm with any of
thase ehast {linemes?

 od

Yoo

R
Does ot Apply

15. G Inthe past years, how many sueh Number of linesses
Llinesses with (Increased) phlegm did No. such liinesees
you have which lasted & weak or more?

o

F

|

[
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16. RESPIRATORY SYSTEM
In the pest year, have you hads
. Further Comment on Positive
Yes oo No,
Asthma : .
Broachite
Hay Yover
Other Allergien
Pasumoria
Tuberculosie
Chest Surgery
Oiber Lung Problams

Heart Dissase

Do you huves

Further Comment on Positive
e or Answersy

Frequent colde
Chronla cough
Shortness of breath
when walking or
:‘umm Night
Do yous

Wheese
Cough up phlegm
Smoke eigureties Packsperday ___  How many years

Date Signature

Penah,
.
-

~1
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Mr. LukeN. Thank you, Mr. McMillen.

Thank you, Ms. Fisher. I presume that these further steps you
have described are not going to be taken in the next few weeks, so
that we have nothing specifically to hold the record open for in ref-
erence to questions. But the record will be held open for 30 days,
and if there’s anything you would care to submit, or if any ques-
tions come in, we'll be forwarding them to you &s they come in. So
we thank you very much.

Ms. Fisaer. Thank you.

Mr. Luken. It looks like we have a vote on. In the interest of
moving along, we will take the next panel. We are going to rear-
range things a little bit because of plane schedules. The next panel
will be Dr. Levin and Dr. Gee. We flipped a coin and we'll go al-
phabetically.

Dr. Gee, we have your testimony, which we will receive. We will
give you approximately 5 minutes to summarize it or tell us what
you can. I'm sure there will be questions to amplify it.

STATEMENTS OF J. BERNARD I.. GEE, PROFESSOR OF MEDICINE,
YALE UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF MEDICINE: AND STEPHEN M.
LEVIN, MEDICA]L DIRECTOR, MOUNT SINAI-IRVING J. SELI-
KOFF OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CLINICAL CENTER, NEW YORK
CITY
Mr. Gee. I will not read my statement, and I'm going to pass up

a lot of the preliminary stuff in here and try to address three or

four things straight out.

Let's start by just reminding ourselves of three or four important
differences that get mingled up. I think the first one is to recognize
that asbestos is a commercial term and it isn’t anything else other
than that. It’s not even a scientific term.

Broadly speaking, there are two groups—the amphiboles, which
we'll call “nasty”, and the chrysotile, which, in spite of some of the
testimony that will be given later, we'll not call safe, but we'll say
“safer”’. Second, the commonest form of that in buildings is chryso-
tile, mostly from Canada.

A second very important distinction is to recognize there are two
kinds of people in buildings. There are two populations, those who
work on and those who either work or dwell in buildings. The
latter are a majority and that's what that Science article primarily
addressed. They are the respousibility of EPA.

By contrast, there's a group of people who work in buildings and
who are, in some instances, necessarily working with asbestos. I
certainly have seen over the years a number of people whose busi-
ness it is to take care of the boilers of a number of rather substan-
tial Connecticut insurance companies who clearly have evidence of
their asbestos exposure. This is not a new observation. It has been
known for a long time. Although we may have some more data on
it, that group clearly is a worker with asbestos as, indeed, would be
an abatement worker, and a separate and appropriate management
of that has to be considered. ether it's an OSHA regulation or a
specific legiglative act is for you ladies and gentlemen to decide.

With that preamble, let me now address the other crucial distinc-
tion—and there are several here—on the kinds of disease that as-
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bestos produces. The great name of the game in obfuscation is to
mix everything up and allow it to part and assume they’re all the
same. They are not. The first disease is asbestosis, or lung fibrosis.
1 submit there is not ore scrap of data to indicate that in American
schools, or any other buildings, by dwellers in or workers in as op-
posed to on, that asbestosis has occurred.

Now, that's the fibrosis. The reason for that is dose. It's entire
compatible with the numbers that have been observed of airborne
leveﬁin workplaces contrasted with what we see in the buildings
and, for that matter, in outside air. '

The second issue is lung cancer, which is clearly far more alarm-
ing. I simply must address this issue. The primary cause of lung
cancer in everyone is smoking, The major dominant factor in even
asbestos workers is still smoking. 1 am not, by that, seeking to dis-
inculpate, if that's the right word, asbestos in all lung cancers in
asbestos workers. That would be wrong. But there’s no doubt that
most of them are smokers.

The point I want to make is that for society we have now got to
look at a population of people who are exposed to something be-
tween 1/200th to 1/2000th of the historic exposures and 1/200th of
the allowable exposures to asbestos, whose smoking habits are
drastically changing and should be enforceably changed, certainly
in public buildings, and in whom the switch from nonfilter to filter
cigarettes, which by the way has an additional risk if you don’t do
it, has all changed.

The point I want to make is that asbestos alone, in the concen-
trations being observed, in ambient air and buildings alone, with-
out smoking, is a minuscule risk for lung cancer. If we wish to pay
the abatement business to save smoking, I think, as a personal citi-
zen now, that is in error.

The third point I wanted to make—and this is the issue of the
schools—that is, that mesothelioma, which is a separate lung
cancer—I'm sorry. Let me rephrase that. It is a separate cancer af-
fecting the lining membrane of the lung. This is a totally different
disease. Fortunately, it’s rare, and the exact incidence is of the
order of 20 cases per million per year in the entire population.

Now, there is a lot of argument about this, but I personally be-
lieve—and with all due respect, I would suggest that those who
hold conferences should invite people to that conference who have
these views and who are in a position to prove it—that the evi-
dence that chrysotile caused this is minimal. That is the so-called
safe aspestos,

Now, there isn't any doubt that the others will do it. There is
some doubt whether chrysotile ever does it. The problem that is
quite correctly pointed out is that what is called chrysotile is
rather like asking what's in ice cream. Sometimes there are things
in it you're not quite sure about. In this instance, there's another
fiber called tremolite that accounts for 1 percent of it. That is a
very definite agent capable of causing mesothelioma.

However, there are a number of reasons to believe that that's
not a big issue in buildings, which we could discuss if you wish.
The point I still want to make is that the epidemiology on which
that is based treats chrysotile soup, that is chrysotile prostremo-
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lite, as the substrate. In other words, the data is based on the mix-
ture, not on the pure form. So it's still valid.

I think those are the main points about the types of asbestos that
need to be made, and I think I will just briefly tell two very quick
stories, because although they're actually very small numbers, they
are horrifying examples of what unfortunately is the truth.

Any of us who grew up in London during World War II will
know that we all had gas masks, and the God-given civilians got
chrysotile in their filters. The unfortunate gentlemen or others
who had to fight got a military yas mask in which the amphibole
crocidolite was the filter. Those were made by women working in
the north of England. There was one mesothelioma in the chryso-
tile group and that was due to another exposure. Fifteen percent of
the people who worked with massive doses of this pure crocidolite
went down with mesotheliomas 20 to 30 years later.

Now, without naming the cigar .- company, there is one compa-
ny that used asbestos in its filter lome of them were crocidolite,
or rather amphiboles. Some of them were not. The chrysotile man-
ufacturing totals had no trouble. The reverse was true with the
others. Those are small groups, but they have the misery of being
the kind of experiment you can only normally do on rats and had
the misfortune, out of ignorance, at that point to do on people. It
really clarified the issue. There is a stack of epidemiology to prove
it,band this should have been represented ai all meetings on this
subject.

I would like just to turn to a couple of final summary remarks
and then, with your permission, I would like to read something
that really reflects me as a person rather than as a scientific
person. I want to conclude by saying that for asbestosis there is no
risk. For lung cancer, the risk is a voluntary one; it’s smoking. For
mesothelioma, it is an involuntary risk, but it's tiny, provided as-
bestos is kept at the present levels and is not messed with.

By the way, the worst job an insulator ever had to do was rip out
dry asbestos. That's called abatement. I testified once in a Federal
institution, a Na iard, on behalf of workers who were doing ex-
actly that, who all they wanted, unfortunately, was hazardous pay.
I wanted that, but I also wanted a better system for doing it. The
testimony was given on the basis of showing some British Navy
tﬁpes running around in your spacesuits ripping the stuff out of
the interiors of British aircraft carriers, a practice that was not
going on 10 years ago in certain parts of this community.

All right. To conclude, first, as Ms. Fisher has eloquently said,
and cleanly said, I have nothing but praise and appreciation and
sympathy with what she is saying. We did not lampoon the EPA.

e editor did; we didn’t. We just said that the net result of the
EPA, when it got out in schoo{s, was the reverse of what 1 think
they really meant and certainly what they mean now. Abatement
was the order of the day, not containment.

Second—and this I think is absolutely crucial—it is imperative
that the general public should be addresscd by prefessional news
media and Ygsicimls alike with balanced education, with what can
only be cal staged disple; and demagogic exercises with more
hest than light. There are plenty of them in various parts of the
press.
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I submit that we require all asbestos and abatement workers be
subject at least to the equivalent of the OSHA regulations, that in-
place maintenance with limited abatement by properly trained and
equipped workers is all right, that public education is essential—
and | want to address that in a moment—and finally, I would like
to remark that the committee that is now meeting, to which Ms.
Fisher referred, should, in fact, have an opportunity to report. In
my neck of the woods there's an old saying, “If it ain’t broke, don’t
fix it. But if it is broke, fix it right.”

Mr. Luken. You've run over your 5 minutes, but please conclude
within 60 seconds.

Mr. Gek. I will conclude then, sir, by saying thet 1s my testimo-
ny. I would like to introduce just two sentences into evidence from
various reports.

This one is from an address by William K. Reilly, Administrator
of the U.S. EPA, given on July 12, 1990:

Based on recent meetings ! have held with school officials, including a delegation
based on the U.S. Catholic Conference, on discussions with members of Congress,
and on a recent spate of inaccurate and sometimes tendentious articles and columns
in the news media, it is clear to me that a considerable gap has opened up between
what the EPA is trying to say about asbestos and what the public has been hearing.

One final one, from a recent article in Science, by people who are
in the business of risk management. It says:

Society’s system for managing risks to life and limb is deeply flawed. We overact
to some risks and virtually ignore others.

Thank you for letting me read those into the record. I woula like
to at least ask permission to enter them——

Mr. LukeN. Without objection, they will be received.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Gee follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF J. BErNARD L. GEE, PrOFrssor or MEDICINE, YALE UNIVER-
sITY SCHOOL OF MEDICINE AND DirkCTOR, WincHESTER Cuest CuiNnic, YALE New
Haven HosertaL

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee; Thank you for the invitation to
testify today. My name is Bernard Gee. ] am a Professor of Medicine at Yale. In
1971 1 editorially supported the lowering of the OSHA asbestos standard (1). 1 once
testified for workers involved in asbestos removal. In the last 2 years, having re-
viewed many medical records, 1 subsaquently testified in court on seven occasions at
the request of counsel for asbestos product manufacturers.

1 am a coauvthor of two reviews (2,3), one by an international interdisciplinary
group, on asbestos and health matters. | have sent copies of my earlier testimony
before the Senate Subcommittee on Toxic Substances, Environmental Oversight, Re-
search and Development together with related correspondence to Judy L.amson, Ks-
quire.

Asbestos in the workplace has unquestionably been a very serior » cause of mor-
bidity and premature deaths from insidious lung fibrosis and maliyaunt respiratory
disesse for certain workers, and sometimes for their families. In the face of such
tragic consequences, asbestos acquired a fearsome reputation.

The purpose of my testimony is not to deny the past but to address the present
situation of asbestos in buildings including schools.

Asbestos is a commercial term for a group of fibrous minerals which differ miner-
alogically and in their biclogic effects. Two types are important, curly chrysotile and

/needle amphiboles (crocidolite, amosite and tremolite). After lung deposition (an
essential grerequisite) both can eause asbestosis but differ in carcinogenic capabili-
ties, which also depend on fiber dimensions. Historically work place airborne fiber
Jevels were high—commonly 100 f/cc. The OSHA asbestos standard is now .2 f/ce.
In further sharp contrast, airborne fiber levels of biologically critical dimensions in
buildings, schools and outside air are all less than 0.001 f/cc (200 to 2,000 times less
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than the OSHA standard). The validity of these data is discussed in the Harvard
Symposium and in letters to Science (4).

There are at least two populations in buildings—those who work on and those
who either work or dwell in buildings. The latter, the majority, are the population
at large for which EPA is the regulatory agency. The former, a minority who work
on buildingy obviously become, where asbestos is involved, ashestos workers who
should be subject to OSHA regulations.

It is not news that some such workers (e.g. heating/boiler engineers in schools)
develop asbestos-related disorders. All of us who see such patients have known this
for some years and this was recognized in our papers and letters. Peer review publi-
cations ofy recent studies of similar worker cohiorts are awaited. We agree with Sena-
tor Metzenbaum that asbestos abatement and other such asbestos workers should be
subject to the same OSHA or other appropriate ations, be the building a school
or Trump Plaza! In general the resulting disorders are most commonly pleurs!
changes which can produce some lung function loss.

1t is this worker group to which the airborne ‘‘fiber” data of Dr Sawyer (personal
communieation) apply since the measurem: als were made after structural disturb-
ance. He largely employed the then readily available phase contrast microscopy
t\;r'ehicl‘l. thcugh chrysotile was present, overestiinates the true asbestos fiber num-

TS,

Asbestos and the General Public. Here again certain issues have become commin-
gled fer some scientists and more so for John Q. Public. It is essential to consider
the asbestes-related disorders separately since their risk factors vary widely.

(1) Asbestosis—lung fibrosis—here the risk factcr is dose. Asbestosis f‘u’as never
been shown clinically to occur in the general public but only in either asbestos
vrorkers or rarely in household contacts since the general airborne fiber levels are
far too low.

(2) Lung Cancer. Since smoking, a voluntary act, alone accounts for the vast ma-
joritgogf lung cancers, it is tobacco not asbestos that is the risk {actor accounting for
130, deaths annually. Asbestos alone, withuut smoking, even in the workplace
with historic high exposures, is a rare cause of lung cancer. The contribution of as-
bestos to lung cancer in the smoking general public becomes tiny when it is recalled
that (4) early observations were based on historic high cigarette Toften nonfilter) and
very high (100 f/m]) asbestos exposures and (b) that ambient critical asbestos fiber
Jevels in or outside buildings are now 1/200th—1/2000th of the present OSHA
standard of 0.2 f/ml. Further, to the extent that asbestos-related lung cancers in
smuoking workers only occur in the presence of asbestoses, the general smoker popu-
lation has nearly no risk for asbestos-related lung cancer since asbestosis rarely if
ever occurs in general society.

Finally, the maximal estimate of 6 lung cancers per 10 million schoolchildren ex-
Eosod to 0.001 f/ml of asbestos for 6 years is a worst case scenario employing the

ighest nonthreshold risk esuimate known for the commmonest building asbestos na-
terial, chrysotile.

One wonders how many of our children are exposed in their homes to passive
smoking at levels of a pack a day per parent?! The Surgeon General has recently
emphasized this risk.

hile there are different lung cancer rates with different asbestos types, these
differences are small.

(8) Mesothelioma. This is a totally distinct disease from lung cancer, arising from
different cells in membranes (pleura and peritoneum) and unrelated to smoking.
This fatal disorder is fortunately uncommon 20 cases/million persors/vesr) and in
our opinion, the risk factor here is fiber type. The risk is highest with crocidolite
and least with chrysotile by factors of betweenr 15 and 300. Tremolite, an amphibole
present in chrysotile ores, also causes mesothelioms in both mar: and rat but only
when the tremolite is in the fiber form. While it is not entirely certain that chryso-
tile does not cause mesothelioma in man, the a proximately 1 percent tremolite
contamination of seme chrysotile ores is likely to be the cause of the rure mesothe-
liomata associated with such chrysotile usage. The evidence that chrysotile in indus.
try has a minimal mesothelioma risk was summarized in testimony before the above
Senate Committee. Briefly (a) women (generally not occupationally exposed to asbes
tos) show a stable mesothelioma incidence of 4/million women/year over some 20 +
years; contrast the men who work with asbestos; (b} epidemiologic evidence from the

S.A., 8. Africa, UK., Austria, Canada demonstrates at least a 15-fold mesothel:-
nma risk gradient for crocidolite to chrysotile “only” exposure, (c) autopsy lung fiber
hurdens are consistent with this view: (d) peritonesl (nbdominal) mesotheliomsa do
not occur with chrysotile. These views are expressed in a World Health Organiza-
tion report, International Agency for Research on Cancer report, Ontario fiealth
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Commission Report, amendments to the British Asbestos Working rarty Report by
Dr. Acheson and in the Harvard Symposium; (e) studies of filter manufacturers con-
firm this view; and () studies of Austrian cement workers show mesothelinmata
on%"with amphiboles,

us for the involuntary risk of mesothelioma, as opposed to lung cancer with its
dominantly voluntary risk from tobacco, in place asbestos (>80 percent chrysotile)
poses little risk, at the most 1/million students.

To conclude: First, as Ms. Fisher {EPA] has now aFOimed out, the risk to the gerer-
al public for ir. place asbestos is small and removal may well not be the appropriate
response. Second, it is imperative that the general public should be addressed by
professional news media and physiciars alike with some balanced education rather
than staged displavs and demegogic exercises with more beat than light.

Third, the current annual cost of abatement exceeds the annual budget of the
entire National Institutes of Health!

Fourth, I submit for your consideration that action on asbestos in buildings be ad-
dressed as follows: (a) All asbestos/abatement workers be subject to OSHA regula-
tion; (b) in place maiatenance with limited abatement by properly trained and
equi Yed workers; (¢) pubtic education; and (d) await report of the currently sitting
Heaﬁ 1 Effectr Institute-Environmental Public Health Committee (not research re-
sults) before further legislat've action.

In short, “If it ain't broke on't fix it,” but if yov have to fix it do it right!

Mr. Luken. Mr. Reilly, 1 believe, has not given that statement
yet. What date did you say he gave that?

Mr. Gee. This is published, sir, in a document with his letterhead
on it, called the American Interprise Institute, Environmental
Policy Conference, the Vista Hotel, Washingion, DC, June 12, 1990.

Mr. LugeN. I'm sorry. I thought you said July.

Mr. GEE. I'm sorry.

Mr. Luxken. Thank you very much. We'll be back—I think we
may have two votes, so it may be more than 10 minutes.

[Brief recess.]

Mr. LukeN. Thank you, Dr. Gee, for your testimony.

Dr. Levin, we have your testimony and we appreciate your in-
forming the subcommittee in any way you think will be helpful.

STATEMENT OF STEPHEN M. LEVIN

Mr. LeviN. Mr. Chairman, I want to than you for letting me
come discuss these issues with you. My name is Dr. Stephen Levin.
I'm medical director of the Mount Sinai Occupationa! Health Clini-
cal Center. In the past decade or so, ] have accumulated a consider-
able amount of clinical experience in the area of asbestos-related
disease, since I began my training with Dr. Selikoff in 1979.

My current responsibilities include examining individual pa-
tients with a history of asbestos exposure, among cther exposures,
and designing and conducting clinical studies of groups of workers
who have been exposed to asbestos in a variety of settings. In
recent years, these have included insulators, pipefitters, plumbers,
powerhouse workers, industrial electricians, railroad workers, aund
a number of other trades where asbestos exposure is part and
parcel of their daily worklife. W~ have also studied in recent years
school custodiuns. I'm going to want to address what our findings
were in that group in just 8 moment.

1t is also one of my responsibilities to design the analysis of the
data that we collect during these studies and to develop reports
that are based on these analyses.

Now, my clinical experience in the last 10 or so years has cer-
tainly given me an appreciation for the seriousness, from a public
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health point of view, of the consequences of exposure to asbestos.
Among these building trades groups that we’ve looked at, we find
very high rates of as%estos-re ated disence on x-rays- -the findings
known as asbestosis or scarring of the lung tissue, sometimes scar-
ring of the lining of the lung, also known as pleura thickening or
pleura scarring. We find these thirgs at very high rates. When
we're talking about sheetmetal workers or pipefitters, we're talking
about rates of abnormality on x-rays that exceed 60 percent.

Now, asbestosis has even been found among firefighters with
more than 20 years since they began their work, because they are
exposed in buildings after fires when they do what is known as
“overhaul” work, where they are looking for remaining smoldering
fire. They are called upon to use rakes and picks on charred and
burnt material and are exposed in this setting often to asbestos
that is so badly churred that it’s not recognizable. What we find
among these worker groups who have a long history of exposure to
asbestos, and a long time since they began their exposure to asbes-
tos, is a predictor fo~ what is going to happen to those workers who
do similar work but who have less seniority on the job.

I think the schools custodian study that we recently have com-
pleted and reported on is relevant to the considerations today. That
is a study of some 660 school custodians, who all are employed by
the New York City Board of Education. We looited at those who
had begun their exposure as school custodial workers 356 or more
years earlier. Among that group, 39 percent showed evidence——

Mr. Luken. Dr. Levin, I don’t usually interrupt, but if you're
going to talk about that study, do we have anything on that study?

Mr. Levin. I can get you a copy.

Mr. Luxken. Has the study been published? Has any summary
been published?

Mr. LEviN. What I can provide you is the report that we issued
to the New York City Board of Education. which is now in the
public domain, and I can make sure that you have a copy of that.

Mr. LuxeN. You did have a report to the——

Mr. LEvIN. Yes, issued to the New York City Board of Education.
It's in the public domain. It's been widely distributed to all who
haYIe asked for it, and we can certainly provide you with that as
well.

Mr. LukeN. Thank you.

[The report was not received by time of publication.]

Mr. LeviN. Now, we looked at a subgroup of school custodial
workers who had had no exposure to asbestos outside the school en-
vironment that we could determine. Among that subgroup, who
had school-related exposure to asbestos only, for those who were
more than 35 years since they had begun their work in schools, 53
percent showed changes on x-rays consistent with prior asbestos ex-
posure.

Now, trades that have been exposed to asbestos in this fashion,
whose death experience has been studied, invariably show that the
scarring lung disease that's found among them is an indication
that these trades have been exposed to enough asbestos to raise
their risk of Iun%; cancer, cancer of the lining of the lung, or meso-
thelioma, as well as other malignancies that are associated with as-
bestos exposure. These trades, for the most part, have gotten their
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exposures during the 1950’s and 1960’s, when building construction
in the United States markedly increased.

The postwar boom in construction activities was enormous, and
that is when asbestos was put into buildings, and those buildings
are now just 30 and 40 years old. They are now in somewhat dete-
riorating condition and they are now undergoing renovation and
repair activities, in some cases demolition activities, and, as a con-
sequence of those activities, there is opportunity for exposure to
construction workers, building maintenance workers, and others
who are in these buildings, because these materials are deteriorat-
ing.

A survey was done in New York City looking at commercial and
public buildings. That survey demonstrated that 84 percent of the
buildings evaluated contained asbestos products in poor or or;kv fair
condition. In other words, these materials had been damaged. Op-
portunities for disturbance of these materials which would gener-
ate dust with consequent exposure to anyone in that area of dis-
turbance was identified quite clearly.

Not only the workers who disturb these materials directly are at
risk for asbestos-related disease. Anyone who is present in an area
where asbestos dust is generated is at some increased risk for as-
bestos-related disease. There is a dose response relationship, as Dr.
Gee indicated. Where there is considerable exposure, there is a con-
siderable increase in risk of disease. Where exposure is minimal,
there will be a minimal increase in risk of disease.

Now, again, the issue that we are concerned about with regard to
the occupants of buildings, schoolchildren, teachers, secretaries,
other people who occupy buildings where asbestos surfaces may be
exposed and where disturbance might occur—the issue is not scar-
ring luxg disease—the issue is, in fact, the increased risk of malig-
nancy. School custodians certainly have scarring lung disease. We
certainly expect that a mortality study done of school custodians
will indicate that they are at increased risk of malignancy in pro-
portion to their scarring lung disease. What we are concerned
about when it comes to children and teachers in schools, other oc-
cupants of buildings where asbestos might be present, is, in fact,
the cancer risk.

Now, in New York City we certainly have had a lot of attention
to asbestos in the past year or so. You probably are aware that
there were a series of steampipe ruptures involving various areas
of Manhattan, and the newspapers covered these issues vigorously.
We at P.ount Sinai were asl«:edpe to consult with the New York City
Depar inent of Health and the mayor’s office to try and address the
question of the risk posed by such exposures, both to the building
occupants as well as to others who might have been present during
those unfortunate episodes. Our role, principally, was to reassure
the builaing occupants, the residents of those apartment buildings
whose apartments had been plastered with asbestos-containing
mud, that if they did not disturb that material, if they left the
premises and were not further exposed, their actual risk of disease
was vanishingly small, well below 1 in 10 million, from our sim-

lest calculations. There was a lot more concern about the Con

ison workers, the utility workers who worked cleaning up and
repairing those steampipes for 4 or 5 days without being told that
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this material contained asbestos. In certain respects, that bears on
the question of maintenance personnel and custodial personnel
who encounter these materials in buildings—and I'll get to that in
just a moment.

The article in Science magazine, published in the January 19,
1990 issue, has had, I think, a particularly distressing effect on the
%;blic health perspective on the asbestos hazard. I did, in fact, hear

. Gee quoted on WCBS, the all news radio station in New York
City, saying that most Americans don’t have to worry about asbes-
tos in place in buildings because, for the most part, they're exposed
to the safe form of asbestos. He was speaking, as we ow, about
chrysotile, the type of fiber that is in most :ommon use in the
United States.

The main arguments of that Science article include that asbestos
in place in schools and in other buildings really poses no risk to
health, especially to the building occupants, since most of it is chry-
sotile and the air levels in schools are far below OSHA standards. 1
should point out that if we pui personal sampling monitors on our
school custodians, if we put personal sampling monitors on the
pipefitters who show over a 69 percent rate of x-ray abnormalit
after 30 years on the job, they would fall far below the OSH
standard for permissibl’e occupational exposure, far below, even
though the rate of abnormslity in the x-rays is quite persuasive
that they’ve been exposed. Because the OSHA standard calls for a
time-weighted average. It averages out the exposures over a 40-
hour week.

What we are considering when we talk about maintenance per-
sonnel, custodial personnel, and anyone else occupying a building
where asbestos might be disturbed, are not the general background
levels of exposure only. They play a role in contributing toward
risk of disease but, in fact, it’; the peak exposures, when materials
are disturbed, generating high fiber counts for hours at a time,
when then settle back to a background level, that represent the
greatest source of risk not only to those maintenance personnel
and custodial workers but to anyone else in the building as well. To
say that the background levels of asbestos fiber in buildings is
0.002 fibers per cubic centimeter ignores the question of the peak
ex&osures that result from the disturbance of these materials.

e have good data that say that when relamping goes on
through an asbestos-containing ceiling material, when wires are
drawn through an air return plenum through a drop ceiling, levels
of asbestos fibers in the air for several hours at a time can achieve
a measurable concentration greater than 50 fibers per cubic centi-
meter and ev~n as high as 100 fibers per cubic centimeter. These

ak, brief, intense exposures represent a public health hazard that

as been ignored by the writers of the Science article but repre-
sent, 1 think, the main exposures that the workers that we've
looked at have experienced and has resulted in their disease.

Dr. Nicholson and others of our laboratory at Mount Sinai have
responded to the Science article, and I won't cite in detail from
that,l but I want to make several points that are included in that
article.

No. 1, chrysotile asbestos, the type that’s being described as a
safer form of asbestos, is a potent carcinogen to the lung and is as
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potent as ary other fiber type that is in use. As a matter of fact,
the single study demonstrating the highest risk of lung cancer per
unit dose of asbestos has been found in a South Carolina textile
plant where virtually the only fiber type in use was chrysotile as-
bestos. There was an attempt to say that it was a mineral oil ap-
plied to the fiber that was the real agent that raised the lung
cancer risk, and a recent study by Dr. John Dement has shown
that, in fact, mineral oil added to the fiber played no role whatso-
ever, that it was the fiber itself.

Now, studies also show a substantial risk of mesothelioma,
cancer of the lining of the lung, from chrysotile exposure. Argu-
ments that these malignancies result from the tremolite contami-
nant are entirely speculative, and the reason for that is that virtu-
ally all the asbestos that's been brought into the United States,
chrysotile from Csnada, has tremolite in it. Tremolite remains in
the lung longer chan chrysotile. We have no reason to believe that
chrysotile, because it lraves the lung more rapidly than other fiber
types, is any less cancer causing because it leaves earlier. Benzine,
which causes leukemia in humans and animals, can’t be found in
the body even 4 or 5 days after the exposure has occurred. Yet, the
leukemia risk is clearly elevated. The persistence of the fiber is not
ths only issue as regards its cancer-causing properties. The fact
that all chrysotile brought into the country contains tremolite
makes the issue somewhat a moot point. Whether it's the chryso-
tile alone or the tremolite that's causing the increase in cancer is
not the real issue. We know that the Canadian miners develop
mesothelioma. We know that railroad car mechanics exposed
almost exclusively to chrysotile develop mesothelioma at high
rates. This has been reported in the medical literature. There's a
recent study done in Japan of individuals whose tissues were exam-
ined and found only to contain chrysotile asbestos, and these were
mesothelioma victims. It's very persuasive that chrysotile is capa-
ble of causing mesothelioma.

Now, Dr. Gee indicated that mesothelioma is a rare form of
cancer. That's very true in the general population. Nevertheless, it
caused approximately 9 percent of all the deaths of the insulators
followed by Dr. Silikoff over a period of two decades. So for the
general population it is, indeed, a rare form of cancer; for asbestos-
exposed workers, it is, unfortunately, not rare enough.

Risk to building occupants and users, even if we take the data
provided by the authors of the Science article, are certainly lower
than the risk for workers. But, nevertheless, if we take the fiber
concentrations reported in buildings that were discussed in the Sci-
ence article—which, by the way, the authors themselves would
agree are at least tenfold less in concentration than virtually all
the other studies of buildings t*: t have been reported in the litera-
ture, and the methodology has wen questioned—nevertheless, if we
take that concentration that was reported and use the EPA’s own
risk estimates, we're talking about a risk to schoolchildren who
spend 13 years in school of approximately one in a million, if we
use their figures. That's a conservative estimate, to be sure, and
only considers background levels of asbestos fiber and not the peak,
repeated episodes that we just discussed.
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We now regulate contaminants in drinking water which may be
carcinogenic when they increase the risk of cancer one in a million.
To regulatc asbestos in school buildings which may pose a one in a
million risk to schoolchildren is not outside the mainstream of reg-
ulatory activity in this country. So trying to trivialize that risk by
saying it's too low to be considered necessary tv regulate in this
fashion I think flies in the face of actual regulatory practice.

Now, I am not of the opinion that all asbestos that’s present in
buildings has to be removed immediately. That’s not my position.
You want me to finish?

Mr. LuxeN. I think we're either going to ask you to finish or give
Dr. Gee another 10 minutes.

Mr. Levin. All right. Let me just finish by saying this.

Asbestos that's in good condition, that doesn’t release dust, that
will not be disturbed in a fashion by maintenance or renovation ac-
tivities or demolition, need not be removed. It has to be watched
carefully. If there’s going to be maintenance activity, that mainte-
nance activity must be proceeded by removal in a fashion that is
safe. We certainly have the technical ability to remove asbestos
safely and to work with it in a fashion that doesn’t expose the
workers or any other occupants of the building to the risks from
such a disturbance. But to monitor such materials is absolutely key
if we're not going to remove them. The issue of whether they’re re-
moved immediately or at the time that renovation and demolition
is ultimately going to occur is an economic decision and not princi-
pally a scientific question.

I do want to make this last point. Unless we pay attention to the
history that we've accumulated with asbestos exposure and asbes-
tos-related disease, we are certainly going to be harvesting the con-
sequences of today’s exposures in the next two or three decades, so
that clinics like ours at Mount Sinai will be seeing victims of asbes-
tos exposure who are developing these asbestos-related malignan-
cies in the year 2010 and 2020 if we don’t pay attention to the his-
w%that’s been accumulated.

ank you very much.
[The prepared statement of Stephen M. Levin follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT oF STRPHEN M. LevIN. M.D., MoUNT SiNal ScHooL oF
MEepiciNg

My name is Dr. Stephen Levin. I am medical director of the Mount Sinai-Irving .
Selikoff Occupational Health Center in New York City. I am a physician beard cer-
tified in occupational medicine and have accumulated a considerable amount of clin-
ical experience in the area of asbestos-related disease since 1 began my training
with Dr. Selikoff in 1979.

My current responsibilities include examining individual workers and designing
and conducting examinations of groups of workers who have been exposed to asbes-
tos in a variety of settings. In recent years, these have included (but are not limited
to) insulators, pipefitters, plumbers, utility (powerhouse) workers, industrial electri-
cians, railroad employees, stationary firemen, turbine manufacturing workers, con-
crete and cement workers, carpenters, building maintenance workers and school
custodians. It has also been my task to design the analysis of the data obtained
during group examinations and to generate summary reports based on those analy-
ses

My clinical experience in the past 10 years has given me an appreciation of the
seriousness of the public health consequences of exposure to ashestos. To cite just a
few examples, the prevalence of asbestos-related scarring lung disease seen on chest
x-rays among pipefitters who began in their trade 35 or more years before their ex-
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amination in our center was 69 percent. Very nearly the same rate of asbestos-relat-
ed x-ray abnormalities (>60 percent) was found among sheet metal workers with
comparable seniority. Asbestos has even been found among firefighters with more
than 20 years on the job, who have been exposed in damaged and demolished build-
ings in which the asbestos-containing materials were no longer recognizable. What
has been found among these more senior workers can serve as a forecast of what
might be expected for those with shorter time since they began employment in their
respective trades.

In what may have icular relevance to the issue of asbestos-containing materi-
als in place in public buildings, the rate of x-ray abnormally was 39 percent for cus-
todians employed in the New York City Board of Fducation schools at least 35 years
Frevicusly. For custodians who said they had no previous asbestos exposure apart

rom thelr work in schools, the rate of such abnormalities was somewhat higher

It should be noted that the great majority of the trades in which we have found
these high rates of disease have been ex to asbestos producta put in place in
factories, ships and buildin,% during 1930-80. The boom in new building construc-
tion which followed World War Il entailed the use of vast amounts of asbestos, as
boiler and pipe insulation, as fireproofing for structural steel, as soun‘{irgrooﬁng for
school auditoriums and gymnasiums, and in many other applications. ere the as-
bestos has remained intact, undisturbed and undam , little human exposure is
likely to occur and very little disease can be expected. These buildings have aged,
however, and the asbestos-containing materials in place have aged along with them,
frequently sustaining damage and often becoming friable and capable of shedding
fiber upon disturbance. Surveys in New York City of commercial and public build-
ings demonstrated that 84 percent contain asbestos products in pror or only fair
condition. Disturbance of these materials in the course of maintenance, repair, ren-
ovation or demolition work in such buildings will often result in human exposure to
airborne asbestos fiber released as a consequence of these activities, Not only are
the workers who disturb asbestos themselves at increased risk for asbestos-related
illness, but all those who are present at the time fiber is released or who work in
areas which have been contaminated by the asbestos dust are at risk as well, Asbes-
tos-related diseases exhibit a dose-response relationship. That is, where there is
little exposure, there is little likelihood of disease; when there is more exposure, one
can expect more disease.

The rates of scarring lung disease, asbestosis, vigible on the chest x-rays of those
we have studied is in itself a basis for serious concern, since the scarring process in
many cases will compromise lung function and reduce the affected individual's ca-
pacity for physical effort. But a more serious concern from a public health perspec-
tive is the increased risk of asbestos-related cancer such workers incur as 8 conse-
quence of the asbestos dust deposited in their lungs 1n the course of many repested
episodes of exposure, All construction trades which have been found to exhibit as-
bestos-related scarring lung disease and whose cancer death rates have been stud-
ied, have alsu exgerieneed increased rates of lung cancer, mesothelioma (cancer of
the lining of the lung or abdominal organs). and often cancers of other organs. We
have certainly seen many such cases at Mount Sinai. Rates of cancer associated
with asbestos exposure also follow dose-response relationships, and there is no avail-
able information which indicates the existence of a “threshold dose” below which
there will be no increase in the risk of malignancy. Over the nex: few decades, un-
fortunately, we can ex to see increasing numbers of asbestos-related cancers
emerging from the millions of construction and building maintenance workers ex-
pose:ig}n the past few decades. This, in part, because fewer may die early from asbes-
tosis, their exposures being lower than in the 1940’s and 1950’s, and now live long
enough to develop the cancers which asbeitos can cause.

To my knowledge, no one has conaucted a study of cencer death rates among
school custodians. Unless they respond to asbestos dust differently from other
trades, one can expect their disease experience to show excesses of the same mulig-
nancies. The degree of excess among school custodians will depend on their actual
cumulative exposure to asbestos.

In recent months, the issue of the hazards by asbestos have been the subject
of considerable public attention, certainly in New York City. As many will recall, in
late summer and early fall, steam and water pipes erupted or exploded with what
seemed weekly regularity, sending showers of asbestoscontaining mud and debris
over surrounding areas. There was great concern, understandably, among the com-
munity residents, whom we were generally able to reassure that their exposures
had been brief and represented & very low cumulative dose, and that their risk of
asbestos-related illness was extremely small. We had greater oncern for the utility
workers who were involved for several days in the repair of the ruptured steampipe,
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surrounded by drying asbestos-containing mud, without the basic protection neces-
sary to prevent the inhalation of the asbestos dust generated by their activities.

n more recently, ashestos has been in the news as a result of the policy paper
published by Mossman and her colleagues in the January 19, 1990, issue of Science
magazine. It was ganicularl alarming, given the nature of my clinical work, to
hear on one of the leading all-news radio stations, Dr. Gee, a coauthor of that per,
say that most Americans were exposed to the safe type of asbestos. By this he in-
tended chrysotile, the type of asbestos fiber which represents approximately 95 per-
cent of the total asbestos in place in the United States.

The main a ent of the Science article is that the asbestos in place in schools
and other buildings poses no risk to health, since most of it is chrysotile and sair
levels in schools are far below OSHA standards. 1 have attached & copy of a letter
written by Drs. William J. Nicholson, John S. Harrington, Philip J. Landx'ﬁan.
Edward Johnson, and James Melius, which responds critically to the per by Moss-
man et al. and reviews some of the data, not discussed by the Mossman paper,
which argues for a more prudent apgroach. The main points are these:

(1) Both human and animal data demonstrate that ¢ rysotile asbestos is as potent
a carcinogen to the lung as any other asbestos fiber type. One of the highest lung
cancer rates per unit asbestos dose had been found among a population exposed
almost exclusively to chrysotile.

(2) Studies show a substantial risk of mesothelioma from chrysotile exposure. Ar-
guments that these malignancies result from the presence (1 percent) of tremolite,
another type of asbestos fiber, in chrysotile as a contaminant are entirely specula-
tive. Since chl}ysotile in commercial products virtually always contains tremolite,
the point is in fact moot.

(3) The Mossman paper treats as inconsequential the exposures of custodial and
maintenance workers, a problem to be resolved by “worker education.”

(4) Risks to building occupants and users are lower than those of asbestos-exposed

workers, but are similar quantitatively to other environmental risks currently regu-
lated by government agencies.

I am not of the opinion that all asbestos must be removed immediately from all
buildins;nin which it is present. If the material is not shedding fiber now and will
not be disturbed by maintenance, repair, renovation, or foreseeable accident, a man-
agement plan to assure its continued good condition is certainly appropriate. If it
won't be a source of human exposure to dust, it won't cause disease. 1f the asbestos
is in poor condition and human contact with the dust can occur, the need for reme.
diation is urgent and essential, because human illness can result. Similarly, where
asbestos is subject to accidental disruption with the intermittent release of fiber, as
i8 common with sprayed on applications, action must be taken to isolate or remove
the material. For asbestos which is likely to be disturbed recurrently by the need
for maintenance or repair, removal will be necessary ultimately, as it is when ren-
ovation or demolition occurs.

As a sociecy, we have made a mistake (more an honest one for some than for
others) in our widespread use of a material which has proved a serious danger to
health. The point of departure from a public health perspective now should be how
to prevent preventable illness and save as many lives as possible. Studies of workers
{and their families) previously exposed to asbestos have taught us that past failures
have led to a current public health tragedy. By doing what we can to reduce expo-
sure among workers (and others) now, we can hope that the burden of asbestos-re-
lated illness and death will be lessened for the next generation.

Mr. LukeN. Thank you, Dr. Levin.

Dr. Gee, you indicated, I believe, in your verbal testimony, that
chrysotile is safer. Dr. Levin said, however, it's not safe. Would you
agree with both of those statements?

Mr. Gee. No, not even by a trick of mind can I think that one. I
would like to respond by addressing the issue I tried to open up. It
depends upon the disease of which you speak. For asbestosis, there
is little difference between the forms of asbestos that we commonly
talk abousr.

Mr. Luken. In your answer—let me pose another one to incorpo-
rate in your answer. You enumerated asbestosis and lung cancer,
and Dr. Levin described a third condition, I believe——

Mr. Gee. He did, and so did I.
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Mr. Luken [continuing]. Of lung scarring; is that what you call
it?

Mr. LEvin. What I addressed was—asbestosis is the term given to
scarring of the lung tissue itself. There is a pleura scarring, a scar-
ring of the lining of the lung which is not traditionally given the
term asbestosis but which is a scarring effect of asbestos. But we
also spoke about mesothelioma, a cancer of the lining of the lung,
very specific to asbestos, which is a form of malignancy.

Mr. LUkeN. Include that in your answer.

Mr. Gex. I would be happy to. I'm glad you asked this.

Let me run back to the original form. For asbestosis, we have
never, nor do we say, that the fiber type is crucial. For lung cancer,
we believe there are differences, but we do not believe them sub-
stantial enouﬁ? to make decisions, at least in my mind—-and
there’s some difference about this—for legislative purposes. They
should be so regarded as a group, but recognizing my insistence, if
I may, that lung cancer is a smoking related disease, even in asbes-
tos workers.

The third point has to do with mesothelioma. We are of a some-
what different opinion on this point. I think, if I may say so,
there's a little bit of flip-flopping going on. For instance, to say that
9 percent of insulation worﬁers die of mesothelioma is tragically
true, but it's also tragically true to point out that that’'s a very
high load of amphiboles. Most insulation workers have access to
chrysotile, but they also have a lot of amphiboles—in other words,
the crocidolite and so on. That statistic is not a fair one to use. It's
a heavily mixed exposure. You have to look at the relatively simple
exposures.

gave you the two cleanest examples because they are well-de-
fined. I'm sorry, but I just have to defer to the scientific litera-
ture—and I think I sent to attorney Lamson copies of the relevant
data which 1 presented before a Senate committee on this issue,
which essentially show a striking gradient between chrysotile and
other forms of asbestos with respect to mesothelioma.

The other point I would just like to make before coming back to
your scarring issue is that mesothelioma is still rare in the chryso-
tile group, extremely rare, and that is still at concentrations way
over the level that is so far engaged. I wouldn’t want to start the
fight on whether it is chrysotile or tremolite when, in fact, the mix-
ture is both, except I would point out there arm ample studies in
other mining situations, such as talc and vermiculite and so on, in
which tremolite is clearly the culprit for mesotheliomas.

Now, coming back to this issue of fibrosis, Dr. Levin has Juite
properly pointed out that asbestosis is scarring of the lung and

leura disease is a separate entity. I would respectfully dissent
rom his view that scarring of the lining membrane, per se, has a
greatly significant prognostic import. In other words, I don’t think
you can predict lung cancers from that, and I personally believe,
though he may not agree, that that statement is valid and there is
ample literature.
ond, I'm a little edgy about reports that end up in the New
York—that come out in a nonpeer review journal. Maybe it s been
already submitted and accepted. If it has, this comment is no
longer relevant.
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Mr. LEVIN. It’s been submitted and is under review.

Mr. GEE. And that journal being?

Mr. LeviN. The American Journal of Industrial Medicine.

Mr. Ges. That journal is, of course, edited largely by your own
group,

Mr. LUKEN. I'm sorry. I didn’t hear that, Dr. Gee.

Mr. Gee. That printeC journal is largely edited by your own

up.

Mr. LevIN. It received an award for a scientific journal last year
in national competition.

Mr. GeE. Okay. Let’s leave it at that.

Mr. LukeN. From whom?

Mr. Levin. I think a national publications review committee. It's
a very well-respected journal and certainly incorporates the scien-
tific production from others outgide of our own laboratory, even
some from Yale as I recall.

Mr. Gee. Oh, it would, and it does. It does have some good stuff
in it. But I think, if I were in your position, T would send it to a
journal that would give you an independent review, precisely be-
cause of the concerns that this raises. Anyway, I'm just pointing it
out,

The issue here is an important une. Aside from the prognostic
value, I have actually seen a copy of your report and, in fact, have
it with me. Maybe I could ask you a coup's of questions——

Mr. LUKEN. Which report now are we talking about?

Mr. Gee. This is the one I believe you sent to New York, which
you said was in the public domain.

Mr. LeviN. Yes, if we're talking about the New York City school
custodian report.

Mr. LUKEN. Is there a possibility that someonc has it or hand
today?

Mr. GEE. Yes.

Mr. LukeN. In your hand?

Mr. GEE. No, but I can get it. I can get it before the end of the
hearing, sir. I think it can. I have certainly seen it, but I'm not ab-
solutely certain I breught it with me.

Mr. LukeN. I'm inclined to agree witi. Dr. Levin, from what I've
heard about it. It has been commented upon generally, but it is elu-
sive as far o= tying it down.

Mr. GEr. Well, he can speak to that.

I believe, if I read it correctly, what you're calling lung scarring
is one zero and zero one, and I'll explain that--—

Mr. LeviN. That’s absolutely incorrect.

Mr. Gee. All right. Could you tell me those numbers?

Mr. LEVIN. Our criterion for abnormality, since we followed the
guidelines of the ILO’s classification scheme, is one zero or greater.
Any film read as 0/1 is considered a normal x-ray.

Mr. Luken. I think I will——

Mr. Levin. This is a technical discussion and I'm sorry we're——

Mr. LukeN. I think I will have to rule that any further questions
be directed to the Chair.

Mr. Gek. I beg your pardon, your Honor.

Mr. LUkeN. I said any further. There's no reason to——

Mr. Gee. Okay.



119

Mr. Luxen. 1 can see where we may get a little bit too cantan-
kerus, even.

Mir. Ger. Well, I thought 1 was being polite.

Mr. LugeN. You were, up to that point. But I can see where it
may lead.

Mr. Gee. Yes. There’s 80 miles difference.

All right. He has answered the question. Th® means that I
would attach somewhat more weight to it than I would on the basis
of what I think I've seen. I'm just a little edgy about solely this
report as it now stands, as far as I can see it. I need to see more of
those films to have a personal opinion on it. But a lot of the num-
bers are this one zero.

If 1 might explain, the one zero simply says I look at this x-ray
and I think it’s just abnormal, and that's what one means, and
zero, I look at it again, and I'm not so sure. You turn it the other
way around and you say well, I think it's normal but I'm not quite
sure. There’s a lot of that kir "~ of reading involved. Dr. Levin
should speak to that. I can’t. I haven’t seen his x-rays and he has.

The second point I would like to make is I think we need more
verification of this in terms of quantity. Third, I basically agree
with him, nonetheless, that there is a risk to workers in this situa-
tion. I believe he specified this. What I'm concerned about is blow-
ing this risk up into a situation in which we're dealing with the
general residents of a buildinz.

Mr. LuxkeN. General what:

Mr. Gee. The general residents in the building, as opposed to
workers.

I should say that one of the bills that I had the pleasure of spon-
soring, or at least cosponsoring, have been a number of acts in the
State of Connecticut, one of which involved the right to know. It
mean that asbestos workers were certainly supposed to know they
were handling it. Once you know, you're in a lot better position
than otherwise. So we share some of these concerns. So, although it
may look as we're being impolite, there is actually a good deal of
common ground in terms of worker protection.

Mr. Lugen. I believe Dr. Levin said that Canadian miners who
are ex?posed only to the chrysotile contact mesothelioma. Are you
aware’

Mr. Gee. [ am, indeed, aware of that.

Mr. LukeN. What comment would you have on that statement?

Mr. Gex. I think there are three comments to make. The first
one is that the number that was actually produced in the letter to
Science, that responded to our article, f)believe used the number
67. I am informed by Canadians—and I have letters, if you wish—
that that number is not correct. It’s at least half that.

Second, I am quite prepared to believe there are such mesothelio-
mas aside from the observations because there is tremolite there.
thMr. LukeN. You would agree that they were exposed only to

e.——-—.-—-—

Mr. Gee. Well, it's a chrysotile mixture, which includes——

Mr. Luken. There is a mixture.

Mr. Gex. There is 1 percent tremolite in much of that.

The point I really want to make, though, is here is almost the
world’s biggest hole, with the world’s biggest asbestos mine, for
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almost the world’s longest time, and you can come up with 30 me-
sotheliomas. Are you going to extrapolate that to a set of buildings
with infinitely less fiber count levels and make some argument
from it? I'm a little perplexed why, even accepting the corrected
numbers, which may be argued about, that that becomes such a
strong point.

In any event, the way to resolve that issue is to determine to
what extend the tremolite is airborne in buildings, and that needs
to be done.

Mr. LukeN. I believe you made the comment that mesothelioma
is rare in a chrysotile environment?

Mr. Gge. I did make that comment and I think it’s correct.

Mr. Luxen, Do you want to discuss any of these points, Dr.
Levin?

Mr. LevIN. A couple of those points, yes.

No. 1, the presence of the tremolite at 1 percent in Canadian
chrysotile that's produced for commercial purposes may or may not
be playing a role in the development of mesotheliomas that are
seen. I do think it is something of a moot point to the extent that
all the chrysotile contains tremolite. We're not going to be able to
know whether the chrysotile acting alone is, in fact, contributing to
the risk of mesothelioma or not. There are some recent Japanese
studies, both animal data as well as human studies, which have
shown that some chrysotile coming from Canada is tremolite-free
and yet mesotheliomas have been seen. Certainly experimental
work with standard chrysotile specimens which have been looked
for, mineralogically, for the presence of tremolite and it has not
been found to be present. Those samples, when introduced by inha-
lation into laboratory animals, definitely induce mesotheliomas at
thﬁ same rate as any other fiber type—somewhat more potent than
others.

Let’s talk for a moment, though, about the use of chrysotile com-
mercially. When one mines chrysotile, the fibers remain bundled
into relatively thick bundles. When the material is then processed
and used in place as insulation material in other settings, those
thicker bundles are fragmented into tinier fibrils. This is well rec-
ognized and it can be demonstrated with electron microscopy. The
use of these materials in buildings, the disturbance of materials
that are already in place, in fact, are much more likely to fragment
the chrysotile into a dimension, into physical properties, that make
it much more cancer-producing than the original mined ore. This is
again something that is fairly widely accepted as to what happens
to chrysotile when it is in use.

There is very little debate over whether chrysotile can induce
lung cancer. To say that the lung cancer burden is virtually all at-
tributable to smoking I think begs the question. Asbestos exposure,
in and of itself, raises the risk of lung cancer approximately five-
fold in the insulators that were studied, and that was a limited
population of nonsmokers because most blue collar workers
smoked. We have very few data from human populations to answer
*he question: how much increase in lung cancer occurs from asbes-
tos alone independent of smoking? But the several studies that
have been done show that ashestos, in and of itself, without ciga-
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rette smoking, can markedly increase the risk of lung cuncer ap-
proximately fivefold in other studies as well.

The laboratory animals that have been exposed by inhalation to
all forms of asbestos develop a markedly increased rate of lung
cancer, and we don’t have any information to indicate that they’re
smokers.

I think to exonerate chrysotile as a public health hazard, which
is what I think the Science article goes toward, sows confusion
among those who have to make decisions about what to do in build-
ings today. We see evidence of that already. The consequence of the
quotation from Dr. Gee in the news, and the way the media picked
up the Science article’s implications, gave pause to building
owners, gave pause to school administrations—do we really have to
worry about this material at all.

I can tell you that the custodians in New York City still have not
received a level of training that viould enable them to recognize as-
bestos in place and to work with this material safely so tiat the
protect their own health and protect the health of the schoolchil-
dren and the teachers in those buildings, We know this because the
head of the custodian uniocn’s health and safety department said as
much only several days ago. They still have not implemented the
right-to-know law so that the workers are informed about what’s in
place and how to work with it.

To say that we know how to protect workers, we know the conse-

uence of exposure to workers, we know how to protect them, I
think very severely begs the question; that is, how can we develop
the kind of training programs that will, in fact, protect them in
building after building, where small renovation jobs are done,
small repair jobs are done.

We do have some difficulty monitoring abatement activities, We
don’t do such a wonderful job of that. But at least those jobs have
to be registered with local governments. They have to be monitored
by an onsite ins r. The small job with the disturbance of mate-
rials in place that occurs in building after building, school after
school, are not monitored. The repairs of pipes, the repairs of boil-
ers, the repairs of lighting fixtures, are not monitored by any in-
spector. We know that our custodians are not being trained ade-
quately to protect themselves and protect the children. Therefore, I
have very grave concern about the public health consequences of
just leaving these materials alone.

Mr. LUuken. We've all got concern. What do we do about it? What
are we doing about it under AHERA? Is there any adequate re-
sponse under AHERA at the present time?

Mr. LeviN. Adequate from a dpublic health point of view? I would
say not yet. Does it go in the direction